
 

City Hall Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

AGENDA 

 

OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE  

 

 

 CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

May 10, 2023 
5:00PM – CLOSED SESSION 

6:00 PM – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

In-Person Meeting 

Location: 

 

Coachella City Hall 

Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street 

Coachella, CA 

If you would like to attend the meeting via Zoom, here is the link: 

 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88457271898?pwd=REdzU1NoQmpVSFhWTDVaZ0VCekYxdz09  

Or One tap mobile : 16699006833,,88457271898#,,,,*606140# 

Or Telephone: 

     US: +1 669 900 6833   

Webinar ID: 884 5727 1898 

Passcode: 606140 

Spanish: El idioma español está disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opción en la parte de 

abajo de la pantalla 

 Public comments may be received either in person, via email, telephonically, or via Zoom with a limit 

of 250 words, or three minutes: 

o In Real Time:  

If participating in real time via Zoom or phone, during the Public Comment Period, use the “raise 

hand” function on your computer, or when using a phone, participants can raise their hand by pressing 

*9 on the keypad.  

o In Writing:  

Written comments may be submitted to the City Council electronically via email 

to cityclerk@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. All written 

comments received will be forwarded to the City Council and entered into the record.  

o If you wish, you may leave a message at (760) 262-6240 before 5:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting. 

 The live stream of the meeting may be viewed online by accessing the city's website at 

www.coachella.org, and clicking on the "Watch Council Meetings" tab located on the home page, and 

then clicking on the "live" button. 
 

 

Page 1

http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88457271898?pwd=REdzU1NoQmpVSFhWTDVaZ0VCekYxdz09
mailto:cityclerk@coachella.org
http://www.coachella.org/


Agenda City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting May 10, 2023 

Page 2 

 

CALL TO ORDER: - 5:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL: 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“At this time the Council/ Board/Corporation/Authority may announce any items being pulled from the Agenda 

or continued to another date or request the moving of an item on the agenda” 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS): 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: 

1. Public Employee Performance Evaluation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54947 

Title: City Manager 

2. Public Employee Performance Evaluation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54947 

Title: City Attorney 

3. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 

54957.6: 

City Labor Negotiator:  City Manager Gabriel Martin; Interim Finance Director William Pattison 

Employee Organization: Teamsters Local 1932 Representing Miscellaneous/Sanitary Employees 

4. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 

54957.6: 

City Labor Negotiator:  City Manager Gabriel Martin; Interim Finance Director William Pattison 

Employee Organization: Teamsters Local 1932 Representing Mid-Management Employees 

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING: - 6:00 P.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

5. Proclamation Presented to Deputy Nevins 

6. Fibromyalgia Awareness Month  

7. Lupus Awareness Month  

Page 2



Agenda City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting May 10, 2023 

Page 3 

 

8. Presentation on the 2023-2024 Annual Operating Budget 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

(It is recommended that Consent Items be acted upon simultaneously unless separate discussion and/or action is 

requested by a Council Member or member of the audience.) 

9. Meeting Minutes of April 26, 2023, of the City of Coachella, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Fire 

Protection District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental Access 

Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella Redevelopment 

Agency 

10. Award maintenance agreement to Vintage Landscape for Landscape Maintenance Services for Bagdouma 

Park Project No. 031623. 

11. Award maintenance services agreement to Vintage Landscape for Landscape Maintenance Services for City 

Medians and Downtown 6th Street Project No. 031623B.   

12. Award construction agreement to Desert Concepts Construction Inc. for the Tierra Del Sol Decorative 

Lighting Improvements Project LL-03-021323.   

13. Adopt resolution setting a June 14, 2023 public hearing date for Municipal Solid Waste Rates for fiscal 

year 2023/2024.  

14. Professional Service Agreement with Michael Baker International to develop a Parcel Map for Avenue 50 

Extension Condemnation Parcels, City Project ST-98. 

15. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-26, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella to adopt a list of 

Projects for Fiscal Year 2023-24, Funded by SB 1: Road Repair and Accountability Act. 

16. Community Facilities District (CFD No. 2005-01) Annexation 32 – (Placita Dolores Huerta– Phase 1 

Parcel Map No. 37833 - Ordinance No. 1202 on Behalf of CFD No. 2005-01 Authorizing the Levy  of a 

Special Tax within Annexation Area No. 32 Annexed to Said District (2nd Reading) 

17. Authorize Transfer of Funds in the Amount Of $124,626.00 from Measure A to Project S-24, Avenue 48 

And Harrison Street Sewer Improvements. 

18. Approve a contribution to Coachella Valley Association of Governments’ CV Housing First program in 

the amount of $100,000 for current Fiscal Year 2022-23 and MOU 

19. Voucher Listing- EFT's/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2022-23 Expenditures as of May 10, 2023, 

$3,466,894.56. 

20. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Letter of Agreement with CannaBiz Consulting Group for 

Cannabis Social Equity Consulting Services in a Not-to-Exceed Amount of $50,000 

Page 3



Agenda City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting May 10, 2023 

Page 4 

 

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

21. Approve cooperative agreement for El Grito Event between the City of Coachella, Telemundo and Mexican 

Consulate in San Bernardino and approve operation of a beer garden at Rancho Las Flore Park for the 2023 

El Grito Event 

22. Professional Service Agreement with California Waters Development, Inc. to provide Design/Build 

Construction Services in an amount not to exceed $46,000 for the design phase and authorize appropriation 

of $46,000 from General Fund for the Veteran’s Park Splash Pad Project, City Project P-26. 

23. Recommend approval of Memorandum of Understanding for Library Operations at the Coachella Library 

between the City of Coachella and County of Riverside 

24. City of Coachella Annual Progress Report (APR) to the California Dept. of Housing Community 

Development  

25. Pueblo Viejo Downtown Parking Survey Update 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

The public may address the City Council/Board/Corporation/ Authority on any item of interest to the public that 

is not on the agenda but is in the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) 

minutes. 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 

City Manager’s Comments. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection at the  

City Clerk’s Office at 53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the  

City’s website www.coachella.org. 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Page 4

http://www.coachella.org/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, in January 2022 Deputy Nevins conducted a lengthy investigation which 

resulted in arresting four people for possession of several hundred fentanyl pills, powdered 

fentanyl, methamphetamine, one stolen vehicle, two ghost guns, and one recovered stolen 

firearm; and 

WHEREAS, Deputy Nevins has completed two tours at the Thermal Station from August 

2012 to July 2016 and November 2020 to May 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Deputy Nevins has been a part of the CCAT (Career Criminal Apprehension 

Team) since March 2021 to May 2023; and 

WHEREAS, in March 2022 and December 2022 Deputy Nevins received commendations from 

his Supervisor regarding the arrest and filing of three Watson arrests; and 

WHEREAS, in June 2022 Deputy Nevins coordinated and conducted several buy busts of 
illegal fireworks within the city of Coachella and received a commendation from Captain 
Bianco after recovering over 1,500lbs of illegal mortar type fireworks; and 

WHEREAS, Deputy Nevins also received commendations from OTS grant manager for 
timely grant reports and accurate budget management; and 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor of the City of Coachella, by the 

power vested in me, do hereby recognize 

Deputy Nevins  
and urge all citizens of the City of Coachella to thank him for his service, dedication and 

care he has provided for the families of Coachella.  

  

IN WITNESS HEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

hand and caused the official seal of the City of 

Coachella, California to be affixed this 10th day of 

May 2023. 

 

______________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor  

City of Coachella, California 

Page 5

Item 5.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, Fibromyalgia is a complex chronic illness which causes fatigue, cognitive 

problems, and debilitating pain in women, men, and children of all ages and races; and  

WHEREAS, over 4 million people in the United States—2 to 4 percent of the population 

and millions of people worldwide—have been diagnosed with Fibromyalgia, a disease for 

which there is no known cure; and  

WHEREAS, Fibromyalgia often takes an average of three to five years to receive a 

diagnosis; and  

WHEREAS, existing public information, medical education, research, and resources to 

properly serve patient communities remain inadequately disseminated and are insufficient 

in addressing the needs of specific diverse populations and other underserved groups; and 

WHEREAS, Fibromyalgia is present in children and young adults which poses unique 

challenges for this population who not only struggle with the symptoms of this illness, but 

also from the lack of understanding and lack of social acceptance; and  

WHEREAS, increased public awareness, education and research are the key to winning 

the battle against Fibromyalgia; and  

NOW THEREFORE, I, Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor of the City of Coachella, by the power 
vested in me, do hereby claim May 2023 as 

     Fibromyalgia Awareness Month 
and urge all citizens of the City of Coachella to increase awareness and understanding of 

fibromyalgia in our community.  

  

IN WITNESS HEREOF, I have hereunto set my 
hand and caused the official seal of the City of Coachella, 
California to be affixed this 10th day of May 2023. 

______________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor  

City of Coachella, California 

Page 6

Item 6.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
WHEREAS, Systemic Lupus Erythematosus, commonly known as lupus, is a chronic, 
complex, and often life-threating autoimmune disease; that randomly attacks the body’s own 
tissues, vital organs and joints; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is estimated that there are over 322,000 to 1.5 million people with lupus in the 
United States and there are an estimated 16,000 new cases each year. Lupus mostly strikes 
women of childbearing age. However, men, children and teenagers develop lupus, too; and 
 
WHEREAS, increasing public awareness and focusing on public attention on lupus and its 
devastating impact on patients’ lives will provide hope for a better future for those affected; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lupus is one of the most difficult diseases to diagnose because its symptoms come 
and go, mimic other diseases, and there is no single test that can definitively identify the 
illness, early diagnosis and proper treatments are critical to the improvement of the quality of life 
and survival rate of people with Lupus, there is no known cause or cure for lupus; and 
 
WHEREAS, Looms for Lupus works to raise awareness of the signs and symptoms of lupus and 
to promote education, research, social support, and quality medical care for our citizens who live 
with, or care for someone who struggles with this disease; and 
   
NOW THEREFORE, I, Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor of the City of Coachella, by the power 
vested in me, do hereby recognize  

Lupus Awareness Month 
 

and urge all citizens of the City of Coachella to increase awareness and understanding of 

lupus in our community.  

  

IN WITNESS HEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

hand and caused the official seal of the City of 

Coachella, California to be affixed this 10th day of 

May 2023. 

 

______________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor  

City of Coachella, California 

Page 7

Item 7.



 

City Hall Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

MINUTES 

 

OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE  

 

 

 CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

April 26, 2023 
5:00PM – CLOSED SESSION 

6:00 PM – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER:   

The Closed Session of the City Council of the City of Coachella was called to order at 5:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL: 

Present: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

 

Absent: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza  

 

 City Clerk Zepeda absent for the Closed Session and arrived in person for the Regular 

Meeting  

City Treasurer Aviles via zoom 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

City Manager Martin requested closed session Item 1 &2 language to strike Public Works Director and add 

City Engineer and to add an additional Item 3a.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT 

TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6:  

 

Mayor Hernandez requested to add an additional named Item 5. City Manager Evaluation 

 

Motion: To approve Agenda with modifications  

 

 Made by: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa 

 Seconded by: Councilmember Virgen 

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

Page 8

Item 9.

http://www.coachella.org/


Minutes City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting April 26, 2023 

Page 2 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS): 

None.  

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: 

1. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS  

Property:  768-160-001 Agency Negotiator: City Manager and Public Works Director 

Negotiating Parties: RMM Inv Capital Under Negotiation: Price and Terms 

2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS  

Property:  768-163-001 City Negotiator: City Manager and Public Works Director 

Negotiating Parties: Javier Botello and Virginia Botello Under Negotiation: Price and Terms 

3. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 

54957.6: 

City Labor Negotiator: City Manager Gabriel Martin; Interim Finance Director William Pattison 

Employee Organization:  Teamsters Local 1932 Representing Miscellaneous/Sanitary Employees 

4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54956.9(d)(1) In re:  National Prescription Opiate Litigation Case No.:  U.S.D.C. Case No. 1:17-

CV-2804 Court:  United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio, Judge Dan Aaron Polster 

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING:  

The City Council reconvened into the regular meeting at 6:00 P.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

The pledge of Allegiance was led by Robert Caballero.    

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

City Attorney Campos stated that Council met in Closed Session, and direction was given, but no reportable 

action was taken.  

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

5. Greater Coachella Valley Chamber of Commerce - Enda Rodriguez 

6. Coachella Valley Unified School District Proclamation Recipients: Alberto Rodriguez, Jonathan 

Marquez-Leal, Judith Ortiz, Mario Gallo, Matias Villanueva, Natalie Araujo, Omar Garcia, Richard 

Yanez, Victor Flores-Munoz 

7. CVAG's CV Housing First Program 

8. Audit Report Presentation (Councilmember Virgen stepped away at 7:18 p.m. and returned at 7:19 p.m.) 

9. Grants Presentation 

Page 9

Item 9.



Minutes City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting April 26, 2023 

Page 3 

 

10. Mid-Year Budget Review (Councilmember Virgen stepped away at 7:33 p.m. and returned at 7:34 p.m.) 

 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

None 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

City Manager Martin requested that Item 19 be pulled from the Consent Calendar due to vendor being unable 

to perform job at original quoted cost.  

11. Meeting Minutes of March 22, 2023, of the City Council, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Fire 

Protection District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental Access 

Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella Redevelopment 

Agency 

12. Special Meeting Minutes of April 19, 2023 of the City Council, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella 

Fire Protection District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental Access 

Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella Redevelopment 

Agency 

13. Maintenance of Effort Certification Statements Fiscal Year 2023/2024, the Local Streets and Roads 

Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five Year Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for 

Measure A Funding  

14. Authorize a Community-Based Grant to Elder Love USA in the Amount of $1,000 to Support its In-

Home Caregiving Program for Older Adults 

15. 2022 Coachella Parks and Recreation Foundation activity update.   

16. Building Activity Report Q1 2023  

Code, Graffiti, Animal Control Report Q1 2023 

Engineering Report Q1 2023  

Licensee Report Q1 2023 

Utilities Report Q1 2023  

17. Modify construction contract budget with Desert Concepts and modify total project budget for the Pueblo 

Viejo Sustainable Transportation Project, City Project ST-130. 

18. Authorize the City Manager to extend the contract with The Pun Group, LLP for Professional Auditing 

Services. 

Page 10

Item 9.



Minutes City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting April 26, 2023 

Page 4 

 

19. Authorize execution of Amendment No. 1 between the City of Coachella and Conserve Landcare LLC for 

Project No. 032921. 

20. Voucher Listing- EFT's/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2022-23 Expenditures as of April 26, 2023, 

$5,624,124.04. 

21. Authorization to file a Notice of Completion for Pedestrian Roadway and Safety Improvements, City 

Project ST-134. 

22. Amendment No. 2 to the Sub-Reimbursement Agreement by and between Coachella Valley Association of 

Governments (CVAG), City of Coachella and Riverside County (County) for the Avenue 48 Widening 

Project between Van Buren and Dillon Road, City Project ST-131. 

23. Investment Report – February 2023 

 

Motion: To approve the Consent Calendar as printed with the removal of Item 19   

 

 Made by: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa 

 Seconded by: Mayor Hernandez  

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

AYES: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza 

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

(Councilmember Dr. Figueroa stepped away at 8:16 p.m. and returned at 8:19 p.m.) 

24. Professional Service Agreement with Michael Baker International to develop an updated Pavement 

Management System (PMS) Report. 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation    

 

 Made by: Councilmember Delgado  

 Seconded by: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa   

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

AYES: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza 

Page 11

Item 9.



Minutes City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting April 26, 2023 

Page 5 

 

25. Recommend updating park user fee schedule to reflect collection at 50% of the approved rates starting on 

July 1, 2023 and collection at 100% of the approved rates on January 1, 2024; recommend continuance of 

Public Field Use Days with Bagdouma Park Field 3 modification.   

 

Motion: To one-year continuance on Park User Fees with exception of approval of staff 

recommendation on Field 3.    

 

 Made by: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa 

 Seconded by: Mayor Hernandez  

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

AYES: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza 

26. Appointments to the Coachella Parks and Recreation Commission, five new Commissioners and one 

Alternate Commissioner.  

 Mayor Hernandez elected Andrew Gallegos, Councilmember Dr. Figueroa elected Karen Hernandez, 

Councilmember Virgen elected Marcos Granados Jr., Councilmember Delgado elected Robert Antonio 

Caballero, Mayor Pro Tem Galarza elected Rosalio Avila, and Mayor Hernandez elected J. Carlos Ayala 

for Alternate Commissioner.  

 Motion: To approve five new Commissioners and one Alternate Commissioners to the Coachella Parks 

and Recreation Commission    

 

 Made by: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa 

 Seconded by: Mayor Hernandez  

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

AYES: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

27. Community Facilities District (CFD No. 2005-01) Annexation 32 – (Placita Dolores Huerta– Phase 1 

Parcel Map No. 37833) 

a) Resolution No. 2023-20 Determining the Validity of Prior Proceedings relating to Annexation of Property 

(Annexation No. 32) in the City of Coachella CFD No. 2005-01 (Law Enforcement, Fire and Paramedic 

Services). 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation    

 

Page 12

Item 9.



Minutes City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting April 26, 2023 

Page 6 

 

 Made by: Councilmember Dr. Frank Figueroa 

 Seconded by: Councilmember Virgen   

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

AYES: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza 

 

b) Resolution No. 2023-21 on Behalf of CFD No. 2005-01 Calling a Special Election within Annexation Area 

No. 32 (Placita Dolores Huerta– Phase 1 Parcel Map No. 37833). 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation    

 

 Made by: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa 

 Seconded by: Councilmember Virgen   

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

AYES: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza 

 

c) Resolution No. 2023-22 Canvassing The Results of The Election Held Within CFD No. 2005-01 (Area No. 

32)  

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation    

 

 Made by: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa     

 Seconded by: Councilmember Virgen     

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

AYES: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza 

 

d) Ordinance No. 1202 on Behalf of CFD No. 2005-01 Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax within 

Annexation Area No. 32 Annexed to Said District (1st Reading) 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation    

 

 Made by: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa 

Page 13

Item 9.



Minutes City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting April 26, 2023 

Page 7 

 

 Seconded by: Mayor Hernandez  

 Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

AYES: Councilmember Dr. Figueroa, Councilmember Virgen, Councilmember Delgado, Mayor 

Hernandez 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Galarza 

(Public Hearing opened at 9:14 p.m. and closed at 9:14 p.m.) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

1. Robert Caballero  

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees: 

Councilmember Dr. Figueroa: 

1. Requested that city website be updated and more interactive. Information is buried and hard to find. 

2. Wants all meeting videos posted for transparency. 

 

Councilmember Virgen: 

1. Farmchella – Would like to know the number of families served that day.   

2. Requested that staff add language to agenda advising if there would be a “Fiscal Impact”, “General 

Fund”, and/or “Budget Impact”. 

 

Councilmember Delgado: 

1. Agreed with Councilmember Dr. Figueroa that website needed to be updated and user friendly.  

2. Requested City Manager Martin present on PIO and list of current projects.  

3. Keys to the City – wants to learn how we evaluate, what is the criteria and would like to participate in 

the selections. 

4. ARPA Funding – would like to see a presentation regarding the two items remaining and what else has 

been added from the study session. 

5. Disagrees with council regarding cancellations of Council Meeting.  

6. Dog Neutering – What is the fee? Do dogs have to be registered? 

 

Mayor Hernandez: 

1. Wants to look into mandating alternate transportation. Master Plan to implement charging stations as 

current stations are not sufficient.  

2. CV Link will break ground this year. Have it on your radar. 

 

City Manager’s Comments: 

1. LAFCO – 60 days draft report. Will need council’s comments.  

Page 14

Item 9.



Minutes City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting April 26, 2023 

Page 8 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to come before the City Council and the Agencies, Mayor Hernandez adjourned 

the meeting at 9:44 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Angela Zepada 

City Clerk  

City of Coachella  

Page 15

Item 9.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Award maintenance agreement to Vintage Landscape for Landscape 

Maintenance Services for Bagdouma Park Project No. 031623. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award maintenance agreement to Vintage Landscape for Landscape Maintenance Services for 

Bagdouma Park Project No. 031623. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City published a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Landscape Maintenance Services for 

Bagdouma Park Project.  This RFP closed on April 24, 2023 and the City received two responses.  

As included in the RFP, the selection criteria used to identify the most qualified Proposer was 

based upon the highest scoring proposer; scoring was completed based upon a three-member staff 

selection panel.  Each panelist member scored all proposals received per the evaluation criteria 

established in the RFP (total points 100):  

• Contractor Information (Including References) – 20 Points   

• Proposed Project Work Schedules – 25 Points   

• Proposed Facilities, Equipment, Materials, and Staffing Schedule – 20 Points  

• Communications, Traffic Safety, Green waste – 5 Points 

• Cost Proposal – 25 Points  

• Completeness, Thoroughness, Clarity, and Neatness of Proposal – 5 Points  

 

Based upon these selection criteria, the top ranked proposer selected was Vintage Associates Inc. 

The scores and service amounts submitted by each proposer are listed below: 

Scores  1 2 3   Totals  

           (Max is 300) 

Mariposa Landscape Inc.  82 83 78   243 

Vintage Landscape  88 93 91   272 

      

      

Page 16

Item 10.



Prices for Services  Annual Amounts     

        

Mariposa Landscape Inc.   $   371,280.00      

Vintage Landscape   $    304,800.00      

 

Staff recommends award of the RFP and corresponding landscape maintenance agreement in an 

amount not to exceed $381,000 (two-year term); the recommended award amount is the two-year 

contract amount of $304,800 plus a 25% contingency to allow for plant/turf replacement and 

overseeding as needed throughout the agreement term.  The agreement, as identified in the RFP, 

will have a two-year term.  The term for the proposed agreement is from July 23, 2023 – July 22, 

2025. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The recommended action will not have a negative impact on the budget.  . 

 

Attachment: 

Proposed Agreement  

 

 

Page 17

Item 10.



1 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT – PROJECT NO. 031623 

 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this May 10, 2023 by and between the 

City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

California with its principal place of business at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, 

California 92236 (“City”) and Vintage Associates Inc.,(DBA Vintage Landscape) a 

corporation, with its principal place of business at 78-755 Darby Road, Bermuda Dunes, 

CA 92203 (“Contractor”).  City and Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as 

“Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 Contractor. 

Contractor desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 

maintenance services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement.  Contractor represents that it is experienced in providing landscape 

maintenance services to public clients, that it and its employees or subcontractors have 

all necessary licenses and permits to perform the Services in the State of California, and 

that is familiar with the plans of the City.   

2.2 Project. 

City desires to engage Contractor to render such services for the Landscape 

Maintenance Services for: Bagdouma Park Project No. 031623 (“Project”) as set forth in 

this Agreement. 

 

Page 18

Item 10.



2 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 Incorporation of Documents.  The “Contract Documents” include the 
following: 

Notice Inviting Bids  
Instructions to Bidders 
Contractor’s Bid Forms 
Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation  
Bid Bond 
Designation of Subcontractors 
Information Required of Bidders 
Non-Collusion Affidavit form 
Contract  
Performance Bond 
 Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond 
General Conditions  
Special Provisions (or Special Conditions)  
Technical Specifications 
Addenda 
Response to Request for Proposal 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 
 
3.1.2 General Scope of Services.  Contractor promises and agrees to 

furnish to the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and 

customary work necessary to fully and adequately supply the landscape maintenance 

services necessary for the Project  (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly 

described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All 

Services shall be subject to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the 

exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, 

state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

3.1.3 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from July 23, 2023 to July 

22, 2025 unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Contractor shall complete the 

Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established 

schedules and deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term 

of this Agreement by one additional one-year term.   

Page 19

Item 10.



3 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.2 Responsibilities of Contractor. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 

Services shall be performed by Contractor or under its supervision.  Contractor will 

determine the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the 

requirements of this Agreement.  City retains Contractor on an independent contractor 

basis and not as an employee.  Contractor retains the right to perform similar or different 

services for others during the term of this Agreement.  Any additional personnel 

performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Contractor shall also not be 

employees of City and shall at all times be under Contractor’s exclusive direction and 

control.  Contractor shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due such personnel 

in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as required 

by law.  Contractor shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 

additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax 

withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ compensation 

insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services 

expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of 

Services set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

Contractor represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to 

perform the Services in conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate 

Contractor’s conformance with the Schedule, City shall respond to Contractor’s submittals 

in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, Contractor shall provide a more detailed 

schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 

Contractor shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Contractor has represented to City 

that certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  

Should one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Contractor may substitute 

other personnel of at least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event 

Page 20

Item 10.



4 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

that City and Contractor cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall 

be entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel 

who fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are 

determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or 

timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be 

promptly removed from the Project by the Contractor at the request of the City.  The key 

personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: Kyle Gritters. 

 

3.2.5 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates the City 

Manager, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 

Agreement (“City’s Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act 

on behalf of the City for all purposes under this Contract.  Contractor shall not accept 

direction or orders from any person other than the City’s Representative or his or her 

designee. 

3.2.6 Contractor’s Representative.  Contractor hereby designates Kyle 

Gritters, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 

Agreement (“Contractor’s Representative”).  Contractor’s Representative shall have full 

authority to represent and act on behalf of the Contractor for all purposes under this 

Agreement.  The Contractor’s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, 

using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, 

techniques, sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all 

portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Contractor agrees to work closely with City 

staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, Contractors and 

other staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Contractor shall 

perform all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent 

with the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same 

discipline in the State of California.  Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled 

Page 21

Item 10.



5 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

in the professional calling necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor warrants that 

all employees and subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the 

Services assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor represents that it, its employees and 

subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature 

that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City Business License, and 

that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this 

Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, 

Contractor shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from 

the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the 

Contractor’s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee 

of the Contractor or its sub-Contractors who is determined by the City to be 

uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, 

a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to 

perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from 

the Project by the Contractor and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services 

or to work on the Project. 

3.2.8.1 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. 

Contractor shall perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term 

set forth in Section 3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Contractor shall also perform the 

Services in strict accordance with any completion schedule or Project milestones 

described in Exhibits “A” or “B” attached hereto, or which may be separately agreed upon 

in writing by the City and Contractor (“Performance Milestones”).  Contractor agrees that 

if the Services are not completed within the aforementioned Performance Time and/or 

pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed pursuant to provisions of this 

Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer damage.  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 53069.85, Contractor shall pay to the City as fixed 

and liquidated damages the sum of two hundred dollars ($200.00) per day for each and 

every calendar day of delay beyond the Performance Time or beyond any Project 

Milestones established pursuant to this Agreement. 

Page 22

Item 10.



6 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of 

and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any 

manner affecting the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA 

requirements, and shall give all notices required by law.  Contractor shall be liable for all 

violations of such laws and regulations in connection with Services.  If the Contractor 

performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and 

without giving written notice to the City, Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs 

arising therefrom.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, 

officers, employees, and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the indemnification 

provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged 

failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Contractor shall not commence 

Work under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it 

has secured all insurance required under this section.  In addition, Contractor shall not 

allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided 

evidence satisfactory to the City that the subcontractor has secured all insurance required 

under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Contractor shall, at its 

expense, procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against 

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 

connection with the performance of the Agreement by the Contractor, its agents, 

representatives, employees or subcontractors.  Contractor shall also require all of its 

subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the duration of the 

Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of coverage: 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at 

least as broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance 

Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) 

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 

Page 23

Item 10.



7 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

0001, code 1 (any auto); and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: 

Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s 

Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Contractor shall 

maintain limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily 

injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance 

or other form with general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 

2503, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location 

or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile 

Liability:  $1,000,000; per accident for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) 

Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as 

required by the Labor Code of the State of California.  Employer’s Liability limits of 

$1,000,000  per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

3.2.10.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall 

contain the following provisions, or Contractor shall provide endorsements on forms 

supplied or approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 

endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or 

operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor, including materials, parts or 

equipment furnished in connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall 

be primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess 

of the Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 

shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute 

with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy 

shall be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

Page 24

Item 10.



8 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the 

ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, 

hired or borrowed by the Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible; and (2) 

the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an 

unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  

Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, 

employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 

shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the 

terms of the insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Contractor. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, 

reduced or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with 

reporting or other provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not 

affect coverage provided to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

and volunteers. 

3.2.10.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All 

insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds 

provisions.  In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the 

scope of protection afforded to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any 

deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  

Contractor shall guarantee that, at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall 

reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its 

Page 25

Item 10.



9 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or (2) the Contractor shall 

procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, 

and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.10.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with 

insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in 

California, and satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.7 Verification of Coverage.  Contractor shall furnish City 

with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by 

this Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for 

each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 

coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.  All 

certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work 

commences.  The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 

required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.10.8 Reporting of Claims.  Contractor shall report to the City, 

in addition to Contractor’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Contractor 

in connection with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Contractor shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 

injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Contractor 

shall at all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules 

and regulations, and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees 

appropriate to the nature of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be 

performed.  Safety precautions as applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) 

adequate life protection and life saving equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in 

accident prevention for all employees and subContractors, such as safe walkways, 

scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, 

trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing 

apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) 

adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

Page 26

Item 10.



10 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Contractor shall receive compensation, including 

authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates 

set forth in Exhibit ”C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total 

compensation shall not exceed three hundred eighty-one thousand dollars and zero 

cents ($381,000.00) without written approval of City’s City Council.  Extra Work may be 

authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and 

manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Contractor shall submit to City a monthly 

itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by 

Contractor.  The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided 

since the initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, 

as appropriate, through the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving 

such statement, review the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Contractor shall not be reimbursed 

for any expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 

request that Contractor perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any 

work which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, 

but which the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution 

of this Agreement.  Contractor shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work 

without written authorization from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Contractor is aware of the requirements of 

California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code 

of Regulations, Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require, if 

applicable, the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other 

requirements on “public works” and “maintenance” projects.  If applicable the Services 

are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, as 

Page 27

Item 10.



11 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if applicable the total compensation is $1,000 

or more, Contractor agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  City shall 

provide Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the 

commencement of this Agreement.  Contractor shall make copies of the prevailing rates 

of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the 

Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the 

Contractor’s principal place of business and at the project site.  Contractor shall defend, 

indemnify and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and 

harmless from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply 

with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Contractor shall maintain complete 

and accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this 

Agreement.  All such records shall be clearly identifiable.  Contractor shall allow a 

representative of City during normal business hours to examine, audit, and make 

transcripts or copies of such records and any other documents created pursuant to this 

Agreement. Contractor shall allow inspection of all work, data, documents, proceedings, 

and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years from the date of final 

payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice 

to Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without 

cause by giving written notice to Contractor of such termination, and specifying the 

effective date thereof, at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  

Upon termination, Contractor shall be compensated only for those services which have 

been adequately rendered to City, and Contractor shall be entitled to no further 

compensation.  Contractor may not terminate this Agreement except for cause. 

Page 28

Item 10.



12 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated 

as provided herein, City may require Contractor to provide all finished or unfinished 

Documents and Data and other information of any kind prepared by Contractor in 

connection with the performance of Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be 

required to provide such document and other information within fifteen (15) days of the 

request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is 

terminated in whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and 

in such manner as it may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this 

Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such 

other address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

Contractor: 

Vintage Associates Inc 

78-755 Darby Road 

Bermuda Dunes, CA 92203 

Attn: David Smith  

 

City: 

City of Coachella 

53462 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Attn:  Maritza Martinez, Public Works Department  

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, 

forty-eight (48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and 

addressed to the party at its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate 

notice on the date actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

 

Page 29

Item 10.



13 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  

This Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, 

modify, reuse, or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual 

property embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other 

documents or works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including 

but not limited to, physical drawings or data magnetically or otherwise recorded on 

computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be prepared by Contractor under 

this Agreement (“Documents & Data”).  Contractor shall require all subcontractors to 

agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for any 

Documents & Data the subcontractor prepares under this Agreement.  Contractor 

represents and warrants that Contractor has the legal right to license any and all 

Documents & Data.  Contractor makes no such representation and warranty in regard to 

Documents & Data which were prepared by design professionals other than Contractor 

or provided to Contractor by the City.  City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the 

Documents and Data at any time, provided that any such use not within the purposes 

intended by this Agreement shall be at City’s sole risk. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, 

plans, procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, 

written information, and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to 

Contractor in connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential 

by Contractor.  Such materials shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used 

by Contractor for any purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall 

such materials be disclosed to any person or entity not connected with the performance 

of the Services or the Project.  Nothing furnished to Contractor which is otherwise known 

to Contractor or is generally known, or has become known, to the related industry shall 

be deemed confidential.  Contractor shall not use City’s name or insignia, photographs of 

the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or the Project in any magazine, 

trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other similar medium without 

the prior written consent of City. 

Page 30

Item 10.



14 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be 

necessary, appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the 

other party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with 

this Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover 

from the losing party reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the 

City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any 

and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or 

injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner 

arising out of or incident to any alleged acts, omissions or willful misconduct of Contractor, 

its officials, officers, employees, agents, Contractors, and contractors arising out of or in 

connection with the performance of the Services, the Project or this Agreement, including 

without limitation the payment of all consequential damages and attorneys fees and other 

related costs and expenses. Contractor shall defend, at Contractor’s own cost, expense 

and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every kind 

that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, or volunteers.  Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree 

that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Contractor shall 

reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, 

for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith 

or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Contractor’s obligation to indemnify shall 

not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, officials 

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.   

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement 

of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior 

Page 31

Item 10.



15 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

negotiations, understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by 

a writing signed by both parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 

the State of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every 

provision of this Agreement. 

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Contractors.  City reserves right to 

employ other Contractors in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the 

successors and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Contractor shall not assign, hypothecate or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein 

without the prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, 

and any assignees, hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by 

reason of such attempted assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their 

agents have participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this 

Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or 

against any Party.  Any term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be 

deemed calendar days and not work days.  All references to Contractor include all 

personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of Contractor, except as otherwise 

specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its elected officials, officers, 

employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  The 

captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of reference 

only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content or intent of this 

Agreement. 

Page 32

Item 10.



16 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or 

amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by 

both Parties. 

3.5.15 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any 

other default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, 

benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other 

Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 

beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 

remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests.  Contractor maintains and warrants that it has 

not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 

working solely for Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Contractor 

warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than 

a bona fide employee working solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, 

brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 

making of this Agreement.  Contractor further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees 

or subcontractors to file, a Statement of Economic Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as 

required under state law in the performance of the Services.  For breach or violation of 

this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the 

term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of City, during the term of his or 

her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 

present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Contractor represents that it is an 

equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, 

employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, 

Page 33

Item 10.



17 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

handicap, ancestry, sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited 

to, all activities related to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment 

or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination.  Contractor shall also comply with all 

relevant provisions of City’s Minority Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action 

Plan or other related programs or guidelines currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor certifies 

that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which 

require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to 

undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to 

comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Contractor has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  

Each Party warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal 

power, right, and authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.22 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each 

of which shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Contractor shall not subcontract any 

portion of the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without 

prior written approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them 

subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

Page 34

Item 10.



18 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

CITY OF COACHELLA   VINTAGE ASSOCIATES INC DBA VINTAGE 

LANDSCAPE 

By:                                                      By:                                                      

Dr. Gabriel D. Martin  Kyle Gritters     

City Manager     President     

Attest:       Attest: 

                                                                                                        

City Clerk       

Approved as to form: 

_________________________ 

Best, Best & Krieger  

 

 

Page 35

Item 10.



19 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

These Specific Terms and Conditions (hereinafter referred to as “specifications”) 
establish the City of Coachella’s standards for the maintenance of the landscaped 
areas listed in Contract Agreement Exhibit “A”. Please note level of service required 
for this contract is Level of Service A as these areas are high visibility areas. 

1. Scope of Work 
a. The intent of the Agreement is to secure a Contractor which shall provide 

Landscape Maintenance Services. 
b. Contractors shall furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment, except 

where otherwise specified, to provide landscape maintenance services as 
set forth in this Agreement. 

c. All work shall be done in a thorough and workmanlike manner to the 
satisfaction of the Director of Public Works, or his/her authorized agent, and 
comply with all legal construction and landscape maintenance practices. 
The premises shall be maintained at the level of service provided for in these 
specifications at all times. 

d. Contractors shall have the duty to provide landscape maintenance of City 
Parks and Office Facilities work sites according to each site schedule 
including, but not limited to, the following: 

i. Prune, shape and trim shrubs, vines and ground cover plants. 
ii. Control weeds. 
iii. Mow and edge turf grass and blow hardscape clean. 
iv. Maintain plant material in a healthy condition with horticultural 

acceptable growth and color. 
v. Perform general area clean-up, including the removal of leaves, 

trash, dog feces and other debris at each site. 
vi. Maintain all work sites in a safe, attractive and usable condition. 
vii. Empty trash cans and remove letter at each site. 
viii. Contractors shall contact the assigned City Representative or 

designee on a daily basis to discuss the contractor work schedule for 
the day, existing problems, or other important information. 

ix. Contractors shall perform a maintenance inspection, during daylight 
hours, of all areas. 

x. Contractors shall attend a mandatory inspectors’ meeting each week 
in order to receive important information and resolve any problems. 

xi. Contractor shall complete and submit a monthly Site Inspection form 
per each site. 

Page 36

Item 10.



20 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

xiii. Contractor shall recycle green waste generated from their contract 
performance and submit a monthly report identifying the weight and 
/or volume of green waste recycled. 

xiv. Contractors shall be available twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) 
days a week to respond to all emergencies within two (2) hours 
of notification. (Emergencies that involve maintenance work  
included in these general conditions shall not be compensated). 

Failure to provide the manpower, equipment, tools, materials, services, and special 
skills necessary to accomplish above Scope of Work to the standard established by 
these specifications may result in a Performance Deficiency Deduction and/or a 
reduction in payment. 

CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE REQUIREMENTS 

 City of Coachella Business license (current) 
 C-27 Landscape Contractors License (current and active) 
 State of California Pesticide License QAL for chemical applications category B 
(current and active) 
 State of California Pest Control Business License (current) 

 County of Riverside Pesticide Business License Registration (current) 

MANDATORY INITIAL INSPECTION & ACCEPTANCE OF 
DESIGNATED LANDSCAPE AREAS 

The Public Works Director (or Director’s designee) and the Contractor shall conduct 
an inspection of the designated landscape areas covered under this Contract-
Agreement as soon as practicable after its execution, and prior to commencement of 
Contractor's operations. The purpose is to allow the Contractor and the City 
representative to observe and note any deficiencies or potential problems with 
landscape area plant materials, decomposed granite/gravel areas, or designated 
hardscape surfaces and structures. 

A. It is the Contractor's responsibility to identify unacceptable plant material  
before inception of the contract. 

B. The Public Works Director or his designee and the Contractor will perform an  
operational irrigation inspection. 

Any corrective items that are observed during the initial inspection, and acknowledged 
by both parties, may be resolved with the current Contractor or with the successful 
Contractor on a "one time only" extra work basis. After a specified time frame for 
corrections the landscape area plant materials, and designated 

Page 37

Item 10.



21 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

hardscape surfaces and structures will be turned over to the Contractor for contract 
maintenance. Thereafter, failure to maintain designated landscape areas up to this 
established standard shall result in the City deducting payment of all or part of the 
Contractor's compensation, as noted in pertinent sections of these General Terms & 
Conditions, as well as in the Special Terms & Conditions. 

CONTRACTOR’S WORK SCHEDULES 

It is the intent to schedule maintenance in a manner that keeps the designated 
landscape areas in a state of healthy, vigorous growth. 

The Contractor shall submit a Maintenance Schedule provided to the City scheduling 
the Maintenance Operations, including but not limited to the tasks identified in the 
below chart. The suggested regularity with which these tasks are to be scheduled are 
as recommended below or as needed per the direction of the City Representative, 
whichever achieves the desired service level. 

Bi 

Daily Weekly Weekly Monthly Quarterly Annually 

Mowing and Edging 
 1x &/or 

2x 
    

Litter Removal X      

Weed Control   X    

Minor Tree Pruning    X   

Ground Cover Edge/Trim   X    

Shrub Trimming   X    

DG Raking   X    

Parkway Area Main.   X    

Overseeding 
(triple blend) 

     
2x 

Fertilization Application     X  

Herbicide Application       

Pest Control    X   

Hardscape Surfaces  X      

The Contractor shall submit immediately upon issuance of notice to proceed a work 
schedule for each designated landscape area, which will include as minimum the 
following: 

A. Crew Size to be determined for the life of the contract 
B. Time and Date for each activity specifying when each work will be completed 

Page 38

Item 10.



22 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

At the Mandatory Initial Inspection meeting, the Contractor will present a temporary 
or base line schedule of work for the upcoming year. It is preferred that a computer-
scheduling program compatible with City software be used to generate this schedule. 
At 30 days from start of contract, a permanent schedule will be given to the City, 
hereinafter referred to as the FREQUENCY SCHEDULE. Failure to provide this 
schedule to the City in the appropriate time shall result in termination of the contract; 
failure to adhere to the Frequency Schedule shall result in PERFORMANCE 
DEFICIENCY DEDUCTIONS. 

Monthly Walk-Through and Reports 

The Contractor, as part of this agreement, will submit a monthly report with invoice. 
Failure to submit reports and schedules in the time specified shall result in a $200 
Performance Deficiency Deduction per occurrence, delay in payment, and/or 
termination of the contract. The Contractor may submit the monthly report and 
schedule using a computer based program or, the Contractor may submit the report 
and schedule in writing. It is preferred that a computer-scheduling program compatible 
with City software be used to generate this schedule. The following information must 
be included on the monthly schedule: 

A. Schedule of maintenance: At the end of each month, the Contractor’s 
representative and the City representative shall have a walk through of the 
Parks. The walk-through will focus on but not be limited to: work just completed, 
seasonal maintenance tasks, the Frequency Schedule and its pertinent tasks, 
as well as any Extra Work needed. This will generate a punch list from which 
the contractor will develop the next month’s schedule. 
1. Contractor shall provide a schedule of maintenance at the start of each 

month identifying areas to be maintained and a time frame of when each 
function shall be performed. This schedule should include the Frequency 
Schedule as it pertains to the maintenance for that month. 

2. Monthly schedules shall be adjusted to compensate for all City-recognized 
holidays. 

3. Monthly schedules shall be adjusted as directed by the City representative. 
B. The Public Works Department or city staff may request to be part of the Walk-

Through or at any time the City deems it necessary. 
1. The City will assume that the Contractor will adhere to the schedule. The 

City must receive notification of changes at least 12 hours in advance of the 
scheduled time for performance of the work. 

2. Failure to notify the City of a schedule change and/or failure to perform an 
item of work on the scheduled day may result in a payment adjustment to 
reflect only the work actually accomplished. 

3. A monthly report, including an irrigation inspection report, based upon the 
schedule outlined in the Frequency Schedule and will be turned in at the 
monthly walk through meeting. Failure to submit this report at the time of 

Page 39

Item 10.



23 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

the monthly walk through meeting may result in a $200 Performance 
Deficiency Deduction per occurrence. 

A. A monthly report, based upon the approved monthly schedule, and green 
waste recycling reports, will be turned in at the monthly walk through 
meeting. Failure to submit this report at the time of the monthly walk through 
meeting may result in a $200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per 
occurrence. 

SAFETY 

Contractor shall conduct all operations performed under this Agreement in a manner 
that complies with all applicable federal, state, and local safety laws, rules, orders, and 
regulations, including but not limited to those set forth in the contract’s General Terms 
and Conditions, as well as those set forth in these specifications. 

REPORTING DAMANGE/MALFUNCTION/VANDALISM 

Any damage to, or malfunction of, any irrigation systems, any facility not specifically 
stated in this Agreement shall be promptly reported to the Director. Contractors shall 
be responsible for reporting any vandalism/theft of existing landscaped areas which 
are maintained under this contract and damaged or altered in any way as a result of 
theft and/or mysterious damages that do not result from the performance of the 
Contractors. 

STORAGE FACILITIES 

The City of Coachella shall not provide any storage facilities for the Contractors. 

PLANT MAINTENANCE 

A. All plant material shall be maintained as needed to prevent obstruction as well 
as possible safety concerns to vehicles, pedestrians and/or the general public. 
Shrubs shall be maintained to create adequate line-of-sight vision for vehicles 
where applicable. All vegetation shall be maintained in such a manner as to 
eliminate over growth beyond its designated parameter and/or encroachment 
onto sidewalks or curbs. Keep plants located adjacent to sidewalks at a 
maximum height of three (3) feet and pruned back one (1) foot from edge of 
sidewalk. 

B. Dead material shall be pruned from plants as they occur. There shall be no 
dead blossoms, stalks, branches or foliage left on an otherwise healthy plant 
for more than one week, unless otherwise directed by the City and/or 
contract. 

 

Page 40

Item 10.



24 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

C. Plant material is to be pruned in a manner that is described as a two-step, 
naturalistic pruning procedure. The City may, at its own discretion, alter time 
lines or techniques, as the City deems necessary. 

D. The Contractor shall be responsible for replacing dead plant material, at no 
cost to the City, that dies 30 days from commencement of the contract and 
throughout the term of this contract due to neglect, lack of maintenance or 
improper care. 

E. It is the Contractor's responsibility to identify unacceptable plant material before 
inception of the contract. This will be accomplished during the mandatory 
acceptance walk through with the City representative(s) and the Contractor. 

TREE MAINTENANCE 

A. Trees shall be pruned as needed to remove broken or diseased branches, or 
for traffic and pedestrian safety. Sidewalk clearance will be eight feet and 
vehicular clearance fourteen feet from grade. Any broken, structurally unsound 
or detached limb is considered a hazard. Suckers will be removed as they 
appear. 

B. The Contractor is only responsible for trees under fifteen feet in height for 
safety and sucker control only. Palm Trees under fifteen (15) feet in height are 
the responsibility of the contractor. All other tree pruning will be performed 
under a separate contract, including palm trees. Dead palm fronds and 
seedpods however, shall be removed from trees less than 15 feet as they 
appear. 

C. In order to promote proper form, strength, health, and appearance consistent 
with their intended use, any tree pruning done at the request of the City shall 
be consistent with: the current and applicable International Society of 
Arboriculture (ISA) guidelines; American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 
standards, including but not limited to ANSI 300 (most current revision) and 
ANSI Z133 (most current revision); Chapters 12.24 (Street Trees) and 12.28 
(Palm Trees) of Title 12 of the City of Coachella’s Municipal Code. 

D. NO TOPPING OF TREES WILL BE ALLOWED. 
E. The Contractor shall be responsible for all tree staking. Ties will be monitored 

to prevent girdling. Remove ties and stakes as directed by the City. Broken 
stakes are to be removed and if appropriate, replaced. Contractor shall replace 
tree stakes within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving a corrective action 
notification from the City; failure to adhere to this specification shall result in a 
$200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per site for each day Deficiency 
remains uncorrected beyond deadline. Stakes should not remain on the trees 
longer than 6 months. If the tree cannot stand upright once stakes are 
removed, the City will then determine whether or not to replace the tree. 

 

F. The Contractor shall remove their debris from pruning and tree maintenance 

Page 41

Item 10.



25 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

the same working day as accumulated. See also LITTER  
CONTROL/DEBRIS REMOVAL Section below. 

G. The Contractor shall be held responsible for any damages done to trees due 
to poor management procedures. The Contractor shall replace trees, at no cost 
to the City, that die 30 days after acceptance of the contract due to neglect, 
lack of maintenance, infestation or improper care. This does not include those 
trees identified on the mandatory walk with the City and the Contractor. 

H. Any trees broken or damaged as a direct result of storm damage, wind, accident 
or vandalism shall be pruned and/or removed within 24 hours of notification and 
may be considered an Extra Work to the Contract. Any debris blocking 
roadways or parking areas shall be removed within one hour of notification to 
Contractor. Replacement of trees and plants caused by reasons not related to 
contractual maintenance shall be reimbursable as an Extra Work item. 

I. An 18” radius tree well will be maintained around the trunks of trees growing in 
turf or ground cover areas. Shrubs and/or shrub canopies shall not be permitted 
to encroach within 12” of tree trunks or root crowns. No weed eater shall be 
used around trees. 

SHRUB MAINTENANCE 

A. Pruning  
1. Shrubs shall be pruned as required for safety, removal of broken and 

diseased branches, general containment, and appearance. 
2. All shrubbery shall be pruned, trimmed, thinned, and suckers removed to 

properly contain their size with respect to species, size of planters and the 
best health of the plant and/or as described in the Frequency Schedule; 
coordinate with City representative. 

3. Pruning shall be done with sharp pruning tools and no weed eaters. 
4. Prune shrubs to retain as much of the natural informal appearances as 

possible, consistent with intended use. Coordinate with City representative. 
5. Shrubs used as formal hedges or screens shall be pruned as required to 

present a neat appearance. 
6. All pruning cuts shall be one quarter (1/4) inch above a node (bud). No 

projections or stubs shall be allowed to remain. 
7. Pruning shall be done to maintain a well-groomed, laced-out appearance, and 

encourage air movement through the shrub. 
8. Care shall be taken to prevent soil build-up around the crown of shrubs. 
9. Contractor shall remove all clippings the same day shrubbery is pruned and 

prior to vacating the work site. 
10. Remove any spent blossoms or dead flower stalks as required to present a 

neat appearance. 
11. Shrubs and mounding shall not exceed 2 feet in height within areas required 

Page 42

Item 10.



26 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

for vehicle sight distance depending upon roadway topography. 
B. Shrubbery Replacement  

The Contractor shall be responsible for the complete removal and replacement 
of shrubbery lost due to the contractor’s faulty maintenance or negligence, as 
determined by the City representative. 

C. Pruning Schedule  
Shrubs shall be pruned and trimmed as needed or as requested by the City’s 
representative. Shrubs shall be pruned and trimmed using sound horticultural 
techniques. Shrubs shall be maintained within the limits of confined areas (i.e., 
narrow medians, walkways, etc.) so as not to encroach on same. In addition, 
all shrubs shall be trimmed to maintain horizontal clearance along all walkways 
and trails to prevent encroachment onto private property and to remove dead, 
damaged or diseased plant material. 

D. Fertilization  
SEE FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS Section below. 

E. Cultivation  
Contractor shall cultivate around shrub and tree areas and tree wells 
sufficiently and often enough to control weed growth and maintain existing 
irrigation and drainage ditches. 

F. Irrigation (Deep Soaking)  

See WATER MANAGEMENT Section below. 

TURF GRASS MAINTENANCE 

A. General  
1. Turf Grass Mowing: 

a. Contractor shall mow all turf grass with adequately sharpened reel or 
rotary type mowers as to provide a smooth and even cut without tearing of 
turf grass blades. 

b. The blade adjustment shall provide a uniform, level cut without 
ridges, depressions or scalping. 

c. All turf grasses to be cut at a two and one-half (2 1/2) inch 
height throughout the year. 

d. Turf grass mowing heights may be adjusted by the Public Works Director. 

e. All turf grass clippings shall be picked up and removed to a legal dumping 
site prior to vacating the work site after each mowing. 

f. Care shall be exercised to avoid depressions in the established grade 
from mowing when the soil is saturated. 

Page 43

Item 10.



27 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

a. Contractor shall submit, in writing, a mowing schedule within ten 
(10) days after the start of the maintenance. This mowing schedule 
shall be approved by the Public Works Director. 

b. All areas shall be mowed once every week. Failure to adhere to this 
specification shall result in a $200 Performance Deficiency 
Deduction per acre, per occurrence. 

c. Any alteration of the approved mowing schedule shall be submitted 
in writing to the Public Works Director for approval prior to 
implementation. 

2. Turf Grass Edging and Trimming: 

a. Turf grass edging and trimming shall be performed once every week. 
Failure to adhere to this specification shall result in a $200 
Performance Deficiency Deduction per field/site, per occurrence. 

b. Edging of turf grass shall be performed with a power edger containing a 
steel blade. 

c. All turf adjacent to sidewalks, curbs, mowing strips, shrub beds, where no 
improved surface exists, shall be edged in a neat uniform line. 

d. Trimming of turf grass shall be performed along walls, and around 
valve boxes, water meter boxes, backflow devices, trees shrubs, or 
any structures located within the turf grass area. 

e. In areas where there is no mow curb, a six (6) inch barren strip shall be 
provided, and maintained, between turf grass and adjacent ground 
cover. Edging of turf grass and ground cover shall provide uniform 
delineation adjacent to this barren strip. 

f. Trimming of plant material may be required around sprinklers to provide 
maximum irrigation coverage. 

g. All clippings shall be removed from the work site the same day work is 
performed and prior to a Contractor vacating the work site. 

h. After mowing and edging is completed, all adjacent walkways and 
gutters shall be swept clean. 

i. See FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS Section below. 

3. Overseeding: 

a. Contractor shall be responsible for scalp and seed for winter, and seed for 
summer. Contractor shall comply with Section 5.05.010 of the City 
Coachella’s Municipal Code. Coordinate with City representative; City to 
provide seed. 

Page 44

Item 10.



28 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

 
GROUND COVER MAINTENANCE 

 

A. General  

1. Trim ground cover adjacent to walks, walls and/or fences as required for 
general containment to present a neat, clean appearance, with neat uniform 
lines. 

2. Remove broad-leafed and grass weeds as required. Weeds shall be controlled 
and not allowed to reach two-inch (2”) height. Remove weeds by chemical or 
mechanical means as approved by City representative. See also WEED 
CONTROL, PEST CONTROL, and HERBICIDES Sections below. 

3. Prevent soil compaction by cultivating regularly all ground cover areas. 
4. Remove debris that accumulates on ground fixed lighting fixtures. 
5. Any paper or litter that accumulates in ground cover areas shall be picked up 

on a daily basis. See also LITTER CONTROL/DEBRIS REMOVAL Section 
below. 

6. Keep ground cover trimmed back from all drip line irrigations, controller units, 
valve boxes, quick couplers, or other appurtenances or fixtures. Do not allow 
ground cover to grow up the trunk of trees, into shrubs, on structures or walls 
unless directed by the City representative. Keep trimmed back approximately 
4 inches from structure or walls and two (2) inches from sidewalks, curbs, mow 
curbs, and walkways. Coordinate trimming around base of shrubs/trees with 
City representative. 

7. Trimming of ground cover may be required around sprinklers to provide 
maximum irrigation coverage. 

8. Bare soil area shall be cultivated a minimum of once per month and/or mulched 
as directed by the City representative (mulch will be supplied or paid for by the 
City). 

9. All clippings and trimmings shall be removed from the work site the same day 
work is performed and prior to the Contractor vacating the work site. 

10. After edging or trimming, the Contractors shall sweep clean all adjacent 
sidewalks or gutters. 

11. See FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS Section below. 

WEED CONTROL 

A. Planters, gravel areas, sidewalks, curb and gutters, expansion joints, fence lines, 
drainage areas, bare areas, and around plants and trees shall be kept free of grass 
and weeds. This will be done on an as-needed basis. 

B. The Contractor shall perform weed removal and shall identify in their schedules 
approximate time frames for performing this function. Failure to adhere to this 
specification shall result in a $200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per site 
for each day Deficiency remains uncorrected. Acceptable methods of control are: 
Annual weeds, mechanical and/or chemical methods. Perennial weeds such as 
Bermuda grass, nutsedge (species), bindweed, pennisetum grass shall be 
controlled with chemical means only. 

Page 45

Item 10.



29 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

C. After weeds have been sprayed and removed, the Contractor shall rake or sweep 
the area removing any debris generated as a result of the weed control process. 

D. Chemical herbicide control is the responsibility of the Contractor. The 
Frequency Schedule outlines the minimum herbicide controls. If weed control 
has not been maintained as specified, the City may require additional herbicide 
applications at no additional cost to the City. Preventative weed control, such 
as pre-emergent herbicides and post-emergent herbicides is the responsibility 
of the Contractor. See also PEST CONTROL and HERBICIDES Sections 
below. 

PEST CONTROL 

General  

The Contractor shall provide complete and continuous control and/or eradication of all 
plant pests at no extra cost, including: weeds; insects, mites, nematodes, and other 
invertebrates; gophers, squirrels, rats, mice, and other vertebrates; snails and slugs; 
pathogens and diseases. 

Controls to include necessary use of integrated pest control systems involving the use 
of life history information and extensive monitoring. Control through prevention, cultural 
practices, pesticide applications, exclusion, natural enemies and host resistance. 

The only exception to this is with regards to bees. The contractor will be responsible 
for reporting to the City any bee activity (swarms or hives) immediately. 

All areas of the landscape shall be inspected for infestations of harmful pests. Leaves 
that may be blotched, blighted, deformed, mildewed, rusted, scorched, discolored, 
defoliated, or wilted should be noted. Identify the cause of injury and consult a Pest 
Control Advisor before application of chemical treatments. 

At certain times of the year, and with certain environmental conditions, the presence 
of certain pests can be anticipated; start preventative cultural methods before a pest 
is visible. Inspect new growth for the presence of aphids, leaf hoppers, scale, mealy 
bugs, and mites. Look for ants on soil, along walks, and trunks of shrubs and trees. 
Control adult beetles before they lay eggs on bark in the spring. Ongoing inspections 
are necessary to determine if there is a summer brood. Snails shall be controlled 
before becoming epidemic. They can be anticipated as a menace from spring until the 
advent of high temperatures, wherever moist soil prevails. 

Pruning may be an effective prevention of an epidemic of insects and diseases. 
Removing infected parts and disposing of them off site separates the pest or pathogen 
from the host. Examples are Pine tree tip month, Juniper twig girdler, Verticillium wilt, 
and some other fungal caused blights of foliage. Proper thinning of 

Page 46

Item 10.



30 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

tree foliage, to provide light and aeration for groundcover may aid in disease 
prevention. Use care when pruning not to spread disease by keeping all cutting edges 
sterile by dipping in an alcohol or bleach solution after each cut 

Application of Pesticides 

A. Notification: City shall be notified prior to the application of pesticides and other 
chemicals. THERE SHALL BE NO APPLICATION OF A PESTICIDE  WITHOUT 
WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE CITY.  

B. Timing: Pesticides shall be applied at times which limit the possibility of 
contamination from climatic or other factors and at the proper life cycle of the 
pests. Early morning application shall be used when possible to avoid 
contamination from drift. Applicator shall monitor forecast weather conditions to 
avoid making application prior to inclement weather to eliminate potential runoff 
of treated areas. 

C. Irrigation: Irrigation water applied after treatment shall be reduced to eliminate 
runoff. When water is required to increase pesticide efficiency, it shall be applied 
only in quantities of which area is capable of receiving without excessive runoff. 
Coordinate with City representative. 

D. Handling of Pesticides: The Contractor shall be responsible for the safe and 
proper application of all chemicals. Care shall be taken in transferring and mixing 
pesticides to prevent contaminating areas outside the target area. Application 
methods shall be used which ensure that materials are confined to the target area. 
Spray tanks containing leftover materials shall not be drained on the site to 
prevent any contamination. Disposal of pesticides and tank rinsing materials shall 
be within the guidelines established in the State of California Food and Agricultural 
Code or EPA regulations. 

E. Equipment and Methods: Spray equipment shall be in good operating condition, 
quality, and design to efficiently apply materials to the target area. Drift will be 
minimizing by avoiding high pressure applications and using water soluble drift 
agents. 

F. Selection of Materials: Pesticides shall be selected from those materials which 
characteristically shall be used when possible to limit windblown particles. The 
use of adjuvant will be to increase pesticide efficiency thereby reducing the total 
amount of technical material required to gain control. 

G. Substitutions: Wherever a specific type of material is specified, no substitutions 
shall be allowed without the written consent of the City representative. 
Certification of Materials: All materials shall be delivered to the site in original 
unopened containers. Materials shall be subject to inspection by the City 
representative. 

H. Licenses and Permits: The contractor shall obtain necessary permits and 
licenses to comply with the City, County, State or Federal laws for using pest 
control chemicals. All material use shall be in strict accordance and applied within 
the most current EPA regulations and the California Food and Agricultural Code. 

 

Page 47

Item 10.



31 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

1. The State of California Agricultural Code requires that ALL pesticides 
and/or chemicals may be used only after a written recommendation by a 
State of California Licensed Pest Control Advisor is obtained, with a copy 
forwarded to the City Public Works Department prior to chemical use. A 
recommendation consists of all the applicator should know for an 
accurate and safe usage. The recommendation must be time and site 
specific. 

2. Application of all pesticides shall be made by or under the supervision of 
a person holding a valid license, permit, or certificate issued pursuant to 
Sections11701 and following, and Sections 14151 and following, of the 
California Food and Agriculture Code. Said person or company shall be 
registered to conduct a pest control business in the State of California 
and the County of Riverside during the entire term of this Agreement and 
any extension(s) thereof. 

3. In case a Restricted Use Pesticide is recommended, the City must have 
a use permit issued by the County of Riverside Agricultural 
Commissioner. 

I. Use Reports: Contractor shall complete and furnish a pesticide application log to 
be submitted to the City at the monthly walk through. The log shall have the 
following information included: 

1. The pest to be controlled 
2. Method of control 
3. Copies of the product labels 
4. MSDS Sheets 
5. A frequency schedule 
6. A copy of the PCA recommendation 

J. Material Use Reports: Pesticide applications shall be recorded on the 
maintenance schedule and coordinated with the City’s representative. Material 
use reports for all pesticides shall be filed with the City no later than the 10th of 
every month for the preceding month. 

K. Plant Material Replacement: The Contractor will assume responsibility and 
liability of use of chemical controls, and shall be responsible for the replacement 
of any plants, turf, and trees killed or damaged by improper chemical 
applications. 

Herbicides 

Weeds must be removed upon appearance. Selective post emergence herbicides 
shall be used to kill weeds without permanent injury to other plants. Do not proceed 
with a treatment except as recommended by a Pest Control Advisor in writing with a 
copy forwarded to the City‘s representative prior to treatment. 

 

Page 48

Item 10.



32 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

A. All creeping grasses shall be kept out of shrubs and groundcovers. 
B. The Contractor shall be especially careful if applying chemicals to control weeds 

because of possible damage to the lawn. Before such applications are made 
the turf should be well established and in a vigorous growth condition. All 
chemicals applied will be recorded and coordinated with the City’s 
representative. 

C. Broadleaf weeds in turf shall be removed selectively, without injury to the lawn 
grass other than slight, temporary discoloration. 

D. Grass weeds in lawns shall be controlled with selective post-emergence 
herbicides. Pre-emergent herbicide application shall be required to control 
crabgrass in all turf area. Scheduling for pre-emergence herbicide controls of 
weedy grass seeds shall be set forth in the FREQUENCY SCHEDULE. 

E. Weeds not killed with herbicides shall be removed manually. Turf and other 
desirable plants killed by weeds, chemicals, etc., shall be replaced at the 
Contractor’s expense. All replacements must be made within 7 calendar days 
after receiving notice from the City. 

F. See also WEED CONTROL and PEST CONTROL Sections above. 

Insecticides/Fungicides 

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for the application of the appropriate 
chemical. 

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for the replacement of any plant, tree or turf 
area, at no cost to the City, if appropriate measures or actions were not taken 
to control and/or eradicate the problem. 

C. The City shall notify the Contractor in writing if the City has knowledge of any 
insect, fungus or disease problems. Preventive fungicides shall be applied as 
necessary. 

D. Insecticide and/or fungicide applications shall be recorded on the maintenance 
schedule and coordinated with the City’s representative. See also Application 
of Pesticides above. 

FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS 

All landscape areas shall be fertilized at rates and intervals designated in the 
Frequency Schedule. This includes shrubs, ground covers, and turf. Equipment and 
labor to apply any fertilizer shall be included in the contract. The City is to supply the 
fertilizer materials. Compliance with fertilization specifications will be enforced by 
application inspections and periodic soil analysis. See also LITTER  
CONTROL/DEBRIS REMOVAL Section below. 

A. SHRUBS & GROUND COVERS: Contractor shall use a balanced fertilizer in 
shrub and ground cover areas as requested in the Frequency Schedule or as 
directed by the City’s Representative. The Contractor is to provide the 
equipment and labor to apply the fertilizer as part of this contract. 

Page 49

Item 10.



33 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

B. TURF: Apply fertilizers so as to provide sufficient nitrogen and other basic 
nutrients on a regular basis to keep turf in healthy looking condition or as 
directed by the City’s representative. Fertilizer will be applied as often as 
required to maintain deep green color at all times. Type of turf and time of 
year will determine type of fertilizer used. The frequency of application will 
greatly depend on amount of leaching caused by excess use of water; this must 
be coordinated with City’s representative. The type of fertilizer used and 
frequency applied will be recorded. Coordinate with City’s representative. 

LITTER CONTROL / DEBRIS REMOVAL 

A. Daily services, seven days a week; all litter will be picked up by 10 a.m. 
everyday at each median location as well as along Downtown 6th Street. 

a. This includes all debris discarded by the public during the use of the 
facility. 

b. Pick up all areas including areas around trash enclosures, benches, in 
medians/planter bed areas. Remove all trash, litter and empty all trash 
cans. 

c. Trash should be taken and deposited hauled away by Contractor or trash 
must be hauled off to an approved site. Trash in trash cans 
throughout parks must be emptied. If cans are overflowing,  
contractors shall empty debris into dumpsters (this includes debris on the 
ground and in the can). If trash and debris is dumped next to dumpster 
and enclosure, contractor shall try to put it into the dumpster, if there is 
no room, it shall be hauled off the site. 

B. The Contractor shall provide a general clean-up operation throughout the 
contracted area on a daily basis seven (7) days per week including holidays 
for the purpose of picking up papers, trash such as paper, cans, bottle, broken 
glass, dog droppings and any out-of-place or discarded items, hanging or 
broken tree branches, or other debris which may accumulate in the landscape 
areas, caused by winds or normal conditions. Failure to remove and dispose 
of debris deposited by winds or under normal conditions within twenty-four 
(24) hours shall result in a $200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per acre 
for each day Deficiency remains uncorrected beyond deadline. 

C. The Contractor shall also regularly remove dried plant material, such as: fallen 
leaves, twigs, flowers, and seed pods, and; dried up and/or dead portions of 
trees, shrubs, vines, and ground cover at intervals set forth in the Frequency 
Schedule. Every effort shall be made to remove litter from all areas as early in 
the morning as possible, and no later than 10:00a.m. 

D. Contractor shall remove all debris resulting from Contractor’s maintenance 
operations and dispose of it off-site in a legal manner, at Contractor’s sole 
expense. Disposal of debris shall not be allowed in any City trashcan, bin or 

Page 50

Item 10.



34 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

City facility (corporate yard or satellite yards) nor in any park refuse container 
unless other arrangements have been authorized by the City. Failure to remove 
and dispose of debris generated by Contractor’s maintenance operations 
within twenty-four (24) hours shall result in a $200 Performance Deficiency 
Deduction per acre impacted for each day that Deficiency remains 
uncorrected beyond deadline. 
1. No debris will be all allowed to remain at the end of the workday. 
2. All surfaces will be raked or swept after litter and/or weeds are removed. 
3. All grass clippings shall be picked up after each mowing or trimming 

operation. If mulching mowers are used, all visible clippings must be 
removed in accordance with this specification. Failure to remove and 
dispose of debris shall result in $200.00 Performance Deficiency 
Deduction per acre impacted for each day that Deficiency remains 
uncorrected beyond deadline. 

4. All debris must be separated into green waste, recyclables, and other 
waste to minimize contamination and be disposed of in the appropriate 
locations. Failure to separate and dispose of debris appropriately shall 
result in $200.00 Performance Deficiency Deduction per occurrence. 
See also GREEN WASTE Section below. 

5. All walkways will be kept clean/clear or debris and plant growth. Care shall 
be taken not to create unnecessary hazards to foot or wheelchair traffic 
during maintenance operations. 

6. All shrub areas not interplanted with ground cover will be raked clean a 
minimum of once a week or as directed by City representative. 

E. Contractor’s operations shall comply with Chapter 13.16 (Stormwater 
Management) of the City’s Municipal Code, including but not limited to Section 
13.16.120 – Compliance with General Permits, and Section 13.16.130 – 
Compliance with Best Management Practices (BMP’s) 
1. Blowing of grass cuttings, debris, plant litter, fertilizers or other chemical  

granules, pellets, or dusts into public streets, gutters, or storm drain inlets 
is a violation of City’s NPDES Permit, and shall result in a $200.00 
Performance Deficiency Deduction per site, per occurrence. 

2. Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of any fines, or costs of 
any cleanup or enforcement action that may result from Contractor’s failure 
to adhere to this specification. 

F. The contractor shall provide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Permit training for Urban Runoff management to Contractor’s 
employees and subcontractorsif any. Failure to provide Urban Runoff 
management training is a violation of Order No. R7-2008-0001, NPDES No. 
CAS 617002 (Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System NPDES Permit), 
Section f.-Public Education and Outreach viii, Permittees’ Employees, for each 
day of which such failure occurs, and shall in addition, be a breach of the 
contract with the City of Coachella (City). Contractor understands and agrees 
that NPDES Permit violations are grounds for enforcement action by the 
Environmental Protection Agency, the State/Regional Water Resources 

Page 51

Item 10.



 

A-1 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

Control Board and the City and may result in permit termination (stop work order), civil 
and criminal fines, and termination of contract. By submitting a proposal, the 
Contractor certifies to the City that he has trained his employees and 
subcontractors, if any, for Urban Runoff Management, and included sufficient 
sums in his base compensation proposal amount to cover such costs of said training. 

SIDEWALK / HARDSCAPE AREA CLEANING 

Contractor shall maintain and clean any accumulated sand, gravel, grass and plant 
clippings or debris on all sidewalk and hardscape areas within the Landscape Area 
boundaries. All surfaces will be raked or swept after litter and/or weeds are removed. All 
hardscape surfaces will be maintained clean and free of debris by powerwashing when 
needed. This shall be performed on a continuous basis as needed. See Frequency 
Schedule. 

RESURFACING AND RAKING OF DECOMPOSED GRANITE (DG) 

A. All work associated with the maintenance and repair of decomposed granite and 
gravel surfaces including: trails and planter areas. 

B. Rake, clean, repair or resurface DG/gravel surfaces using manual or machine 
assisted methods to achieve a smooth, level and uniform surface. 

C. DG/gravel areas will be uniformly covered and smooth, free of ruts, ridges, plant 
growth, and potholes. 

DRAINAGE FACILITIES 

The Contractor shall be responsible for continual inspection of surface drains, V-
ditches, located within the landscaped areas. Surface drains shall be checked and 
maintained free of obstruction and debris at all times to assure proper drainage. 
Remove any debris or vegetation that might accumulate at the inlet to prevent proper 
flow of water. See also LITTER CONTROL/DEBRIS REMOVAL Section above. 

 

GREEN WASTE 

The Contractor shall compost all appropriate green waste removed from City landscape 
areas at an approved facility where green waste is converted to a usable soil 
amendment. If any compost is used in the execution of the landscape maintenance 
contract, it must be from a facility that receives and composts City of Coachella green 
waste. Said products shall be approved by the Public Works Director or his designee 
before use. The Contractor shall submit verification of recycling City of Coachella green 
waste as part of the Contractor’s monthly report. 

Page 52

Item 10.



 

A-2 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXTRA WORK 

During the course of the contract period, additional services, labor and materials, 
beyond those specified in the contract may be required and performed on a time and 
material or unit price basis. Such work will be billed according to the Extra Work pricing 
schedule provided as part of this contract. The Contractor may notify the City of the need 
for Extra Work and/or the City may request Extra Work. The City will issue a Work 
Request form upon which the Contractor will provide estimated labor, 
material and/or unit price costs. The Contractor must have a signed work order from 
the Public Works Director or his designee before beginning work. 

The Contractor shall provide twenty-four- (24) hour emergency service, with prompt 
correction or mitigation of emergency damage when notified of an occurrence. An 
emergency that is causing a hazard to the public or property must be responded to within 
one (1) hour. Failure to do so may result in monetary deductions from the monthly billing. 
Response to emergency service shall be paid at a rate of $25.00 per hour. Work should 
be limited to the level required to mitigate an emergency and further repairs shall be 
completed during normal working hours. Extra work will be a separate item from normal 
contractual duties. The Contractor is expected to complete the contractual duties as 
specified on schedule and extra work shall not interfere with or delay these duties. 

1. In the event the Contractor is required by the City and agrees to perform extra work, 
the following procedure shall govern such work: 
A. Work will be executed under the direction of the Contractor’s maintenance 

supervisor on a time and materials basis or an agreed lump sum price 
depending on the nature of the work. 

B. When required by the City Representative, a written estimate of cost will be 
submitted for approval and issuance of a purchase order prior to work being 
done. The Contractor shall maintain records sufficient to distinguish the direct 
cost of said extra work from cost of other operations. The Contractor shall 
furnish reports of extra work on forms furnished by the contractor, itemizing 
all costs for labor, materials, and equipment. The report shall include hours 
worked. The following procedure will govern such extra work: 

C. City will issue work request for such extra work to be preformed. 
D. Extra work may include, but is not limited to, the following: 

a. Changing Light Fixtures 
b. Changing light bulbs 
c. Installing hardware 

E. Repairs due to vandalism 
F. Material cost shall be actual cost not to exceed 15% for the handling of 

materials purchased by the Contractor and used for the extra work. 
Extra work must be approved by the City Representative in writing. 

GUARANTEE AND / OR REPLACEMENT POLICY 

All new plant material and irrigation installation shall be guaranteed for a period of one 
calendar year except due to “Acts of God, “i.e., damage or death of plant material due 

Page 53

Item 10.



 

A-3 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

to wind or storm, or vandalism, theft, or other willful acts over which the maintenance 
contractor has no control. Existing plants shall be replaced by Contractor if they die due 
to Contractor’s negligence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54

Item 10.



 

B-1 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

 

Initial Term: July 23, 2023 – July 22, 2025 

Please see attached detail schedule of services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55

Item 10.



2 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

 Total Per Month = $12,700 

 Total Annually = $152,400 

 Total not-to-exceed for Two Year Term  

o $381,000.00 (Two Year Term plus 25% contingency) 

 Any additional work requested will be as provided by the Contractor in the 

response to the RFP for Project 031623.  

Page 56

Item 10.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Award maintenance services agreement to Vintage Landscape for Landscape 

Maintenance Services for City Medians and Downtown 6th Street Project No. 

031623B.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award maintenance services agreement to Vintage Associates Inc. for Landscape Maintenance 

Services for City Medians and Downtown 6th Street Project No. 031623B. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City published a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for Landscape Maintenance Services for City 

Medians and Downtown 6th Street.  This RFP closed on April 24, 2023 and the City received two 

responses.  The locations included in the RFP includes 6th Street from Cesar Chavez to Grapefruit 

Blvd.(including City Hall) and medians/parkways located along: Dillon Road, Grapefruit Blvd., 

Cesar Chavez St., Avenue 50, Avenue 54. 

 

As included in the RFP, the selection criteria used to identify the most qualified Proposer was 

based upon the highest scoring proposer; scoring was completed based upon a three-member panel.  

Each panelist member scored all proposals received per the evaluation criteria established in the 

RFP (total points 100):  

• Contractor Information (Including References) – 20 Points   

• Proposed Project Work Schedules – 25 Points   

• Proposed Facilities, Equipment, Materials, and Staffing Schedule – 20 Points  

• Communications, Traffic Safety, Green waste – 5 Points 

• Cost Proposal – 25 Points  

• Completeness, Thoroughness, Clarity, and Neatness of Proposal – 5 Points  

Based upon these selection criteria, the top ranked proposer selected was Vintage Associates Inc 

DBA Vintage Landscape.  The scores and service amounts for each proposer are listed below: 

Scores  1 2 3   Totals  

           (Max is 300) 

Mariposa Landscape Inc.  80 83 78   241 

Vintage Landscape  87 93 92   272 

Page 57

Item 11.



      

      

Prices for Services  2 Yr. Term Amounts     

        

Mariposa Landscape Inc.   $  184,536.00     

Vintage Landscape   $  127,200.00      

   

Staff recommends award of the RFP and corresponding landscape maintenance agreement in an 

amount not to exceed $159,000 (two-year term); the recommended award amount is the two-year 

contract amount of $159,800 plus a 25% contingency to allow for plant/turf replacement and 

overseeding as needed throughout the agreement term.  The agreement, as identified in the RFP, 

will have a two-year term.  The term for the proposed agreement is from July 23, 2023 – July 22, 

2025. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The recommended action will not have a fiscal impact. 

 

Attachments: 

Proposed Agreement 

 

 

Page 58

Item 11.



1 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT – PROJECT NO. 031623B 

 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this May 10, 2023 by and between the 

City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

California with its principal place of business at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, 

California 92236 (“City”) and Vintage Associates Inc.,(DBA Vintage Landscape) a 

corporation, with its principal place of business at 78-755 Darby Road, Bermuda Dunes, 

CA 92203 (“Contractor”).  City and Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as 

“Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 Contractor. 

Contractor desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 

maintenance services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement.  Contractor represents that it is experienced in providing landscape 

maintenance services to public clients, that it and its employees or subcontractors have 

all necessary licenses and permits to perform the Services in the State of California, and 

that is familiar with the plans of the City.   

2.2 Project. 

City desires to engage Contractor to render such services for the Landscape 

Maintenance Services for: City Medians and Downtown 6th Street Project No. 031623B 

(“Project”) as set forth in this Agreement. 

 

Page 59

Item 11.



2 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 Incorporation of Documents.  The “Contract Documents” include the 
following: 

Notice Inviting Bids  
Instructions to Bidders 
Contractor’s Bid Forms 
Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation  
Bid Bond 
Designation of Subcontractors 
Information Required of Bidders 
Non-Collusion Affidavit form 
Contract  
Performance Bond 
 Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond 
General Conditions  
Special Provisions (or Special Conditions)  
Technical Specifications 
Addenda 
Response to Request for Proposal 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 
 
3.1.2 General Scope of Services.  Contractor promises and agrees to 

furnish to the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and 

customary work necessary to fully and adequately supply the landscape maintenance 

services necessary for the Project  (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly 

described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All 

Services shall be subject to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the 

exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, 

state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

3.1.3 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from July 23, 2023 to July 

22, 2025 unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Contractor shall complete the 

Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established 

schedules and deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term 

of this Agreement by one additional one-year term.   

Page 60

Item 11.



3 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.2 Responsibilities of Contractor. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 

Services shall be performed by Contractor or under its supervision.  Contractor will 

determine the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the 

requirements of this Agreement.  City retains Contractor on an independent contractor 

basis and not as an employee.  Contractor retains the right to perform similar or different 

services for others during the term of this Agreement.  Any additional personnel 

performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Contractor shall also not be 

employees of City and shall at all times be under Contractor’s exclusive direction and 

control.  Contractor shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due such personnel 

in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as required 

by law.  Contractor shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 

additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax 

withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ compensation 

insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services 

expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of 

Services set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

Contractor represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to 

perform the Services in conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate 

Contractor’s conformance with the Schedule, City shall respond to Contractor’s submittals 

in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, Contractor shall provide a more detailed 

schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 

Contractor shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Contractor has represented to City 

that certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  

Should one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Contractor may substitute 

other personnel of at least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event 

Page 61

Item 11.



4 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

that City and Contractor cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall 

be entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel 

who fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are 

determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or 

timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be 

promptly removed from the Project by the Contractor at the request of the City.  The key 

personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: Kyle Gritters. 

 

3.2.5 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates the City 

Manager, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 

Agreement (“City’s Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act 

on behalf of the City for all purposes under this Contract.  Contractor shall not accept 

direction or orders from any person other than the City’s Representative or his or her 

designee. 

3.2.6 Contractor’s Representative.  Contractor hereby designates Kyle 

Gritters, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 

Agreement (“Contractor’s Representative”).  Contractor’s Representative shall have full 

authority to represent and act on behalf of the Contractor for all purposes under this 

Agreement.  The Contractor’s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, 

using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, 

techniques, sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all 

portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Contractor agrees to work closely with City 

staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, Contractors and 

other staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Contractor shall 

perform all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent 

with the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same 

discipline in the State of California.  Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled 

Page 62

Item 11.



5 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

in the professional calling necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor warrants that 

all employees and subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the 

Services assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor represents that it, its employees and 

subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature 

that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City Business License, and 

that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this 

Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, 

Contractor shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from 

the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the 

Contractor’s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee 

of the Contractor or its sub-Contractors who is determined by the City to be 

uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, 

a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to 

perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from 

the Project by the Contractor and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services 

or to work on the Project. 

3.2.8.1 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. 

Contractor shall perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term 

set forth in Section 3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Contractor shall also perform the 

Services in strict accordance with any completion schedule or Project milestones 

described in Exhibits “A” or “B” attached hereto, or which may be separately agreed upon 

in writing by the City and Contractor (“Performance Milestones”).  Contractor agrees that 

if the Services are not completed within the aforementioned Performance Time and/or 

pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed pursuant to provisions of this 

Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer damage.  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 53069.85, Contractor shall pay to the City as fixed 

and liquidated damages the sum of two hundred dollars ($200.00) per day for each and 

every calendar day of delay beyond the Performance Time or beyond any Project 

Milestones established pursuant to this Agreement. 

Page 63

Item 11.



6 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of 

and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any 

manner affecting the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA 

requirements, and shall give all notices required by law.  Contractor shall be liable for all 

violations of such laws and regulations in connection with Services.  If the Contractor 

performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and 

without giving written notice to the City, Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs 

arising therefrom.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, 

officers, employees, and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the indemnification 

provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged 

failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Contractor shall not commence 

Work under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it 

has secured all insurance required under this section.  In addition, Contractor shall not 

allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided 

evidence satisfactory to the City that the subcontractor has secured all insurance required 

under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Contractor shall, at its 

expense, procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against 

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 

connection with the performance of the Agreement by the Contractor, its agents, 

representatives, employees or subcontractors.  Contractor shall also require all of its 

subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the duration of the 

Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of coverage: 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at 

least as broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance 

Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) 

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 

Page 64

Item 11.



7 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

0001, code 1 (any auto); and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: 

Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s 

Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Contractor shall 

maintain limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily 

injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance 

or other form with general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 

2503, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location 

or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile 

Liability:  $1,000,000; per accident for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) 

Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as 

required by the Labor Code of the State of California.  Employer’s Liability limits of 

$1,000,000  per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

3.2.10.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall 

contain the following provisions, or Contractor shall provide endorsements on forms 

supplied or approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 

endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or 

operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor, including materials, parts or 

equipment furnished in connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall 

be primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess 

of the Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 

shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute 

with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy 

shall be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

Page 65

Item 11.



8 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the 

ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, 

hired or borrowed by the Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible; and (2) 

the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an 

unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  

Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, 

employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 

shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the 

terms of the insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Contractor. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, 

reduced or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with 

reporting or other provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not 

affect coverage provided to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

and volunteers. 

3.2.10.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All 

insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds 

provisions.  In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the 

scope of protection afforded to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any 

deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  

Contractor shall guarantee that, at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall 

reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its 

Page 66

Item 11.



9 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or (2) the Contractor shall 

procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, 

and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.10.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with 

insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in 

California, and satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.7 Verification of Coverage.  Contractor shall furnish City 

with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by 

this Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for 

each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 

coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.  All 

certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work 

commences.  The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 

required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.10.8 Reporting of Claims.  Contractor shall report to the City, 

in addition to Contractor’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Contractor 

in connection with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Contractor shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 

injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Contractor 

shall at all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules 

and regulations, and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees 

appropriate to the nature of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be 

performed.  Safety precautions as applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) 

adequate life protection and life saving equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in 

accident prevention for all employees and subContractors, such as safe walkways, 

scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, 

trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing 

apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) 

adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

Page 67

Item 11.



10 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Contractor shall receive compensation, including 

authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates 

set forth in Exhibit ”C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total 

compensation shall not exceed one hundred fifty-nine thousand dollars and zero 

cents ($159,000.00) without written approval of City’s City Council.  Extra Work may be 

authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and 

manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Contractor shall submit to City a monthly 

itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by 

Contractor.  The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided 

since the initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, 

as appropriate, through the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving 

such statement, review the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Contractor shall not be reimbursed 

for any expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 

request that Contractor perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any 

work which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, 

but which the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution 

of this Agreement.  Contractor shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work 

without written authorization from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Contractor is aware of the requirements of 

California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code 

of Regulations, Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require, if 

applicable, the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other 

requirements on “public works” and “maintenance” projects.  If applicable the Services 

are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, as 

Page 68

Item 11.



11 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if applicable the total compensation is $1,000 

or more, Contractor agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  City shall 

provide Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the 

commencement of this Agreement.  Contractor shall make copies of the prevailing rates 

of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the 

Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the 

Contractor’s principal place of business and at the project site.  Contractor shall defend, 

indemnify and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and 

harmless from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply 

with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Contractor shall maintain complete 

and accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this 

Agreement.  All such records shall be clearly identifiable.  Contractor shall allow a 

representative of City during normal business hours to examine, audit, and make 

transcripts or copies of such records and any other documents created pursuant to this 

Agreement. Contractor shall allow inspection of all work, data, documents, proceedings, 

and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years from the date of final 

payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice 

to Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without 

cause by giving written notice to Contractor of such termination, and specifying the 

effective date thereof, at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  

Upon termination, Contractor shall be compensated only for those services which have 

been adequately rendered to City, and Contractor shall be entitled to no further 

compensation.  Contractor may not terminate this Agreement except for cause. 

Page 69

Item 11.



12 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated 

as provided herein, City may require Contractor to provide all finished or unfinished 

Documents and Data and other information of any kind prepared by Contractor in 

connection with the performance of Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be 

required to provide such document and other information within fifteen (15) days of the 

request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is 

terminated in whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and 

in such manner as it may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this 

Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such 

other address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

Contractor: 

Vintage Associates Inc 

78-755 Darby Road 

Bermuda Dunes, CA 92203 

Attn: David Smith  

 

City: 

City of Coachella 

53462 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Attn:  Maritza Martinez, Public Works Department  

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, 

forty-eight (48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and 

addressed to the party at its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate 

notice on the date actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

 

Page 70

Item 11.



13 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  

This Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, 

modify, reuse, or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual 

property embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other 

documents or works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including 

but not limited to, physical drawings or data magnetically or otherwise recorded on 

computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be prepared by Contractor under 

this Agreement (“Documents & Data”).  Contractor shall require all subcontractors to 

agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for any 

Documents & Data the subcontractor prepares under this Agreement.  Contractor 

represents and warrants that Contractor has the legal right to license any and all 

Documents & Data.  Contractor makes no such representation and warranty in regard to 

Documents & Data which were prepared by design professionals other than Contractor 

or provided to Contractor by the City.  City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the 

Documents and Data at any time, provided that any such use not within the purposes 

intended by this Agreement shall be at City’s sole risk. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, 

plans, procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, 

written information, and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to 

Contractor in connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential 

by Contractor.  Such materials shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used 

by Contractor for any purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall 

such materials be disclosed to any person or entity not connected with the performance 

of the Services or the Project.  Nothing furnished to Contractor which is otherwise known 

to Contractor or is generally known, or has become known, to the related industry shall 

be deemed confidential.  Contractor shall not use City’s name or insignia, photographs of 

the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or the Project in any magazine, 

trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other similar medium without 

the prior written consent of City. 

Page 71

Item 11.



14 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be 

necessary, appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the 

other party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with 

this Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover 

from the losing party reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the 

City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any 

and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or 

injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner 

arising out of or incident to any alleged acts, omissions or willful misconduct of Contractor, 

its officials, officers, employees, agents, Contractors, and contractors arising out of or in 

connection with the performance of the Services, the Project or this Agreement, including 

without limitation the payment of all consequential damages and attorneys fees and other 

related costs and expenses. Contractor shall defend, at Contractor’s own cost, expense 

and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every kind 

that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, or volunteers.  Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree 

that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Contractor shall 

reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, 

for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith 

or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Contractor’s obligation to indemnify shall 

not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, officials 

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.   

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement 

of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior 

Page 72

Item 11.



15 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

negotiations, understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by 

a writing signed by both parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 

the State of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every 

provision of this Agreement. 

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Contractors.  City reserves right to 

employ other Contractors in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the 

successors and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Contractor shall not assign, hypothecate or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein 

without the prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, 

and any assignees, hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by 

reason of such attempted assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their 

agents have participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this 

Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or 

against any Party.  Any term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be 

deemed calendar days and not work days.  All references to Contractor include all 

personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of Contractor, except as otherwise 

specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its elected officials, officers, 

employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  The 

captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of reference 

only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content or intent of this 

Agreement. 

Page 73

Item 11.



16 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or 

amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by 

both Parties. 

3.5.15 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any 

other default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, 

benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other 

Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 

beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 

remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests.  Contractor maintains and warrants that it has 

not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 

working solely for Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Contractor 

warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than 

a bona fide employee working solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, 

brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 

making of this Agreement.  Contractor further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees 

or subcontractors to file, a Statement of Economic Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as 

required under state law in the performance of the Services.  For breach or violation of 

this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the 

term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of City, during the term of his or 

her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 

present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Contractor represents that it is an 

equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, 

employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, 

Page 74

Item 11.



17 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

handicap, ancestry, sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited 

to, all activities related to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment 

or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination.  Contractor shall also comply with all 

relevant provisions of City’s Minority Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action 

Plan or other related programs or guidelines currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor certifies 

that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which 

require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to 

undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to 

comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Contractor has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  

Each Party warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal 

power, right, and authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.22 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each 

of which shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Contractor shall not subcontract any 

portion of the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without 

prior written approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them 

subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

Page 75

Item 11.



18 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

CITY OF COACHELLA   VINTAGE ASSOCIATES INC DBA VINTAGE 

LANDSCAPE 

By:                                                      By:                                                      

Dr. Gabriel D. Martin  Kyle Gritters     

City Manager     President     

Attest:       Attest: 

                                                                                                        

City Clerk       

Approved as to form: 

_________________________ 

Best, Best & Krieger  

 

 

Page 76

Item 11.



19 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

These Specific Terms and Conditions (hereinafter referred to as “specifications”) 
establish the City of Coachella’s standards for the maintenance of the landscaped 
areas listed in Contract Agreement Exhibit “A”. Please note level of service required 
for this contract is Level of Service A as these areas are high visibility areas. 

1. Scope of Work 
a. The intent of the Agreement is to secure a Contractor which shall provide 

Landscape Maintenance Services. 
b. Contractors shall furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment, except 

where otherwise specified, to provide landscape maintenance services as 
set forth in this Agreement. 

c. All work shall be done in a thorough and workmanlike manner to the 
satisfaction of the Director of Public Works, or his/her authorized agent, and 
comply with all legal construction and landscape maintenance practices. 
The premises shall be maintained at the level of service provided for in these 
specifications at all times. 

d. Contractors shall have the duty to provide landscape maintenance of City 
Parks and Office Facilities work sites according to each site schedule 
including, but not limited to, the following: 

i. Prune, shape and trim shrubs, vines and ground cover plants. 
ii. Control weeds. 
iii. Mow and edge turf grass and blow hardscape clean. 
iv. Maintain plant material in a healthy condition with horticultural 

acceptable growth and color. 
v. Perform general area clean-up, including the removal of leaves, 

trash, dog feces and other debris at each site. 
vi. Maintain all work sites in a safe, attractive and usable condition. 
vii. Empty trash cans and remove letter at each site. 
viii. Contractors shall contact the assigned City Representative or 

designee on a daily basis to discuss the contractor work schedule for 
the day, existing problems, or other important information. 

ix. Contractors shall perform a maintenance inspection, during daylight 
hours, of all areas. 

x. Contractors shall attend a mandatory inspectors’ meeting each week 
in order to receive important information and resolve any problems. 

xi. Contractor shall complete and submit a monthly Site Inspection form 
per each site. 

Page 77

Item 11.



20 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

xiii. Contractor shall recycle green waste generated from their contract 
performance and submit a monthly report identifying the weight and 
/or volume of green waste recycled. 

xiv. Contractors shall be available twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) 
days a week to respond to all emergencies within two (2) hours 
of notification. (Emergencies that involve maintenance work  
included in these general conditions shall not be compensated). 

Failure to provide the manpower, equipment, tools, materials, services, and special 
skills necessary to accomplish above Scope of Work to the standard established by 
these specifications may result in a Performance Deficiency Deduction and/or a 
reduction in payment. 

CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE REQUIREMENTS 

 City of Coachella Business license (current) 
 C-27 Landscape Contractors License (current and active) 
 State of California Pesticide License QAL for chemical applications category B 
(current and active) 
 State of California Pest Control Business License (current) 

 County of Riverside Pesticide Business License Registration (current) 

MANDATORY INITIAL INSPECTION & ACCEPTANCE OF 
DESIGNATED LANDSCAPE AREAS 

The Public Works Director (or Director’s designee) and the Contractor shall conduct 
an inspection of the designated landscape areas covered under this Contract-
Agreement as soon as practicable after its execution, and prior to commencement of 
Contractor's operations. The purpose is to allow the Contractor and the City 
representative to observe and note any deficiencies or potential problems with 
landscape area plant materials, decomposed granite/gravel areas, or designated 
hardscape surfaces and structures. 

A. It is the Contractor's responsibility to identify unacceptable plant material  
before inception of the contract. 

B. The Public Works Director or his designee and the Contractor will perform an  
operational irrigation inspection. 

Any corrective items that are observed during the initial inspection, and acknowledged 
by both parties, may be resolved with the current Contractor or with the successful 
Contractor on a "one time only" extra work basis. After a specified time frame for 
corrections the landscape area plant materials, and designated 

Page 78

Item 11.



21 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

hardscape surfaces and structures will be turned over to the Contractor for contract 
maintenance. Thereafter, failure to maintain designated landscape areas up to this 
established standard shall result in the City deducting payment of all or part of the 
Contractor's compensation, as noted in pertinent sections of these General Terms & 
Conditions, as well as in the Special Terms & Conditions. 

CONTRACTOR’S WORK SCHEDULES 

It is the intent to schedule maintenance in a manner that keeps the designated 
landscape areas in a state of healthy, vigorous growth. 

The Contractor shall submit a Maintenance Schedule provided to the City scheduling 
the Maintenance Operations, including but not limited to the tasks identified in the 
below chart. The suggested regularity with which these tasks are to be scheduled are 
as recommended below or as needed per the direction of the City Representative, 
whichever achieves the desired service level. 

Bi 

Daily Weekly Weekly Monthly Quarterly Annually 

Mowing and Edging 
 1x &/or 

2x 
    

Litter Removal X      

Weed Control   X    

Minor Tree Pruning    X   

Ground Cover Edge/Trim   X    

Shrub Trimming   X    

DG Raking   X    

Irrigation Maintenance  x     

Parkway Area Main.   X    

Overseeding 
(triple blend) 

     
2x 

Fertilization Application     X  

Herbicide Application       

Pest Control    X   

Hardscape Surfaces  X      

The Contractor shall submit immediately upon issuance of notice to proceed a work 
schedule for each designated landscape area, which will include as minimum the 
following: 

A. Crew Size to be determined for the life of the contract 
B. Time and Date for each activity specifying when each work will be completed 

Page 79

Item 11.



22 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

At the Mandatory Initial Inspection meeting, the Contractor will present a temporary 
or base line schedule of work for the upcoming year. It is preferred that a computer-
scheduling program compatible with City software be used to generate this schedule. 
At 30 days from start of contract, a permanent schedule will be given to the City, 
hereinafter referred to as the FREQUENCY SCHEDULE. Failure to provide this 
schedule to the City in the appropriate time shall result in termination of the contract; 
failure to adhere to the Frequency Schedule shall result in PERFORMANCE 
DEFICIENCY DEDUCTIONS. 

Monthly Walk-Through and Reports 

The Contractor, as part of this agreement, will submit a monthly report with invoice. 
Failure to submit reports and schedules in the time specified shall result in a $200 
Performance Deficiency Deduction per occurrence, delay in payment, and/or 
termination of the contract. The Contractor may submit the monthly report and 
schedule using a computer based program or, the Contractor may submit the report 
and schedule in writing. It is preferred that a computer-scheduling program compatible 
with City software be used to generate this schedule. The following information must 
be included on the monthly schedule: 

A. Schedule of maintenance: At the end of each month, the Contractor’s 
representative and the City representative shall have a walk through of the 
Parks. The walk-through will focus on but not be limited to: work just completed, 
seasonal maintenance tasks, the Frequency Schedule and its pertinent tasks, 
as well as any Extra Work needed. This will generate a punch list from which 
the contractor will develop the next month’s schedule. 
1. Contractor shall provide a schedule of maintenance at the start of each 

month identifying areas to be maintained and a time frame of when each 
function shall be performed. This schedule should include the Frequency 
Schedule as it pertains to the maintenance for that month. 

2. Monthly schedules shall be adjusted to compensate for all City-recognized 
holidays. 

3. Monthly schedules shall be adjusted as directed by the City representative. 
B. The Public Works Department or city staff may request to be part of the Walk-

Through or at any time the City deems it necessary. 
1. The City will assume that the Contractor will adhere to the schedule. The 

City must receive notification of changes at least 12 hours in advance of the 
scheduled time for performance of the work. 

2. Failure to notify the City of a schedule change and/or failure to perform an 
item of work on the scheduled day may result in a payment adjustment to 
reflect only the work actually accomplished. 

3. A monthly report, including an irrigation inspection report, based upon the 
schedule outlined in the Frequency Schedule and will be turned in at the 
monthly walk through meeting. Failure to submit this report at the time of 

Page 80

Item 11.



23 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

the monthly walk through meeting may result in a $200 Performance 
Deficiency Deduction per occurrence. 

A. A monthly report, based upon the approved monthly schedule, and green 
waste recycling reports, will be turned in at the monthly walk through 
meeting. Failure to submit this report at the time of the monthly walk through 
meeting may result in a $200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per 
occurrence. 

SAFETY 

Contractor shall conduct all operations performed under this Agreement in a manner 
that complies with all applicable federal, state, and local safety laws, rules, orders, and 
regulations, including but not limited to those set forth in the contract’s General Terms 
and Conditions, as well as those set forth in these specifications. 

REPORTING DAMANGE/MALFUNCTION/VANDALISM 

Any damage to, or malfunction of, any irrigation systems, any facility not specifically 
stated in this Agreement shall be promptly reported to the Director. Contractors shall 
be responsible for reporting any vandalism/theft of existing landscaped areas which 
are maintained under this contract and damaged or altered in any way as a result of 
theft and/or mysterious damages that do not result from the performance of the 
Contractors. 

STORAGE FACILITIES 

The City of Coachella shall not provide any storage facilities for the Contractors. 

PLANT MAINTENANCE 

A. All plant material shall be maintained as needed to prevent obstruction as well 
as possible safety concerns to vehicles, pedestrians and/or the general public. 
Shrubs shall be maintained to create adequate line-of-sight vision for vehicles 
where applicable. All vegetation shall be maintained in such a manner as to 
eliminate over growth beyond its designated parameter and/or encroachment 
onto sidewalks or curbs. Keep plants located adjacent to sidewalks at a 
maximum height of three (3) feet and pruned back one (1) foot from edge of 
sidewalk. 

B. Dead material shall be pruned from plants as they occur. There shall be no 
dead blossoms, stalks, branches or foliage left on an otherwise healthy plant 
for more than one week, unless otherwise directed by the City and/or 
contract. 

 

Page 81

Item 11.



24 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

C. Plant material is to be pruned in a manner that is described as a two-step, 
naturalistic pruning procedure. The City may, at its own discretion, alter time 
lines or techniques, as the City deems necessary. 

D. The Contractor shall be responsible for replacing dead plant material, at no 
cost to the City, that dies 30 days from commencement of the contract and 
throughout the term of this contract due to neglect, lack of maintenance or 
improper care. 

E. It is the Contractor's responsibility to identify unacceptable plant material before 
inception of the contract. This will be accomplished during the mandatory 
acceptance walk through with the City representative(s) and the Contractor. 

TREE MAINTENANCE 

A. Trees shall be pruned as needed to remove broken or diseased branches, or 
for traffic and pedestrian safety. Sidewalk clearance will be eight feet and 
vehicular clearance fourteen feet from grade. Any broken, structurally unsound 
or detached limb is considered a hazard. Suckers will be removed as they 
appear. 

B. The Contractor is only responsible for trees under fifteen feet in height for 
safety and sucker control only. Palm Trees under fifteen (15) feet in height are 
the responsibility of the contractor. All other tree pruning will be performed 
under a separate contract, including palm trees. Dead palm fronds and 
seedpods however, shall be removed from trees less than 15 feet as they 
appear. 

C. In order to promote proper form, strength, health, and appearance consistent 
with their intended use, any tree pruning done at the request of the City shall 
be consistent with: the current and applicable International Society of 
Arboriculture (ISA) guidelines; American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 
standards, including but not limited to ANSI 300 (most current revision) and 
ANSI Z133 (most current revision); Chapters 12.24 (Street Trees) and 12.28 
(Palm Trees) of Title 12 of the City of Coachella’s Municipal Code. 

D. NO TOPPING OF TREES WILL BE ALLOWED. 
E. The Contractor shall be responsible for all tree staking. Ties will be monitored 

to prevent girdling. Remove ties and stakes as directed by the City. Broken 
stakes are to be removed and if appropriate, replaced. Contractor shall replace 
tree stakes within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving a corrective action 
notification from the City; failure to adhere to this specification shall result in a 
$200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per site for each day Deficiency 
remains uncorrected beyond deadline. Stakes should not remain on the trees 
longer than 6 months. If the tree cannot stand upright once stakes are 
removed, the City will then determine whether or not to replace the tree. 

 

F. The Contractor shall remove their debris from pruning and tree maintenance 

Page 82

Item 11.



25 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

the same working day as accumulated. See also LITTER  
CONTROL/DEBRIS REMOVAL Section below. 

G. The Contractor shall be held responsible for any damages done to trees due 
to poor management procedures. The Contractor shall replace trees, at no cost 
to the City, that die 30 days after acceptance of the contract due to neglect, 
lack of maintenance, infestation or improper care. This does not include those 
trees identified on the mandatory walk with the City and the Contractor. 

H. Any trees broken or damaged as a direct result of storm damage, wind, accident 
or vandalism shall be pruned and/or removed within 24 hours of notification and 
may be considered an Extra Work to the Contract. Any debris blocking 
roadways or parking areas shall be removed within one hour of notification to 
Contractor. Replacement of trees and plants caused by reasons not related to 
contractual maintenance shall be reimbursable as an Extra Work item. 

I. An 18” radius tree well will be maintained around the trunks of trees growing in 
turf or ground cover areas. Shrubs and/or shrub canopies shall not be permitted 
to encroach within 12” of tree trunks or root crowns. No weed eater shall be 
used around trees. 

SHRUB MAINTENANCE 

A. Pruning  
1. Shrubs shall be pruned as required for safety, removal of broken and 

diseased branches, general containment, and appearance. 
2. All shrubbery shall be pruned, trimmed, thinned, and suckers removed to 

properly contain their size with respect to species, size of planters and the 
best health of the plant and/or as described in the Frequency Schedule; 
coordinate with City representative. 

3. Pruning shall be done with sharp pruning tools and no weed eaters. 
4. Prune shrubs to retain as much of the natural informal appearances as 

possible, consistent with intended use. Coordinate with City representative. 
5. Shrubs used as formal hedges or screens shall be pruned as required to 

present a neat appearance. 
6. All pruning cuts shall be one quarter (1/4) inch above a node (bud). No 

projections or stubs shall be allowed to remain. 
7. Pruning shall be done to maintain a well-groomed, laced-out appearance, and 

encourage air movement through the shrub. 
8. Care shall be taken to prevent soil build-up around the crown of shrubs. 
9. Contractor shall remove all clippings the same day shrubbery is pruned and 

prior to vacating the work site. 
10. Remove any spent blossoms or dead flower stalks as required to present a 

neat appearance. 
11. Shrubs and mounding shall not exceed 2 feet in height within areas required 

Page 83

Item 11.



26 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

for vehicle sight distance depending upon roadway topography. 
B. Shrubbery Replacement  

The Contractor shall be responsible for the complete removal and replacement 
of shrubbery lost due to the contractor’s faulty maintenance or negligence, as 
determined by the City representative. 

C. Pruning Schedule  
Shrubs shall be pruned and trimmed as needed or as requested by the City’s 
representative. Shrubs shall be pruned and trimmed using sound horticultural 
techniques. Shrubs shall be maintained within the limits of confined areas (i.e., 
narrow medians, walkways, etc.) so as not to encroach on same. In addition, 
all shrubs shall be trimmed to maintain horizontal clearance along all walkways 
and trails to prevent encroachment onto private property and to remove dead, 
damaged or diseased plant material. 

D. Fertilization  
SEE FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS Section below. 

E. Cultivation  
Contractor shall cultivate around shrub and tree areas and tree wells 
sufficiently and often enough to control weed growth and maintain existing 
irrigation and drainage ditches. 

F. Irrigation (Deep Soaking)  

See WATER MANAGEMENT Section below. 

TURF GRASS MAINTENANCE 

A. General  
1. Turf Grass Mowing: 

a. Contractor shall mow all turf grass with adequately sharpened reel or 
rotary type mowers as to provide a smooth and even cut without tearing of 
turf grass blades. 

b. The blade adjustment shall provide a uniform, level cut without 
ridges, depressions or scalping. 

c. All turf grasses to be cut at a two and one-half (2 1/2) inch 
height throughout the year. 

d. Turf grass mowing heights may be adjusted by the Public Works Director. 

e. All turf grass clippings shall be picked up and removed to a legal dumping 
site prior to vacating the work site after each mowing. 

f. Care shall be exercised to avoid depressions in the established grade 
from mowing when the soil is saturated. 

Page 84

Item 11.



27 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

a. Contractor shall submit, in writing, a mowing schedule within ten 
(10) days after the start of the maintenance. This mowing schedule 
shall be approved by the Public Works Director. 

b. All areas shall be mowed once every week. Failure to adhere to this 
specification shall result in a $200 Performance Deficiency 
Deduction per acre, per occurrence. 

c. Any alteration of the approved mowing schedule shall be submitted 
in writing to the Public Works Director for approval prior to 
implementation. 

2. Turf Grass Edging and Trimming: 

a. Turf grass edging and trimming shall be performed once every week. 
Failure to adhere to this specification shall result in a $200 
Performance Deficiency Deduction per field/site, per occurrence. 

b. Edging of turf grass shall be performed with a power edger containing a 
steel blade. 

c. All turf adjacent to sidewalks, curbs, mowing strips, shrub beds, where no 
improved surface exists, shall be edged in a neat uniform line. 

d. Trimming of turf grass shall be performed along walls, and around 
valve boxes, water meter boxes, backflow devices, trees shrubs, or 
any structures located within the turf grass area. 

e. In areas where there is no mow curb, a six (6) inch barren strip shall be 
provided, and maintained, between turf grass and adjacent ground 
cover. Edging of turf grass and ground cover shall provide uniform 
delineation adjacent to this barren strip. 

f. Trimming of plant material may be required around sprinklers to provide 
maximum irrigation coverage. 

g. All clippings shall be removed from the work site the same day work is 
performed and prior to a Contractor vacating the work site. 

h. After mowing and edging is completed, all adjacent walkways and 
gutters shall be swept clean. 

i. See FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS Section below. 

3. Overseeding: 

a. Contractor shall be responsible for scalp and seed for winter, and seed for 
summer. Contractor shall comply with Section 5.05.010 of the City 
Coachella’s Municipal Code. Coordinate with City representative; City to 
provide seed. 

Page 85

Item 11.



28 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

 
GROUND COVER MAINTENANCE 

 

A. General  

1. Trim ground cover adjacent to walks, walls and/or fences as required for 
general containment to present a neat, clean appearance, with neat uniform 
lines. 

2. Remove broad-leafed and grass weeds as required. Weeds shall be controlled 
and not allowed to reach two-inch (2”) height. Remove weeds by chemical or 
mechanical means as approved by City representative. See also WEED 
CONTROL, PEST CONTROL, and HERBICIDES Sections below. 

3. Prevent soil compaction by cultivating regularly all ground cover areas. 
4. Remove debris that accumulates on ground fixed lighting fixtures. 
5. Any paper or litter that accumulates in ground cover areas shall be picked up 

on a daily basis. See also LITTER CONTROL/DEBRIS REMOVAL Section 
below. 

6. Keep ground cover trimmed back from all drip line irrigations, controller units, 
valve boxes, quick couplers, or other appurtenances or fixtures. Do not allow 
ground cover to grow up the trunk of trees, into shrubs, on structures or walls 
unless directed by the City representative. Keep trimmed back approximately 
4 inches from structure or walls and two (2) inches from sidewalks, curbs, mow 
curbs, and walkways. Coordinate trimming around base of shrubs/trees with 
City representative. 

7. Trimming of ground cover may be required around sprinklers to provide 
maximum irrigation coverage. 

8. Bare soil area shall be cultivated a minimum of once per month and/or mulched 
as directed by the City representative (mulch will be supplied or paid for by the 
City). 

9. All clippings and trimmings shall be removed from the work site the same day 
work is performed and prior to the Contractor vacating the work site. 

10. After edging or trimming, the Contractors shall sweep clean all adjacent 
sidewalks or gutters. 

11. See FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS Section below. 

WEED CONTROL 

A. Planters, gravel areas, sidewalks, curb and gutters, expansion joints, fence lines, 
drainage areas, bare areas, and around plants and trees shall be kept free of grass 
and weeds. This will be done on an as-needed basis. 

B. The Contractor shall perform weed removal and shall identify in their schedules 
approximate time frames for performing this function. Failure to adhere to this 
specification shall result in a $200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per site 
for each day Deficiency remains uncorrected. Acceptable methods of control are: 
Annual weeds, mechanical and/or chemical methods. Perennial weeds such as 
Bermuda grass, nutsedge (species), bindweed, pennisetum grass shall be 
controlled with chemical means only. 

Page 86

Item 11.



29 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

C. After weeds have been sprayed and removed, the Contractor shall rake or sweep 
the area removing any debris generated as a result of the weed control process. 

D. Chemical herbicide control is the responsibility of the Contractor. The 
Frequency Schedule outlines the minimum herbicide controls. If weed control 
has not been maintained as specified, the City may require additional herbicide 
applications at no additional cost to the City. Preventative weed control, such 
as pre-emergent herbicides and post-emergent herbicides is the responsibility 
of the Contractor. See also PEST CONTROL and HERBICIDES Sections 
below. 

PEST CONTROL 

General  

The Contractor shall provide complete and continuous control and/or eradication of all 
plant pests at no extra cost, including: weeds; insects, mites, nematodes, and other 
invertebrates; gophers, squirrels, rats, mice, and other vertebrates; snails and slugs; 
pathogens and diseases. 

Controls to include necessary use of integrated pest control systems involving the use 
of life history information and extensive monitoring. Control through prevention, cultural 
practices, pesticide applications, exclusion, natural enemies and host resistance. 

The only exception to this is with regards to bees. The contractor will be responsible 
for reporting to the City any bee activity (swarms or hives) immediately. 

All areas of the landscape shall be inspected for infestations of harmful pests. Leaves 
that may be blotched, blighted, deformed, mildewed, rusted, scorched, discolored, 
defoliated, or wilted should be noted. Identify the cause of injury and consult a Pest 
Control Advisor before application of chemical treatments. 

At certain times of the year, and with certain environmental conditions, the presence 
of certain pests can be anticipated; start preventative cultural methods before a pest 
is visible. Inspect new growth for the presence of aphids, leaf hoppers, scale, mealy 
bugs, and mites. Look for ants on soil, along walks, and trunks of shrubs and trees. 
Control adult beetles before they lay eggs on bark in the spring. Ongoing inspections 
are necessary to determine if there is a summer brood. Snails shall be controlled 
before becoming epidemic. They can be anticipated as a menace from spring until the 
advent of high temperatures, wherever moist soil prevails. 

Pruning may be an effective prevention of an epidemic of insects and diseases. 
Removing infected parts and disposing of them off site separates the pest or pathogen 
from the host. Examples are Pine tree tip month, Juniper twig girdler, Verticillium wilt, 
and some other fungal caused blights of foliage. Proper thinning of 

Page 87

Item 11.



30 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

tree foliage, to provide light and aeration for groundcover may aid in disease 
prevention. Use care when pruning not to spread disease by keeping all cutting edges 
sterile by dipping in an alcohol or bleach solution after each cut 

Application of Pesticides 

A. Notification: City shall be notified prior to the application of pesticides and other 
chemicals. THERE SHALL BE NO APPLICATION OF A PESTICIDE  WITHOUT 
WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE CITY.  

B. Timing: Pesticides shall be applied at times which limit the possibility of 
contamination from climatic or other factors and at the proper life cycle of the 
pests. Early morning application shall be used when possible to avoid 
contamination from drift. Applicator shall monitor forecast weather conditions to 
avoid making application prior to inclement weather to eliminate potential runoff 
of treated areas. 

C. Irrigation: Irrigation water applied after treatment shall be reduced to eliminate 
runoff. When water is required to increase pesticide efficiency, it shall be applied 
only in quantities of which area is capable of receiving without excessive runoff. 
Coordinate with City representative. 

D. Handling of Pesticides: The Contractor shall be responsible for the safe and 
proper application of all chemicals. Care shall be taken in transferring and mixing 
pesticides to prevent contaminating areas outside the target area. Application 
methods shall be used which ensure that materials are confined to the target area. 
Spray tanks containing leftover materials shall not be drained on the site to 
prevent any contamination. Disposal of pesticides and tank rinsing materials shall 
be within the guidelines established in the State of California Food and Agricultural 
Code or EPA regulations. 

E. Equipment and Methods: Spray equipment shall be in good operating condition, 
quality, and design to efficiently apply materials to the target area. Drift will be 
minimizing by avoiding high pressure applications and using water soluble drift 
agents. 

F. Selection of Materials: Pesticides shall be selected from those materials which 
characteristically shall be used when possible to limit windblown particles. The 
use of adjuvant will be to increase pesticide efficiency thereby reducing the total 
amount of technical material required to gain control. 

G. Substitutions: Wherever a specific type of material is specified, no substitutions 
shall be allowed without the written consent of the City representative. 
Certification of Materials: All materials shall be delivered to the site in original 
unopened containers. Materials shall be subject to inspection by the City 
representative. 

H. Licenses and Permits: The contractor shall obtain necessary permits and 
licenses to comply with the City, County, State or Federal laws for using pest 
control chemicals. All material use shall be in strict accordance and applied within 
the most current EPA regulations and the California Food and Agricultural Code. 

 

Page 88

Item 11.



31 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

1. The State of California Agricultural Code requires that ALL pesticides 
and/or chemicals may be used only after a written recommendation by a 
State of California Licensed Pest Control Advisor is obtained, with a copy 
forwarded to the City Public Works Department prior to chemical use. A 
recommendation consists of all the applicator should know for an 
accurate and safe usage. The recommendation must be time and site 
specific. 

2. Application of all pesticides shall be made by or under the supervision of 
a person holding a valid license, permit, or certificate issued pursuant to 
Sections11701 and following, and Sections 14151 and following, of the 
California Food and Agriculture Code. Said person or company shall be 
registered to conduct a pest control business in the State of California 
and the County of Riverside during the entire term of this Agreement and 
any extension(s) thereof. 

3. In case a Restricted Use Pesticide is recommended, the City must have 
a use permit issued by the County of Riverside Agricultural 
Commissioner. 

I. Use Reports: Contractor shall complete and furnish a pesticide application log to 
be submitted to the City at the monthly walk through. The log shall have the 
following information included: 

1. The pest to be controlled 
2. Method of control 
3. Copies of the product labels 
4. MSDS Sheets 
5. A frequency schedule 
6. A copy of the PCA recommendation 

J. Material Use Reports: Pesticide applications shall be recorded on the 
maintenance schedule and coordinated with the City’s representative. Material 
use reports for all pesticides shall be filed with the City no later than the 10th of 
every month for the preceding month. 

K. Plant Material Replacement: The Contractor will assume responsibility and 
liability of use of chemical controls, and shall be responsible for the replacement 
of any plants, turf, and trees killed or damaged by improper chemical 
applications. 

Herbicides 

Weeds must be removed upon appearance. Selective post emergence herbicides 
shall be used to kill weeds without permanent injury to other plants. Do not proceed 
with a treatment except as recommended by a Pest Control Advisor in writing with a 
copy forwarded to the City‘s representative prior to treatment. 

 

Page 89

Item 11.



32 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

A. All creeping grasses shall be kept out of shrubs and groundcovers. 
B. The Contractor shall be especially careful if applying chemicals to control weeds 

because of possible damage to the lawn. Before such applications are made 
the turf should be well established and in a vigorous growth condition. All 
chemicals applied will be recorded and coordinated with the City’s 
representative. 

C. Broadleaf weeds in turf shall be removed selectively, without injury to the lawn 
grass other than slight, temporary discoloration. 

D. Grass weeds in lawns shall be controlled with selective post-emergence 
herbicides. Pre-emergent herbicide application shall be required to control 
crabgrass in all turf area. Scheduling for pre-emergence herbicide controls of 
weedy grass seeds shall be set forth in the FREQUENCY SCHEDULE. 

E. Weeds not killed with herbicides shall be removed manually. Turf and other 
desirable plants killed by weeds, chemicals, etc., shall be replaced at the 
Contractor’s expense. All replacements must be made within 7 calendar days 
after receiving notice from the City. 

F. See also WEED CONTROL and PEST CONTROL Sections above. 

Insecticides/Fungicides 

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for the application of the appropriate 
chemical. 

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for the replacement of any plant, tree or turf 
area, at no cost to the City, if appropriate measures or actions were not taken 
to control and/or eradicate the problem. 

C. The City shall notify the Contractor in writing if the City has knowledge of any 
insect, fungus or disease problems. Preventive fungicides shall be applied as 
necessary. 

D. Insecticide and/or fungicide applications shall be recorded on the maintenance 
schedule and coordinated with the City’s representative. See also Application 
of Pesticides above. 

FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS 

All landscape areas shall be fertilized at rates and intervals designated in the 
Frequency Schedule. This includes shrubs, ground covers, and turf. Equipment and 
labor to apply any fertilizer shall be included in the contract. The City is to supply the 
fertilizer materials. Compliance with fertilization specifications will be enforced by 
application inspections and periodic soil analysis. See also LITTER  
CONTROL/DEBRIS REMOVAL Section below. 

A. SHRUBS & GROUND COVERS: Contractor shall use a balanced fertilizer in 
shrub and ground cover areas as requested in the Frequency Schedule or as 
directed by the City’s Representative. The Contractor is to provide the 
equipment and labor to apply the fertilizer as part of this contract. 

Page 90

Item 11.



33 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

B. TURF: Apply fertilizers so as to provide sufficient nitrogen and other basic 
nutrients on a regular basis to keep turf in healthy looking condition or as 
directed by the City’s representative. Fertilizer will be applied as often as 
required to maintain deep green color at all times. Type of turf and time of 
year will determine type of fertilizer used. The frequency of application will 
greatly depend on amount of leaching caused by excess use of water; this must 
be coordinated with City’s representative. The type of fertilizer used and 
frequency applied will be recorded. Coordinate with City’s representative. 

LITTER CONTROL / DEBRIS REMOVAL 

A. Daily services, seven days a week; all litter will be picked up by 10 a.m. 
everyday at each median location as well as along Downtown 6th Street. 

a. This includes all debris discarded by the public during the use of the 
facility. 

b. Pick up all areas including areas around trash enclosures, benches, in 
medians/planter bed areas. Remove all trash, litter and empty all trash 
cans. 

c. Trash should be taken and deposited hauled away by Contractor or trash 
must be hauled off to an approved site. Trash in trash cans 
throughout parks must be emptied. If cans are overflowing,  
contractors shall empty debris into dumpsters (this includes debris on the 
ground and in the can). If trash and debris is dumped next to dumpster 
and enclosure, contractor shall try to put it into the dumpster, if there is 
no room, it shall be hauled off the site. 

B. The Contractor shall provide a general clean-up operation throughout the 
contracted area on a daily basis seven (7) days per week including holidays 
for the purpose of picking up papers, trash such as paper, cans, bottle, broken 
glass, dog droppings and any out-of-place or discarded items, hanging or 
broken tree branches, or other debris which may accumulate in the landscape 
areas, caused by winds or normal conditions. Failure to remove and dispose 
of debris deposited by winds or under normal conditions within twenty-four 
(24) hours shall result in a $200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per acre 
for each day Deficiency remains uncorrected beyond deadline. 

C. The Contractor shall also regularly remove dried plant material, such as: fallen 
leaves, twigs, flowers, and seed pods, and; dried up and/or dead portions of 
trees, shrubs, vines, and ground cover at intervals set forth in the Frequency 
Schedule. Every effort shall be made to remove litter from all areas as early in 
the morning as possible, and no later than 10:00a.m. 

D. Contractor shall remove all debris resulting from Contractor’s maintenance 
operations and dispose of it off-site in a legal manner, at Contractor’s sole 
expense. Disposal of debris shall not be allowed in any City trashcan, bin or 

Page 91

Item 11.



34 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

City facility (corporate yard or satellite yards) nor in any park refuse container 
unless other arrangements have been authorized by the City. Failure to remove 
and dispose of debris generated by Contractor’s maintenance operations 
within twenty-four (24) hours shall result in a $200 Performance Deficiency 
Deduction per acre impacted for each day that Deficiency remains 
uncorrected beyond deadline. 
1. No debris will be all allowed to remain at the end of the workday. 
2. All surfaces will be raked or swept after litter and/or weeds are removed. 
3. All grass clippings shall be picked up after each mowing or trimming 

operation. If mulching mowers are used, all visible clippings must be 
removed in accordance with this specification. Failure to remove and 
dispose of debris shall result in $200.00 Performance Deficiency 
Deduction per acre impacted for each day that Deficiency remains 
uncorrected beyond deadline. 

4. All debris must be separated into green waste, recyclables, and other 
waste to minimize contamination and be disposed of in the appropriate 
locations. Failure to separate and dispose of debris appropriately shall 
result in $200.00 Performance Deficiency Deduction per occurrence. 
See also GREEN WASTE Section below. 

5. All walkways will be kept clean/clear or debris and plant growth. Care shall 
be taken not to create unnecessary hazards to foot or wheelchair traffic 
during maintenance operations. 

6. All shrub areas not interplanted with ground cover will be raked clean a 
minimum of once a week or as directed by City representative. 

E. Contractor’s operations shall comply with Chapter 13.16 (Stormwater 
Management) of the City’s Municipal Code, including but not limited to Section 
13.16.120 – Compliance with General Permits, and Section 13.16.130 – 
Compliance with Best Management Practices (BMP’s) 
1. Blowing of grass cuttings, debris, plant litter, fertilizers or other chemical  

granules, pellets, or dusts into public streets, gutters, or storm drain inlets 
is a violation of City’s NPDES Permit, and shall result in a $200.00 
Performance Deficiency Deduction per site, per occurrence. 

2. Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of any fines, or costs of 
any cleanup or enforcement action that may result from Contractor’s failure 
to adhere to this specification. 

F. The contractor shall provide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Permit training for Urban Runoff management to Contractor’s 
employees and subcontractorsif any. Failure to provide Urban Runoff 
management training is a violation of Order No. R7-2008-0001, NPDES No. 
CAS 617002 (Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System NPDES Permit), 
Section f.-Public Education and Outreach viii, Permittees’ Employees, for each 
day of which such failure occurs, and shall in addition, be a breach of the 
contract with the City of Coachella (City). Contractor understands and agrees 
that NPDES Permit violations are grounds for enforcement action by the 
Environmental Protection Agency, the State/Regional Water Resources 

Page 92

Item 11.



35 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

Control Board and the City and may result in permit termination (stop work order), 
civil and criminal fines, and termination of contract. By submitting a proposal, the 
Contractor certifies to the City that he has trained his employees and 
subcontractors, if any, for Urban Runoff Management, and included sufficient 
sums in his base compensation proposal amount to cover such costs of said training. 

SIDEWALK / HARDSCAPE AREA CLEANING 

Contractor shall maintain and clean any accumulated sand, gravel, grass and plant 
clippings or debris on all sidewalk and hardscape areas within the Landscape Area 
boundaries. All surfaces will be raked or swept after litter and/or weeds are removed. 
All hardscape surfaces will be maintained clean and free of debris by powerwashing 
when needed. This shall be performed on a continuous basis as needed. See 
Frequency Schedule. 

RESURFACING AND RAKING OF DECOMPOSED GRANITE (DG) 

A. All work associated with the maintenance and repair of decomposed granite 
and gravel surfaces including: trails and planter areas. 

B. Rake, clean, repair or resurface DG/gravel surfaces using manual or machine 
assisted methods to achieve a smooth, level and uniform surface. 

C. DG/gravel areas will be uniformly covered and smooth, free of ruts, ridges, plant 
growth, and potholes. 

DRAINAGE FACILITIES 

The Contractor shall be responsible for continual inspection of surface drains, V-
ditches, located within the landscaped areas. Surface drains shall be checked and 
maintained free of obstruction and debris at all times to assure proper drainage. 
Remove any debris or vegetation that might accumulate at the inlet to prevent proper 
flow of water. See also LITTER CONTROL/DEBRIS REMOVAL Section above. 

 

IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE 

The controlling factor in the performance of water management within the City 
landscape maintenance area is the application of water to landscape plants at a rate 
that closely matches the demands of plants with little or no runoff. Plan health, 
roadway safety and water conservation are the primary reasons for proper irrigation 
maintenance. Contractor shall maintain strict adherence to specification 
requirements. The format for inspection and repairs are as follows: 

Page 93

Item 11.



36 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

A. The entire irrigation system, including all components beginning at the 
meter shall be maintained in an operational state at all times. This 
coverage shall include, but not be limited to: all City-owned valves, 
backflow devices, piping, electrical wiring, heads, emitters, filters, and 
pumps. 

B. All irrigation systems shall be tested based upon the following schedule: 
October 1 to March 31 – every two weeks, and weekly from April 1 to 
September 30. Contractor shall include irrigation testing in the monthly 
and yearly schedule. All irrigation checks will include irrigation controller 
operation. 

C. All systems shall be kept in adjustment to ensure proper coverage, and 
prevention of excessive run-off or erosion. Adjustments shall include, but 
not be limited to: actual head adjustment, cleaning and flushing of lines, 
heads, tubing repairs, and filter screens as well as obstructions within 
these components. Costs for adjustments shall be included in the 
contractual costs for operation and maintenance of the irrigation system. 

D. All damage resulting from the Contractor’s maintenance operations 
including but not limited to: Contractor’s failure to properly maintain the 
system, shall be repaired or replaced prior to the end of the work day or 
as directed by Public Works Director or his/her designee at the 
Contractor’s expense. 

E. Repairs to the irrigation system shall be divided into two categories: 
i. diameter, all lateral lines regardless of size, risers, exposed 

electrical connections, washers, seals, adjusting pins, and repair or 
replacement of emitters or sprinkler heads of 1/2 “ inlet size or 
less. The cost for minor repair labor and materials shall be 
included in the contractual costs for operation and maintenance of 
the irrigation system. In the case of minor repairs due to acts of 
vandalism or third parties, Contractor may charge for necessary 
materials at Contractor’s cost plus 15%, per SPECIFIC TERMS & 
CONDITIONS – EXTRA WORK, Subsection 1.E; all labor for 
these repairs shall be included in the contractual costs for 
operation and maintenance of the irrigation system.  

ii. Major repairs shall include all mainline pipe regardless of size, 
controllers, backflow and pressure regulators, mainline control 
wires, valves, solenoids and diaphragms, all sprinkler heads of 
3/4 “ inlet size and bigger. The cost for labor and materials for 
major repairs shall be considered Extra Work above and beyond 
the contract. 

F. Contractor shall make minor repairs to the irrigation system within twenty-
four (24) hours of noticing, or receiving notification of, conditions in need 
of correction. When Contractor discovers, or is notified of major irrigation 
damage during normal business hours, the Contractor will submit an 
estimate form showing approximate material costs and not-to-exceed 
costs for labor. This form shall be signed by the Public Works Director or      
his/her designee and shall serve as written approval. Repairs to damage 

Page 94

Item 11.



37 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

discovered or reported outside of normal business hours/days, shall be 
repaired within eight (8) hours of discovery/notification, and a written 
estimate submitted at the start of the next business day. Failure to repair 
irrigation systems within time frames specified above shall result in a 
$200 Performance Deficiency Deduction per site for each day that 
Deficiency remains uncorrected beyond deadline. 

G. Repairs or replacements to the irrigation system shall be made with like 
parts. No substitutions shall be allowed without written approval of the 
City. 

H. The City will perform routine inspections of the irrigation system to ensure 
accuracy of the Contractor’s inspection reports. If discrepancies are 
found, the City shall construe this as a performance deficiency and 
implement payment reduction as specified in the section pertaining to 
Performance Deficiencies Deductions from payment. 

I. The City reserves the right to supply any and all parts for irrigation repairs. 
J. The Contractor shall return irrigation parts that have been replaced due to 

damage or malfunction to the Public Works Director or his/her designee. 
K. The Contractor is responsible for adjusting sprinkler heads and valve 

boxes to a level that will prevent damage by maintenance equipment or 
pedestrian traffic. Damage caused by improper height adjustment will be 
repaired by the Contractor at no cost to the City. The Contractor shall be 
responsible for all damage done to irrigation components as well as any 
plant material affected by Contractors personnel or equipment during 
maintenance operations. 

L. The Contractor shall provide personnel fully trained in all phases of 
irrigation operation, adjustments and repairs for irrigation systems used 
in the City landscape maintenance area. The Contractor shall provide 
personnel capable of communicating with City representative at a 
proficient level of English. 

M. All controller scheduling and operations are the responsibility of the 
Contractor, including but not limited to seasonal adjustment of run day 
and run time schedules. 

WATER MANAGEMENT 

All designated landscape areas shall at all times receive irrigation in amounts 
adequate to promote normal, healthy growth of plant material. Contractor shall be 
responsible for delivery of water by means of automatic or manually operated 
irrigation sprinkler systems, quick couplers, hose bibs, or water tank, as specified 
site and/or weather conditions require. 

Water Management Requirements are as follows: 
A. All systems shall be adjusted weekly and as needed to maintain healthy plant 

material and water conservation. 
B. All program changes shall be recorded on the irrigation schedule. 

Page 95

Item 11.



 

B-1 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

C. Contractor shall submit a report of irrigation system maintenance and 
management monthly for each of the landscape areas under this contract. 
Said report shall be included with Contractor’s monthly maintenance report. 

D. Controller program is to be sufficient to maintain a healthy landscape without 
excessive water use. 

E. Contractor shall manually operate automatic irrigation systems rendered 
inoperable for any reason in an manner that supports normal, healthy growth of 
plant material. Costs for such extraordinary operation shall be included in the 
contractual costs for operation and maintenance of the irrigation system. 

F. Controller programs shall incorporate the following conditions: 
a. Meet City water management requirement per Municipal Code Chapter 

13. 
b. Avoid weekend water when possible and avoid watering between 8am-

10pm where possible. 
c. Maximize repeat operations (when and where possible). 
d. Minimize station run times. 
e. Reflect actual evapotranspiration (E.T.) requirements. 
f. Reflect actual requirements of soil and plants. 
g. Eliminate runoff onto streets, sidewalks, and other non-target areas. 
h. Deep Soaking shall be defined as the application of sufficient 

quantities of water to maintain reasonable health vigor of plants. 
Quantities of water shall be sufficient to allow for deep water 
penetration and encouragement of deep rooting of the plants. 

i. Provide sufficient time for soil to dry out between irrigations. 
j. Maximize community use of City property. 

 

GREEN WASTE 

The Contractor shall compost all appropriate green waste removed from City landscape 
areas at an approved facility where green waste is converted to a usable soil 
amendment. If any compost is used in the execution of the landscape maintenance 
contract, it must be from a facility that receives and composts City of Coachella green 
waste. Said products shall be approved by the Public Works Director or his designee 
before use. The Contractor shall submit verification of recycling City of Coachella green 
waste as part of the Contractor’s monthly report. 

EXTRA WORK 

During the course of the contract period, additional services, labor and materials, 
beyond those specified in the contract may be required and performed on a time and 
material or unit price basis. Such work will be billed according to the Extra Work pricing 

Page 96

Item 11.



 

B-2 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

schedule provided as part of this contract. The Contractor may notify the City of the need 
for Extra Work and/or the City may request Extra Work. The City will issue a Work 
Request form upon which the Contractor will provide estimated labor, 
material and/or unit price costs. The Contractor must have a signed work order from 
the Public Works Director or his designee before beginning work. 

The Contractor shall provide twenty-four- (24) hour emergency service, with prompt 
correction or mitigation of emergency damage when notified of an occurrence. An 
emergency that is causing a hazard to the public or property must be responded to within 
one (1) hour. Failure to do so may result in monetary deductions from the monthly billing. 
Response to emergency service shall be paid at a rate of $25.00 per hour. Work should 
be limited to the level required to mitigate an emergency and further repairs shall be 
completed during normal working hours. Extra work will be a separate item from normal 
contractual duties. The Contractor is expected to complete the contractual duties as 
specified on schedule and extra work shall not interfere with or delay these duties. 

1. In the event the Contractor is required by the City and agrees to perform extra work, 
the following procedure shall govern such work: 
A. Work will be executed under the direction of the Contractor’s maintenance 

supervisor on a time and materials basis or an agreed lump sum price 
depending on the nature of the work. 

B. When required by the City Representative, a written estimate of cost will be 
submitted for approval and issuance of a purchase order prior to work being 
done. The Contractor shall maintain records sufficient to distinguish the direct 
cost of said extra work from cost of other operations. The Contractor shall 
furnish reports of extra work on forms furnished by the contractor, itemizing 
all costs for labor, materials, and equipment. The report shall include hours 
worked. The following procedure will govern such extra work: 

C. City will issue work request for such extra work to be preformed. 
D. Extra work may include, but is not limited to, the following: 

a. Changing Light Fixtures 
b. Changing light bulbs 
c. Installing hardware 

E. Repairs due to vandalism 
F. Material cost shall be actual cost not to exceed 15% for the handling of 

materials purchased by the Contractor and used for the extra work. 
Extra work must be approved by the City Representative in writing. 

GUARANTEE AND / OR REPLACEMENT POLICY 

All new plant material and irrigation installation shall be guaranteed for a period of one 
calendar year except due to “Acts of God, “i.e., damage or death of plant material due 
to wind or storm, or vandalism, theft, or other willful acts over which the maintenance 
contractor has no control. Existing plants shall be replaced by Contractor if they die due 
to Contractor’s negligence. 

 

 

Page 97

Item 11.



 

B-3 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

 

Initial Term: July 23, 2023 – July 22, 2025 

Please see attached detail schedule of services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98

Item 11.



4 

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1  BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

 Total Per Month = $5,300 

 Total not-to-exceed for Two Year Term  

o $159,000 (Two Year Term plus 25% contingency) 

 Any additional work requested will be as provided by the Contractor in the 

response to the RFP for Project 031623B.  

By Location  Monthly Amount  Total Annual  Total Term Amount 

6th St Grapefruit to 
Cesar Chavez 

$2,184 $26,203 $52,406 

Grapefruit Blvd 
Median 

$864 $10,366 $20,732 

Harrison St Median $864 $3,816 $7,632 

Ave 50 Median $864 $5,787 $11,574 

Ave 54 Median $864 $3,816 $7,632 

Grapefruit Blvd 
Parkway 

$864 $6,806 $13,612 

Harrison St 
Parkway 

$864 $6,806 $13,612 

Total  $5,300 $63,600 $127,200 

 

Page 99

Item 11.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Award construction agreement to Desert Concepts Construction Inc. for the 

Tierra Del Sol Decorative Lighting Improvements Project LL-03-021323.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award construction agreement to Desert Concepts Construction Inc. for the Tierra Del Sol 

Decorative Lighting Improvements Project LL-03-021323. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City published a Request for Bids Tierra Del Sol Decorative Lighting Improvements Project 

LL-03-021323.  This bid closed on April 20, 2023 and the City received three responses.  The bid 

improvements will provide decorative lighting to all five entrances to the Tierra Del Sol residential 

community.  Please see below responses received.  

 

 

The lowest bidder did not meet the contractor licensing requirements identified in the bid.  The 

lowest responsible responsive bidder was Desert Concepts Construction Inc.  Staff is 

recommending award of the construction contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, 

Desert Concepts Construction Inc., in the amount of $541,480.00.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The recommended action will not have a fiscal impact. 

 

Attachments: 

Proposed Agreement 

Contractor  Bid Amount Met all Bid Requirements 

BRC Construction  $440,952.00 No 

Desert Concepts Construction $541,480.00 Yes 

Elecnor Belco Electric Inc $940,534.00 Yes 

Page 100

Item 12.



CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

This Contract for Construction (“Contract”), is made and entered into this 10th day of May, 2023, 
by and between City of Coachella, a municipal corporation, organized under the laws of the State 
of California, with its principal place of business at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 
92236, sometimes hereinafter called the “City” and Desert Concepts Construction Inc., sometimes 
hereinafter called “Contractor.” 

WITNESSETH:  That the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed, and by these 
presents do covenant and agree with each other as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF WORK.   

The Contractor shall perform all Work within the time stipulated in the Contract, and shall provide 
all labor, materials, equipment, tools, utility services, and transportation to complete all of the 
Work required in strict compliance with the Contract Documents as specified in Article 5, below, 
for the following Project: 

TIERRA DEL SOL DECORATIVE ENTRANCE LIGHTING 
CITY PROJECT NO. LL-03-021323 

 
 

Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent of the City.  The Contractor and its 
surety shall be liable to the City for any damages arising as a result of the Contractor’s failure to 
comply with this obligation. 

ARTICLE 2. TERM.   

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 10TH day of May 2023, and shall terminate on 
the 30th day of September 2023, unless terminated earlier as set forth herein.   

Contractor and City agree that time is of the essence regarding the performance of this 
Agreement.  All work called for under this Agreement will require the Contractor submit and City 
approve a Project Schedule for completion of work requested.  

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT PRICE.   

The City shall pay to the Contractor as full compensation for the performance of the Contract, 
subject to any additions or deductions as provided in the Contract Documents, and including all 
applicable taxes and costs, the not to exceed sum of Five Hundred Forty-One Thousand Four 
Hundred Eighty Dollars and No Cents  ($541,480.00). Payment shall be made as set forth in 
the General Conditions.  The City will pay to Contractor compensation based upon the prices set 
forth in the Proposal Schedule. 

ARTICLE 4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.   

Contractor acknowledges that the City will sustain actual damages for each and every Working 
Day completion of the Project is delayed beyond the Contract Time (per approved Project 
Schedule). Because of the nature of the Project, it would be impracticable or extremely difficult to 
determine the City’s actual damages.  Accordingly, in accordance with Government Code section 
53069.85, it is agreed that the Contractor will pay the City the sum of $500.00 for each and every 

Page 101

Item 12.



Working Day of delay beyond the time prescribed in the Contract Documents.  In the event this is 
not paid, the Contractor agrees the City may deduct that amount from any money due or that may 
become due the Contractor under the Contract. This Section does not exclude recovery of other 
damages specified in the Contract Documents.  Liquidated damages may be deducted from 
progress payments due Contractor, Project retention or may be collected directly from Contractor, 
or from Contractor's surety.  These provisions for liquidated damages shall not prevent the City, 
in case of Contractor's default, from terminating the Contractor. 

ARTICLE 5. COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT.   

The “Contract Documents” include the following: 

Notice Inviting Bids  
Instructions to Proposers 
ProposalForms 
ProposalAcknowledgement  
ProposalSchedule  
ProposalGuarantee 
Designation of Subcontractors 
Information Required of Proposers 
Non-Collusion Declaration Form 
Iran Contracting Act Certification 
Drug-Free Workplace Certification 
Asbestos-Free Material Certification 
Recycled Content Certification 
Public Works Contractor DIR Registration Certification 
Performance Bond 
Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond 
Contract for Construction  
General Conditions 
Special Conditions 
Technical Specifications 
Addenda 
Construction Plans and Drawings 
City of Coachella Standard Specifications and Procedures (June 2007) 
City of Coachella Standard Infrastructure Drawings (2007 Edition) including Surface 

Improvement Standards and Water Standards  
Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction “Greenbook” (2018), Except 

Sections 1-9 
Standard Plans for Public Works Construction “Greenbook” (2018) 
Caltrans Standard Specifications (2018), except Division 1 
Caltrans Standard Plans (2018)  
Applicable Local Agency Standards and Specifications, as last revised 
Reference Specifications  
Approved and fully executed Change Orders 
Permits 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 

The Contractor shall complete the Work in strict accordance with all of the Contract Documents. 

Page 102

Item 12.



All of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary.  Work required by one of the 
Contract Documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all.  In the event of conflict, 
the various Contract Documents will be given effect in the order set forth in the General 
Conditions.  This Contract shall supersede any prior agreement of the parties.   

ARTICLE 6. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW AND CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE.   

Each and every provision of law required to be included in these Contract Documents shall be 
deemed to be included in these Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall comply with all 
requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not 
limited to, the provisions of the California Labor Code and California Public Contract Code which 
are applicable to this Work. 

ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION.   

Contractor shall provide indemnification and defense as set forth in the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 8. PREVAILING WAGES.   

Contractor shall be required to pay the prevailing rate of wages in accordance with the Labor 
Code which such rates may be obtained online at http://www.dir.ca.gov and which must be 
posted at the job site. 

ARTICLE 9. FALSE CLAIMS.   

Contractor acknowledges that if a false claim is submitted to the City, it may be considered fraud 
and Contractor may be subject to criminal prosecution.  Contractor acknowledges that the False 
Claims Act, California Government Code sections 12650, et seq., provides for civil penalties 
where a person knowingly submits a false claim to a public entity.  These provisions include within 
their scope false claims made with deliberate ignorance of the false information or in reckless 
disregard of the truth or falsity of the information.  In the event the City seeks to recover penalties 
pursuant to the False Claims Act, it is entitled to recover its litigation costs, including attorneys’ 
fees.  Contractor hereby acknowledges that the filing of a false claim may the Contractor to an 
administrative debarment proceeding wherein Contractor may be prevented from further bidding 
on public contracts for a period of up to five (5) years. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  

Page 103

Item 12.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by the above-named parties, on 
the day and year above written. 

CITY OF COACHELLA  

By: 

Dr. Gabriel D. Martin 
      City Manager 
 
 

ATTEST: 

By:   
            City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:   
Best Best & Krieger LLP 
City Attorney 

 

DESERT CONCEPTS CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By: 

 
Its:  

Printed Name:  
 
  
By: 

 
Its:  

Printed Name:  
 
 
849837 – A, C-10, B 
____________________________________ 
Contractor’s License Number and Classification  

 
_1000006619___________________________________ 
DIR Registration Number   

 

 
 

 

Page 104

Item 12.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director  

SUBJECT: Adopt resolution setting a June 14, 2023 public hearing date for Municipal 

Solid Waste Rates for fiscal year 2023/2024.  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Adopt resolution setting a June 14, 2023 public hearing date for Municipal Solid Waste Rates for 

fiscal year 2023/2024. 

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

The City of Coachella entered into a franchise agreement with Burrtec Waste and Recycling 

Services (Burrtec) in May 2006.  Since 2006, Burrtec has been the provider for all solid waste 

disposal services for Coachella residents and businesses.  City Council approved a first amendment 

to this agreement on May 27, 2009, which established the solid waste charges for residential 

customers would be collected through the county tax roll; commercial customers continue to be 

billed directly by Burrtec.  City Council approved a second amendment on June 19, 2013 extending 

the term of the agreement through May 30, 2023 and third amendment was approved on January 

17, 2018.  A Fouth Amendment was approved on July 27, 2022 to include organics services as 

required by SB 1383.   

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:  

 

The Burrtec Agreement allows for rate increases based on two components of the rate 1) service 

component and 2) disposal component.  Total increase will not exceed 10% in any given year.  

1. The service component is capped at 5% and based on CPI 

2. The disposal component is a pass through of the tipping fee adjustments at the landfill.  

 

The current monthly residential rate is $29.94.  The proposed increase to the 2022/23 residential 

rate total $2.03; the new proposed residential rate is $31.97.  As approved by voters on June 8, 

2010, this rate is subject to a 5% Utilities Users Tax, which will bring the monthly charged rate to 

$33.57. 

 

The most common commercial service is a three-yard cubic bin, with one pick up per week.  

Currently, the commercial rate for this service is $171.38.  Based on the same factors noted above, 

Page 105

Item 13.



the increase for fiscal year 2023/2024 totals $9.20; the new proposed rate for fiscal year 2023/2024 

is $180.58. As noted above, a 5% Utility Users Tax will be applied to this monthly service, which 

will bring the rate for a standard three cubic yard bin, with one pickup per week, to $189.61. 

 

The Proposition 218 noticing process for solid waste rates through July 1, 2026 was completed 

and adopted on July 27, 2022.  Staff is recommending approval of the attached resolution setting 

an public hearing date for Municipal Solid Waste Rates proposed for fiscal year 2022/2023 on 

Wednesday, June 14, 2023 (6pm) at City Hall.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Setting the public hearing for this item will not have a financial impact.   

 

 

Attachment: 

Resolution   

  

 

  

 

 

Page 106

Item 13.



 
Resolution No. 2020-26 

  Page 1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-27 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, 

CALIFORNIA DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING 

TO PLACE SOLID WASTE CHARGES ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024.   

 

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Sections 5473 et seq., authorizes the City 

of Coachella to adopt an ordinance by two-thirds of the City Council to collect solid waste rates 

on the tax roll, in the same manner and at the same time as the general taxes;  

WHEREAS, on May 30, 2006, the City Council has entered into a service agreement with 

Burrtec Waste and Recycling Services, LLC for the collection and disposal of residential and 

commercial waste within the City of Coachella;  

WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to the franchise agreement with 

Burrtec Waste and Recycling Services, LLC on May 27, 2009 authorizing to bill the residential 

customers for solid waste services through the County Tax Roll instead of monthly billing; 

 

WHEREAS, July 8, 2009, the City Council of the City of Coachella, pursuant to California 

Health and Safety Code Sections 5473 et seq., adopted an ordinance by two-thirds vote of the City 

Council revising its Municipal Code to allow for the collection of such solid waste charges on the 

tax roll, in the same manner and at the same time as general taxes;  

 

WHEREAS, annual rates are adjusted to include any increases in the local CPI and 

disposal rates as set by local landfills;  

 

WHEREAS, the Proposition 218 process was completed in July 2022 for solid waste rates 

through July 1, 2026;  

 

WHEREAS, the service rates for fiscal year 2023/2024 have been included as Exhibit A 

to this Resolution.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS:   

 

1. The above recitals are true and correct.  

2. Intention: The City Council herby declares its intention to provide solid waste 

collection services to all property owners within the City, described in Section 3 

of this resolution, for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 at the rates attached to this Resolution.  

3. Description of Services: The improvements include but are not limited to: trash 

collection, trash disposal, yard waste collection, organics collection and 

processing, recycle collection and processing, street sweeping and disposal, bulky 

item collection.  

4. Public Hearing: The City Council hereby declares its intention to conduct a Public 

Page 107

Item 13.



 
Resolution No. 2020-26 

  Page 2  

Hearing concerning the fiscal year 2023/2024 solid waste collection rates. 

5. Public Notice:  The City shall also give newspaper notice by publishing this 

resolution in the local newspapers not less than ten (10) days before the public 

hearing, and by posting a copy of this resolution on the official bulletin board 

customarily used by the Council for posting of notices.  

6. Public Hearing Date: Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on these matters 

will be held by the City Council on June 14, 2023 at 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter 

as feasible in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, 

CA.  

7. City Clerk: The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of such 

hearing as provided by law. 

8. Passage: That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this 

Resolution; shall enter the same in the book of original Resolution of said City; 

and shall make a minute of passage and adoption thereof in the records of the 

proceedings of the City Council of said City, in the minutes of the meeting at which 

Resolution is passed and adopted.  

 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Coachella held on the 10th day of May 2023, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ABSTAIN:  

            

        ______________________________ 
  Steven Hernandez, Mayor 
  City of Coachella 

 
ATTEST: 
 

_______________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda, City Clerk 
City of Coachella 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

_______________________________ 

Carlos L. Campos, City Attorney 

Page 108

Item 13.



 
Resolution No. 2020-26 

  Page 3  

City of Coachella  
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE  )  

CITY OF COACHELLA      ) 

 

I, City Clerk of the City of Coachella, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and 

correct copy of Resolution No. 2023-27 adopted by the City Council of the City of Coachella at a 

regular meeting therefore duly held and convened on the 10th day of May, 2023. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

City Clerk 

Page 109

Item 13.



Page 110

Item 13.



Page 111

Item 13.



Page 112

Item 13.



Page 113

Item 13.



Page 114

Item 13.



Page 115

Item 13.



Page 116

Item 13.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Andrew Simmons, P.E., City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Professional Service Agreement with Michael Baker International to develop a 

Parcel Map for Avenue 50 Extension Condemnation Parcels, City Project ST-98. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Authorize the City Manager to use on-call Professional Service Agreement with Michael Baker 

International in an amount of $33,140 to develop a Parcel Map for Avenue 50 Extension 

Condemnation Parcels, City Project ST-98. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

Staff published a request for qualifications for on-call engineering services and received 21 

responses. On January 25, 2023 the City Council authorized the City Manager to qualify and 

execute Professional Service Agreements for on-call engineering services with eight (8) firms, 

including Michael Baker. The qualified firms were evaluated and Michael Baker was selected 

based on familiarity with project and experience with parcel maps. 
 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 

The Avenue 50 Extension project proposes to widen and improve Avenue 50 from Fillmore Street 

to the I-10. The project is designed to build an elevated road and bridge structure over the 

Coachella Canal. During the design process, right-of-way acquisition was identified for the project. 

The required right-of-way has been acquired and a parcel map is needed to document the land 

transfers and monument the new right-of-way. The deliverables from Michael Baker include a 

boundary survey, a final parcel map and to provide street and boundary monuments.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

No fiscal impact to FY 22/23 budget. Funds have been budgeted for on-call professional services 

and costs are within budget. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Michael Baker Fee Proposal 

2. Michael Baker PSA 

Page 117

Item 14.



 

 

PARCEL MAP – Avenue 50    

Condemnation Parcels 
 
 

April 17, 2023 

 
Mr. Andrew Simmons, P.E.  

City Engineer, City of Coachella  

53990 Enterprise Way  

Coachella, CA 92236 

 
RE: Parcel Map for Avenue 50 Extension Condemnation Parcels 

Dear Mr. Simmons, 

 

Michael Baker International, Inc. (Michael Baker) appreciates the opportunity to 

provide the City of Coachella, CA (the City) a scope and fee proposal to perform a 

boundary survey, prepare a Parcel Map and set final monuments for the parcels 

obtained through condemnation proceedings.  

 

Thank you again for the opportunity to offer our expertise and assist you with 

this project.  Please contact me should you have any questions.  

 

Sincerely, 

MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC. 

 

 

 

Christopher Alberts, PLS 

Vice President & Office Executive 

  

Primary Contact Information 

Firm Name:  

Michael Baker International 

Address: 
75410 Gerald Ford Drive 
Suite 100 
Palm Desert, CA 92211 
Contacts: 
Christopher Alberts, PLS 

Phone:   

760-346-7481 

Email:   
calberts@mbakerintl.com 

Page 118

Item 14.



 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 

SCOPE OF WORK ........................................................................................ 3 

TASK 1:  BOUNDARY SURVEY............................................................................................................................................... 3 

TASK  2 :  PARCEL MAP ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

TASK 3: FINAL MONUMENTS .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

FEE PROPOSAL ........................................................................................... 4 

 

  

Page 119

Item 14.



 

 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

TASK 1: BOUNDARY SURVEY  
Michael Baker shall complete a field survey to locate, measure and describe sufficient controlling evidence to determine 

the boundary of the parcels.   

 

Michael Baker shall perform an analysis of the field survey data and record data obtained through research and 

determine a final boundary.  This final boundary will be used in the preparation of a final map in a subsequent task. 

 

The City shall provide Michael Baker with an up-to-date and complete title report, including a copy of each exception 

document referenced in the title report, covering the subject property. 

 

The fee for this scope of work is based upon an assumption that adequate and accessible boundary monumentation 

exists, in Michael Baker’s opinion, in the immediate project vicinity to control this boundary survey.  If Michael Baker 

determines that the existing monumentation is inadequate, Michael Baker reserves the right to stop work on the project 

until additional scope and budget are executed in a separate agreement. 

 

TASK 2: PARCEL MAP  
Michael Baker shall prepare one Final Parcel Map containing this lot layout: 

 

• Lot A – Recorded Roadway, Avenue 50 

• Lots 1 and 2 – Existing Slope Easements 

• The remnant parcels north and south of the Roadway shall be shown as Not A Part (N.A.P.) of the Parcel Map.  

 

The Final Parcel Map shall indicate all lots and/or easements to be retained, sold or dedicated within the boundaries of 

the Project.  All title work and final recordation services for the Parcel Map shall be performed by the City’s title 

company.   

 

TASK 3: FINAL MONUMENTS 
Michael Baker shall provide one (1) set of street and boundary monuments, set in accordance with the certification on 

the final map, and in accordance with the requirements and laws of the City of Coachella and the State of California.  

This includes all front and rear parcel corners and street centerline monuments.  A copy of centerline monument 

reference tie notes shall be completed and submitted to the appropriate jurisdictional agency in accordance with the 

requirements of said agency when required. The scope and fee is based upon setting up to 30 monuments in a single 

move in.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 120

Item 14.



 

 

FEE PROPOSAL 

Our fee proposal for the Parcel Map is a lump sum/fixed fee not-to-exceed $33,140.  

 

Activity Lump Sum 

Boundary Survey  $7,440 

Final Parcel Map  $13,580 

Final Monuments $12,120 

Total $33,140 

 

Page 121

Item 14.



Page 122

Item 14.



Page 123

Item 14.



Page 124

Item 14.



Page 125

Item 14.



Page 126

Item 14.



Page 127

Item 14.



Page 128

Item 14.



Page 129

Item 14.



Page 130

Item 14.



Page 131

Item 14.



Page 132

Item 14.



Page 133

Item 14.



Page 134

Item 14.



Page 135

Item 14.



Page 136

Item 14.



Page 137

Item 14.



Page 138

Item 14.



Page 139

Item 14.



Page 140

Item 14.



Page 141

Item 14.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Andrew Simmons, P.E., City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution No. 2023-26, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Coachella to adopt a list of Projects for Fiscal Year 2023-24, Funded by SB 1: 

Road Repair and Accountability Act. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize the City Manager to adopt Resolution No. 2023-26, A Resolution of the City Council 

of the City of Coachella to adopt a list of Projects for Fiscal Year 2023-24, Funded by SB 1: Road 

Repair and Accountability Act. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On April 28, 2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) (Beall, Chapter 5, Statutes 2017), 

which is known as the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017. The purpose and intention of 

the Act is to address basic road maintenance, rehabilitation, and critical safety needs on both the 

state highway and local streets and road systems, as well as provide transit assistance. 

 

Prior to the passage of SB 1, cities and counties were delaying or canceling projects and preparing 

to lay off staff. Due to lack of funding, basic maintenance of the local streets and road system, 

repair and replacement of bridges, safety improvements and multi-modal enhancements were all 

at risk. 

 

The new transportation bill will provide cities and counties an opportunity to catch up on years of 

unfunded maintenance needs that have plagued our roadways for years. Maintenance and 

rehabilitation projects will extend the service life of our local streets, roads and bridges. Cities and 

Counties will also use SB 1 funds for complete streets projects, increasing mobility options for 

residents, and will employ, to the extent possible green technologies, materials and methods to 

reduce impacts to the environment from transportation projects. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

SB 1 includes historic accountability and transparency measures. Cities and counties will adopt 

project lists at the start of every Fiscal Year and also provide year end reporting on completed 

projects. 

Page 142

Item 15.



The following previously proposed and adopted projects may also utilize Fiscal Year 2023-24 

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the relisting of 

these projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the City is reaffirming to the public and the 

State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 

revenues:  

 

Proposed Project 1: Avenue 50 Widening Project 

Project Description: Widening of Avenue 50 from 2 lanes to 4 lanes from Calhoun Street 

to Cesar Chavez Street including street lighting, drainage improvements, electrical 

undergrounding, sidewalk and bicycle lanes and landscaping. 
Location: Avenue 50 between Calhoun Street and Cesar Chavez Street 

Estimated Project Schedule: 01/2024 - 06/2024  

Estimated Cost: $9,250.000 

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance  

 

Proposed Project 2: Avenue 48 Widening Project 

Project Description: Widening of Avenue 48 from 2 lanes to 5 lanes from Dillon to Van 

Buren Street including street lighting, drainage improvements, electrical undergrounding, 

sidewalk and bicycle lanes and landscaping. 
Location: Avenue 48 from Dillon to Van Buren St 

Estimated Project Schedule: 03/2024 – 09/2025 

Estimated Cost: $2,046,000 

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance  

  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The SB 1 Anticipated revenues are for an amount of $1,042,156 for the Fiscal Year 2023-24. 

Authorizing the City Manager to adopt Resolution 2023-26, Resolution adopting a list of Projects 

for Fiscal Year 2023-24, Funded by SB 1: Road Repair and Accountability Act will benefit the 

City of Coachella by maintaining City eligibility to continue receiving SB1 funding. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Resolution 2023-26 

Page 143

Item 15.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-26 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 

FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 

 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 

5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 

to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and 

 
WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the 

residents of our City are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and which 

projects have been completed each fiscal year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive fiscal 

year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, 

which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for 

the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, will receive an estimated $1,042,156 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 

2023-24 from SB 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, this is the seventh year in which the City is receiving SB 1 funding and will 

enable the City to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety 

improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options for 

the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input into our 

community’s transportation priorities/the project list; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City used a Pavement Management System to develop the SB 1 project list 

to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-priority and cost-effective projects that also meet 

the community’s priorities for transportation investment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City maintain and rehabilitate and widen 

two major arterials transportation infrastructure throughout the City this year and many similar 

projects into the future; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2018 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment 

found that the City’s streets and roads are in an “good” condition and this revenue will help us 

increase the overall quality of our road system and over the next decade will bring our streets and 

roads into a “excellent” condition; and 

Page 144

Item 15.



Resolution No. 2023-26  

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads 

infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets 

infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant 

positive co-benefits statewide. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the City 

Council of the City of Coachella, State of California, as follows: 

 
1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

 
2. There are no newly proposed projects that will be funded in-part or solely with Fiscal Year 

2023-24 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues. 

 
3. The following previously proposed and adopted projects may also utilize Fiscal Year 2023- 

24 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the 

relisting of these projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the City is reaffirming to the 

public and the State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance and 

Rehabilitation Account revenues: 

 
Proposed Project 1: Avenue 50 Widening Project 

Project Description: Widening of Avenue 50 from 2 lanes to 4 lanes from Calhoun Street to 

Cesar Chavez Street including street lighting, drainage improvements, electrical 

undergrounding, sidewalk and bicycle lanes and landscaping. 

Location: Avenue 50 between Calhoun Street and Cesar Chavez Street 

Estimated Project Schedule: 01/2024-06/2024 

Estimated Cost: $9,250.000 

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 

 

Proposed Project 2: Avenue 48 Widening Project 

Project Description: Widening of Avenue 48 from 2 lanes to 5 lanes from Dillon to Van 

Buren Street including street lighting, drainage improvements, electrical undergrounding, 

sidewalk and bicycle lanes and landscaping. 

Location: Avenue 48 from Dillon to Van Buren St 

Estimated Project Schedule: 03/2024-09/2025 

Estimated Cost: $2,046,000 

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 

 

 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of May 2023. 

Page 145

Item 15.



Resolution No. 2023-26  

 
 

Steven A. Hernandez 

Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 
Angela M. Zepeda 
City Clerk 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 
Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

Page 146

Item 15.



Resolution No. 2023-26  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2023-26 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 10th day of May 

2023 by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 

 

 
 

Delia Granados 

Deputy City Clerk 

Page 147

Item 15.



 

 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director 

SUBJECT: Community Facilities District (CFD No. 2005-01) Annexation 32 – (Placita 

Dolores Huerta– Phase 1 Parcel Map No. 37833) 

SPECIFICS: Ordinance No. 1202 on Behalf of CFD No. 2005-01 Authorizing the Levy  of a 

Special Tax within Annexation Area No. 32 Annexed to Said District (2nd 

Reading) 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council take the following action: 

 

1) Adopt Ordinance No. 1202 Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax within Annexation Area 

No. 32 Annexed to CFD No. 2005-01. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On September 14, 2005 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2005-93 establishing the City of 

Coachella Community Facilities District No. 2005-01 (Law Enforcement, Fire and Paramedic 

Services) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended.  The District 

and several annexations of territory have been established in the City of Coachella over the past 

17 years.  The annexation areas consist of new residential subdivisions and multifamily residential 

development projects.  

 

On March 22, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-17 stating its intention to annex 

certain property (84914 Bagdad Avenue), consisting of Placita Dolores Huerta– Phase 1 Parcel 

Map No. 37833 (“Annexation Area No. 32”) into the District pursuant to the Act.  A copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-17 which includes a description and map of Annexation Area No. 32, and 

the rate and method of apportionment and manner of collection of the special tax are on file with 

the City Clerk. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 

Pursuant to the conditions of approval imposed on Architectural Review No. 19-10, which 

approved demolition of 50 older apartment units with architectural plans for a 110 unit multi-

family residential community, the project site must be annexed into the City-wide Community 

Page 148

Item 16.



 

Facilities District (CFD No. 2005-01).  The City Council took the first step in this process by 

adopting a resolution of intention on March 22, 2023 (Resolution No. 2023-17) describing the 

property in question for the first phase consisting of 56 apartment units. The second phase of the 

development will be part of a separate CFD annexation area and special election.  The City Council 

canvassed the results of the special election on April 26, 2023 and the property owner voted in 

favor of annexing into the CFD 2005-1 and therefore approved Ordinance No. 1202 on first reading 

to authorize the levy of the special tax for Annexation Area No. 32.  The City Council must take 

action to adopt Ordinance No. 1202 by second reading in order to levy the special tax within 

Annexation 32.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The ordinance action would pave the way to annex the Placita Dolores Huerta site (Annexation 

No. 32) into the City-wide CFD which would collect an annual assessment that pays for Law 

Enforcement, Fire and Paramedic Services. The current rate and apportionment method would 

collect $1,348.10 for every dwelling unit that is constructed within the developed multifamily 

residential project. Ultimately, these funds will be used to augment the operating costs for police, 

fire, and paramedic services in the City of Coachella. 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Adopt the attached resolutions and introduce Ordinance 1202 (2nd Reading) 

2. Continue this item and provide staff with direction.  

3. Take no action. 

 

RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE(S): 

 

Staff recommends alternative #1. 

 

 
Attachments:   
 

1. Ordinance No. 1202 (2nd Reading) 
2. Exhibit A - Rate and Method (CFD 2005-01) 
3. Exhibit B - CFD Annexation Map 32 

 
 

Page 149

Item 16.



ORDINANCE NO. 1202 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA ACTING AS 

THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF CITY OF COACHELLA COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

DISTRICT NO. 2005-1 (LAW ENFORCEMENT, FIRE AND PARAMEDIC SERVICES) 

AUTHORIZING THE LEVY OF A SPECIAL TAX WITHIN ANNEXATION AREA 

NO. 32 ANNEXED TO SAID DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, on March 22, 2023, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Coachella, 

California (the “City”), adopted Resolution No. 2023-17 stating its intention to annex certain 

properties, consisting of Placita Dolores Huerta– Phase 1 Parcel Map No. 37833 (“Annexation 

Area No. 32”), into City of Coachella Community Facilities District No. 2005-1 (Law 

Enforcement, Fire and Paramedic Services) (the “District”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos 

Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, notice was published as required by law relative to the intention of the Council 

to annex Annexation Area No. 32 into the District; and 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2023 this Council held a noticed public hearing as required by 

law relative to the determination to proceed with the annexation of Annexation Area No. 32 into 

the District and the rate and method of apportionment and manner of collection of the special tax 

to be levied within Annexation Area No. 32 to finance certain public services; and 

WHEREAS, at said hearing all persons desiring to be heard on all matters pertaining to the 

annexation of Annexation Area No. 32 were heard and a full and fair hearing was held; and 

WHEREAS, the Council subsequent to said hearing adopted Resolution No. 2023-20 

determining the validity of prior proceedings relative to the annexation of Annexation Area No. 32, 

annexed Annexation Area Nos. 32, into the District and authorized the levy of a special tax within 

Annexation Area No. 32; and 

WHEREAS, the Council subsequent to said hearing adopted Resolution No. 2023-21 

which called an election within Annexation Area No. 32, for April 26, 2023 on the proposition of 

levying a special tax; and 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2023 an election was held within Annexation Area No. 32, in 

which the eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds vote the proposition of levying a 

special tax; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COACHELLA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. A special tax is levied within the boundaries of Annexation Area No. 32 

Exhibit “B”, pursuant to the formula set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference in an amount necessary to finance a portion of the cost of providing law enforcement, 

fire and paramedic services that are in addition to those provided in the territory within Annexation 

Area No. 32 prior to the annexation of Annexation Area Nos. 32, respectively, into the District. 

Page 150

Item 16.



Section 2. This legislative body is hereby further authorized each year, by resolution 

adopted as provided in section 53340 of the Act, to determine the specific special tax rate and 

amount to be levied for the next fiscal year, except that the special tax rate to be levied shall not 

exceed the maximum rate set forth in Exhibit “A.” 

Section 3. All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided for in the 

Act and Resolution No. 2023-20 of the Council. 

Section 4. The above authorized special tax shall be collected in the same manner as 

ordinary ad valorem taxes are collected and shall be subject to the same penalties and the same 

procedure and sale in cases of delinquency and provided for ad valorem taxes. 

Section 5. The Mayor shall sign this ordinance and the City Clerk shall attest to such 

signature.  The City Clerk is directed to cause the title and summary or text of the this ordinance, 

together with the vote thereon, to be published within fifteen (15) days after its passage at least 

once in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated within the territorial 

jurisdiction of the City, and to post at the main office of the City a certified copy of the full text of 

the adopted ordinance along with the names of the Council Members voting for and against the 

ordinance. 

Section 6. This ordinance relating to the levy of the special tax takes effect and shall 

be in force from and after 30 days from the date of final passage.  A copy of this ordinance shall 

be transmitted to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of Riverside County, the Assessor and the 

Treasurer-Tax Collector of Riverside County. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 

of Coachella on this 26th day of April 2023 by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

 

NOES:   

 

ABSENT:   

 

ABSTAIN:    

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Steven Hernandez, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Delia Granados, Deputy City Clerk  

 

Page 151

Item 16.



 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

     

 

______________________________ 

Carlos Campos, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE  ) SS 

CITY OF COACHELLA  ) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I, Andrea Carranza, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Coachella do hereby certify that the foregoing 

is a true and correct copy of an ordinance, being Ordinance No. 1202  duly passed and adopted at 

regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California held on the 10th  day of 

May 2023. 

 

 

 

 

By: _________________________ 
      Andrea Carranza, Deputy City Clerk 

Page 152

Item 16.



 

EXHIBIT A 

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

Page 153

Item 16.



 

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 1202 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on April 26, 2023, at the Council Chambers of the City 

of Coachella, 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 92236, the City Council of the City of 

Coachella, in its capacity as the legislative body of the City of Coachella Community Facilities 

District No. 2005-1 (Law Enforcement, Fire and Paramedic Services), held a public hearing and 

adopted Ordinance No. 1202.  A summary of Ordinance No. 1202 follows and is marked as Exhibit 

“A”.  At said time and place the testimony of all interested persons or taxpayers for or against said 

ordinance was heard. 

Ordinance No. 1202 was adopted by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 

 

 

     By:  Delia Granados, Deputy City Clerk  

      City of Coachella 

                  

 

Dated: May 11, 2023 

 

Page 154

Item 16.



 

EXHIBIT “A” 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA IN ITS 

CAPACITY AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2005-1 (LAW ENFORCEMENT, FIRE 

AND PARAMEDIC SERVICES) 

 

IN THE MATTER OF Authorizing 

the Levy of a Special Tax Within 

Annexation Area No. 32 Annexed 

to City of Coachella Community 

Facilities District No. 2005-1 (Law 

Enforcement, Fire and Paramedic 

Services) 

)  ORDINANCE NO. 1202  SUMMARY 

)   

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

The ordinance authorizes the levy of an annual special tax within Annexation Area No. 32 

annexed to City of Coachella Community Facilities District No. 2005-1 (Law Enforcement, Fire 

and Paramedic Services) (the “District”), collected in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem 

taxes, in an amount necessary to finance a portion of the cost of providing law enforcement, fire 

and paramedic services that are in addition to those provided in the territory within Annexation 

Area Nos. 32, prior to the annexation of Annexation Area Nos. 32, respectively, to the District, 

which is necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City as a result of development or 

rehabilitation occurring within Annexation Area No. 32. 

 

  

 

By: Delia Granados, Deputy City Clerk 

       City of Coachella 

 

 

Dated: June 1, 2022 

 

 

 

Page 155

Item 16.



1 

 

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR 

CITY OF COACHELLA COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2005-1 

(LAW ENFORCEMENT, FIRE AND PARAMEDIC SERVICES) 

 

A Special Tax as hereinafter defined shall be levied on all Assessor’s Parcels in Community 

Facilities District No. 2005-1 of the City of Coachella (the “CFD”) and collected each Fiscal Year 

commencing in Fiscal Year 2006-07, in an amount determined by the City Council of the City of 

Coachella, through the application of the Rate Method of Apportionment as described below. All 

of the real property in the CFD, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed 

for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided. 

 

A. DEFINITIONS 

 

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings: 

 

“Act” means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5, 

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California. 

 

“Assessor’s Parcel” means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor’s Parcel Map with an assigned 

Assessor’s parcel number. 

 

“Assessor’s Parcel Map” means an official map of the County Assessor of the County 

designating parcels by Assessor’s parcel number. 

 

“CFD Administration” means an official of the City, or designee thereof, responsible for 

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes. 

 

“CDF” means City of Coachella Community Facilities District No. 2005-1 (Law Enforcement, 

Fire and Paramedic Services).  

 

“City” means the City of Coachella. 

 

“City Council” means the City Council of the City. 

 

“Commercial or Industrial Property” means for each Fiscal Year, property for which a building 

permit for new construction of a commercial or industrial use building has been issued. 

 

“County” means the County of Riverside. 

 

“Developed Multi-Family Residential Property” means for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable 

Property for which a building permit for new construction of a multi-family dwelling with four or 

more units was issued prior to June 30 of the prior Fiscal Year, exclusive of property for which 

the property owner pays Transient Occupancy Taxes or the property owner has entered into an 

agreement with the City pursuant to which such property owner pays Transient Occupancy Taxes. 

 

Page 156

Item 16.



2 

 

“Developed Property” means for each Fiscal Year, all Developed Multi-Family Residential 

Property and Developed Single-Family Residential Property. 

 

“Developed Single-Family Residential Property” means for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable 

Property for which a building permit new construction of a single-family dwelling unit was issued 

prior to June 30 of the prior Fiscal Year. 

 

“Fiscal Year” means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30. 

 

“Resolution of Formation” means the resolution adopted by the City as authorized by Section 

53325.1 of the California Government Code. 

 

“Special Tax” means the special tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor’s Parcel 

Taxable Property. 

 

“State” means the State of California. 

 

“Taxable Property” means all the Assessor’s Parcels within the boundaries of the CFD which 

are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section E below. 

 

“Transient Occupancy Taxes” means those transient occupancy taxes payable to the City 

pursuant to Ordinance. 

 

“Undeveloped Property” means, for each Fiscal Year, all Assessor’s Parcels not classified as 

Developed Property or Commercial or Industrial Property. 

 

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CLASSES 

 

Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property within the CFD classified as Developed Single-Family 

Residential Property or Developed Multi-Family Residential Property shall be subject to Special 

Taxes in accordance with the rate and method of apportionment determined pursuant to Sections 

C and D below. 

 

C. MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX 

 

1. Developed Single-Family Residential Property 

 

a. Maximum Special Tax 

The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor’s Parcel classified as Developed Single-

Family Residential Property shall be $846.76 for Police Services and $511.34 for 

Fire/Paramedic Services. 

 

b. Increase in the Maximum Special Tax 

On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015, the Maximum Special Tax shall be increased 

by an amount equal to the percentage increase in the U.S. Department of Labor Statistics, 

Consumer Price Index, for Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County, California, for the 12 

Page 157

Item 16.



3 

 

month period ending the preceding December 31, of the amount in effect for the previous 

Fiscal Year. 

 

2. Developed Multi-Family Residential Property 

 

a. Maximum Special Tax 

The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor’s Parcel classified as Developed Multi-

Family Residential Property shall be $846.76 for Police Services and $511.34 for 

Fire/Paramedic Services multiplied by the number of separate dwelling units applicable to 

such Assessor’s Parcel. 

 

b. Increase in the Maximum Special Tax 

On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015, the Maximum Special Tax shall be increased 

by an amount equal to the percentage increase in the U.S. Department of Labor Statistics, 

Consumer Price Index, for Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County, California, for the 12 

month period ending the preceding December 31, of the amount in effect for the previous 

Fiscal Year.  

 

D. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAX 

 

Commencing with Fiscal Year 2005-06 and for each following Fiscal Year, the City Council shall 

levy the Special Tax at the Maximum Special Tax on all Developed Single-Family Residential 

Property and Developed Multi-Family Residential Property. 

 

E. EXEMPTIONS: EXCLUSIONS 

 

No Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property, Commercial or Industrial Property or 

for Developed Property developed as part of a development with less than 4 units. In the event that 

a Developed Multi-Family Residential Property that has been excluded from a levy of the Special 

Tax by reason of the payment by the property owner of Transient Occupancy Tax, and should that 

payment be terminated, such Assessor Parcel shall not longer be excluded from Developed Multi-

Family Residential Property and will be subject to the Special Tax. 

 

F. APPEALS AND INTERPRETATIONS 

 

Any taxpayer may file a written appeal of the Special Tax on his/her property with the CFD 

Administrator, provided that the appellant is current in his/her payments of Special Taxes. During 

the pendency of an appeal, all Special Taxes previously levied must be paid on or before the 

payment date established when the levy was made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the 

appellant claims the calculation of the Special Tax is in error. The CFD Administrator shall review 

the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD Administrator deems necessary, and advise the 

appellant of its determination. If the CFD Administrator agrees with the appellant, the CFD 

Administrator shall eliminate or reduce the Special Tax on the appellant’s property and/or provide 

a refund to the appellant. If the CFD Administrator disagrees with the appellant and the appellant 

is dissatisfied with the determination, the appellant then has 30 days in which to appeal to the 

Board by filing a written notice of appeal with the Board Secretary, provided that the appellant is 

Page 158

Item 16.



4 

 

current in his/her payments of Special Taxes. The second appeal must specify the reasons for its 

disagreement with the CFD Administrator’s determination. 

 

G. MANNER OF COLLECTION 

 

The Special Tax will be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad valorem 

property taxes; provided, however, that the CFD may directly bill the Special Tax, may collect 

Special Taxes at different time or in a different manner if necessary to meets its financial 

obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually foreclose on delinquent Assessor’s 

Parcels as permitted by the Act. 

 

H. PREPAYMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAX 

 

The Special Tax may not be prepaid. 

 

I. TERM OF THE SPECIAL TAX 

 

The Annual Maximum Special Tax shall be levied in perpetuity or unit Law Enforcement, Fire 

and Paramedic Services are no longer being provided by the City within the CFD, whichever is 

earlier.  

 
 

Page 159

Item 16.



Page 160

Item 16.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Castulo Estrada, Utilities Manager 

SUBJECT: Authorize Transfer of Funds in the Amount Of $124,626.00 from Measure A to 

Project S-24, Avenue 48 And Harrison Street Sewer Improvements. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize transfer of funds in the amount of $124,626.00 from Measure A to Project S-24, Avenue 

48 and Harrison Street Sewer Improvements. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On December 8, 2021 the City of Coachella acted to authorize the City Manager to execute a 

construction contract with Jones Bros Construction Company in the amount $2,031,522.30 and an 

amount of $203,152.23 for contingency for the construction of the Avenue 48 and Harrison Street 

Sewer Improvements, City Project S-24. 

 

On February 8, 2023 City Council authorized filing a Notice of Completion. The project was 

complete within budget.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

S-24 is a sewer project and thus sewer funds were used to pay for the project, however, during the 

design of the project it was determined by staff that Avenue 48th within the limits of this project 

required significant street improvements beyond the responsibilities of the Utilities Department or 

the original scope of the project that focused on sewer improvements. The project was modified 

to reconstruct Ave 48th within the limits of the sewer project with an intent to use Measure A and 

SB-1 funds for the added road improvement scope.    

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Transfer of funds in the amount of $124,626.00 from Measure A to Project S-24, Avenue 48 and 

Harrison Street Sewer Improvements (Sewer Connection Fund 361). 

Page 161

Item 17.



Page 162

Item 17.



Page 163

Item 17.



Page 164

Item 17.



Page 165

Item 17.



Page 166

Item 17.



Page 167

Item 17.



Page 168

Item 17.



Page 169

Item 17.



Page 170

Item 17.



ZIMMER
603232010

A G GREENLEAF
603242002

ANTHONY VINEYARDS INC
603290006

ANTHONY VINEYARDS INC
603300005

BUTZLAFF
603290005

A G GREENLEAF
603242001

BEJARANO
603290020

RAIL LINE
603232018

A G GREENLEAF
603480001

RAIL LINE
603232029

SRC OATES
603300011

DURAN
603290015

DESERT ROCK DEV
603110001

DELEON
603290014

DELARA
603290001

PROPCORP INC
603232022

SUN DATE LLC
603300021

BOSS 429 PROP
603232024

SUN DATE LLC
603300022

SFORCIN
603232026

SFORCIN
603232028

PROPCORP INC
603232021

NSA PROP HOLDINGS
603300031

CULTIVATION TECHNOLOGIES INC
603232023

HAMMOND RIVERSIDE
603232016

MORALES
603232025

BEJARANO
603290021

MORALES
603232027

µINCLUDED PROPERTIES MAP

Page 171

Item 17.

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Highlight

cestrada
Line

cestrada
Line

cestrada
Callout
SEWER LINE (RED)

cestrada
Highlight



 

STAFF REPORT 

4/26/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jacob Alvarez, Assistant to the City Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve a contribution to Coachella Valley Association of Governments’ CV 

Housing First program in the amount of $100,000 for current Fiscal Year 2022-

23 and MOU 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that Council approve the $100,000 contribution to the Coachella Valley 

Association of Governments CV Housing First Program for FY 2022/23 and establish an MOU 

with a 2 year term FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 with funding in the amount of $100,000 for each 

year. 

BACKGROUND: 

CVAG Homelessness Request for Funding- 

The City of Coachella as well as other communities within the Coachella Valley have 

collaborated on homelessness with CVAG since the opening and operation of Roy’s Desert 

Resource Center, which has since closed its doors.  This facility closed as of July 2017 and as a 

result, CVAG and its Homelessness Committee considered other options.  As a result, CVAG is 

in its second year of operating the CV Housing First Program 

 

The CV Housing First Program is focused on the CV200, which is a list of chronically homeless 

individuals residing in Coachella Valley cities that have frequent contacts with law enforcement 

and who are likely to be shelter resistant or who have already fallen out of housing.  This list was 

developed with the help of CVAG’s member jurisdictions and local law enforcement. 

 

CVAG Housing First staff help with overcoming barriers that keep people from attaining 

housing.  These barriers include identification paperwork to: qualify for benefits, attain housing, 

seek mental health and substance abuse support, apply for employment, and mainstream benefits.  

Additionally, CVAG’s crisis stabilization units all CV200 individuals to housing.  These units 

can be apartments and local hotel rooms where clients can stay up to 90 days that keep them off 

the streets. 

 

The last payment the City of Coachella provided to CVAG for homelessness was issued August 

2022 for Fiscal Year 2021/22.  Therefore, CVAG is looking for a CV Housing First program 

Page 172

Item 18.



payment for the current Fiscal Year 2022/23.  Additionally, CVAG is looking to execute a new 

MOU (see Exhibit 1) to seek funding for up to the next two years. 

 

Currently, three (Indian Wells, Palm Desert, and Palm Springs) cities have paid for the Fiscal 

Year 22/23. The other cities along with their MOU status are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This will cause a fiscal impact of $100,000 for fiscal year 2022-23 that will come from fund 

balance reserves.  The additional $100,000 per year could be budgeted as a General Fund 

expenditure over the next two years. 

 

EXHIBIT(S): 

 

1. DRAFT CVAG Multiyear MOU 

Page 173

Item 18.



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY/ TRIBAL NATION OF 
XXXXXX 

AND 
COACHELLA VALLEY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (the “Memorandum”) is made by and 
between the CITY/ TRIBE OF XXXX (“CITY” OR “TRIBE”) and the COACHELLA 

VALLEY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS (“CVAG”), as of October xx, 2022 with 
respect to the following: 

 
RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the City/ Tribe is interested in providing food, emergency shelter, 
and outreach to those in need and, in that regard would like to support the CVAG 

homelessness program; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City/ Tribe has been supporting CVAG’s CV Housing First 
program as a regional solution for homeless individuals; and  

 

WHEREAS, CVAG agrees to use the City/ Tribe funding for the CV Housing 
First program to provide case management and outreach services to homeless 

individuals in the Coachella Valley for the coming years; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City/ Tribe and CVAG agree to the following: 

 

1.0 TERM OF MEMORANDUM. The term of this Memorandum shall expire on 
June 30, 2024. 

 

2.0 OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES. 
 

2.1 CVAG shall provide the services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference (“Scope of Services”). CVAG shall deliver to 
the City/ Tribe quarterly reports detailing the CV Housing First program metrics as 

set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Quarterly 
Reports”). CVAG  shall comply with any and all federal, state, and local laws and 

regulations applicable to CVAG, the Scope of Services, and the use of the City/ Tribe 
Funds (as defined in Section 2.2 below) and the use of any other public moneys 

(collectively, the “Compliance Requirements”). 

 

2.2 The City/ Tribe will provide financial support of One Hundred Thousand Dollars 

each fiscal year for three years totaling Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000) 

(“City/ Tribe Funds”) to CVAG. Provided CVAG complies with its obligations under 
this Memorandum, the City shall disburse the City/ Tribe Funds no later than 60 days    

after the beginning of each fiscal year. All City/ Tribe Funds shall be used by CVAG 

Page 174

Item 18.



 

 

for the Scope of Services and for no other purpose. If CVAG fails to provide CV 
Housing First services for a fiscal year, the City/ Tribe may withhold an installment 

disbursement of the City/ Tribe Funds that has not yet been disbursed. If CVAG fails 
to comply with any Compliance Requirements, the City/ Tribe may (i) withhold an 

installment disbursement that has not yet been disbursed, (ii) order a return to the 
City/Tribe of any portion or all City/ Tribe Funds that were not used in compliance 

with this Memorandum or any other Compliance Requirements, and/or (iii) seek any 
other rights or remedies available at law or in equity. 

 

3.0 INDEMNITY AND RELEASE. CVAG hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and 
hold harmless the City/ Tribe and its officers, employees, agents and independent 

contractors (collectively, “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all of claims, 
causes of action, obligations, losses, liabilities, judgments, or damages, including 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation (collectively “Claims”) arising out 

of and/or in any way relating to CVAG’s activities in the performance of this 
Memorandum, or to CVAG’s acts and/or omissions in providing or administering the 

same, excepting only those claims, actions, obligations, losses, liabilities, 
judgments, or damages arising out of the sole negligence, active negligence or willful 

misconduct of the City/ Tribe. 

 

4.0 CVAG INSURANCE OBLIGATIONS. Without limiting the indemnification 

provisions provided herein, CVAG, at its sole expense, shall obtain and keep in force 
during the term of this Memorandum and any extensions thereof, a policy or policies 

of general liability insurance covering all injuries to persons and damage to property 
occurring in, upon or about the CVAG facility(ies) resulting from any actions or 

omissions of CVAG or any use of the CVAG facility(ies), or the CVAG’s invitees in 
accordance with the terms of this Memorandum. The policy or policies evidencing 

such insurance shall name the City/ Tribe as additional insureds, shall provide that 

same may not be cancelled or amended without thirty (30) days prior written notice 
to the City/ Tribe, and shall provide for a combined single limit coverage of bodily 

injury and property damage in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000). Such policy or policies shall be issued by an insurance company 

licensed to do business in the State   of California and be rated A-/VIII or better by 
ambest.com. Prior to the date of this Memorandum, and upon renewal of such policies, 

CVAG shall submit to the City/ Tribe certificates of insurance and any applicable 
endorsements evidencing that the foregoing policy or policies are in effect. The 

coverage contemplated in this paragraph will be primary and the City’s/ Tribe’s 
coverage will not contribute. CVAG shall provide workers’ compensation insurance 

in accordance with California law. 
 

5.0 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. 
 

5.1 In all cases, the language in all parts of this Memorandum shall be construed 

according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either party, if being 
agreed that the parties or their agents have all participated in the preparation of 

this Memorandum. 

Page 175

Item 18.



 

 

5.2 This Memorandum contains the entire agreement of the Parties and 
supersedes any prior oral or written statements or agreements between the Parties 
regarding the operation of CVAG’s CV Housing First Program. 

 

5.3 No termination of this Memorandum shall release either party from any liability 
or obligation hereunder resulting from any acts, omissions or events happening prior 

to the termination of this Memorandum. 

 

5.4 In the event either party brings any suit or other proceeding with respect to 
the subject matter or enforcement of this Memorandum, the prevailing party (as 

determined by California law) shall, in addition to such other relief as may be 

awarded, be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees, expenses and costs of 
suit or investigation as actually incurred (including, without limitation, reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs incurred in establishing the right to 
indemnification). 

 
[signatures on next page] 

  

Page 176

Item 18.



 

 

 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Coachella Valley Association of Governments and PUBLIC 
ENTITY have executed this Memorandum as evidenced by the signatures contained 

below: 

 

 

 
 

 

[PUBLIC ENTITY] 

 
 

By:___________________________ 
 
Name:___________________________ 

 
Title:____________________________ 

 
Dated: ________________________ 

 

 
COACHELLA VALLEY 

ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
 
By:_____________________________ 
 

Name:___________________________ 
 
Title:____________________________ 

 
 

Dated: __________________________ 
 

 

Page 177

Item 18.



Page 5 of 7 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Scope of Services 

 
Provide services to unhoused individuals and families in the Coachella Valley, 

and more specifically in [CITY/GEOGRAPHIC AREA], who are literally homeless 
by providing outreach, connections to housing solutions (including crisis stabilization 

housing and/or permanent solutions), rapid resolution assistance for one-time 
emergency needs such as move-in costs, or other supportive services and resources 

such as food distribution, legal clinics, and linkages to services. 
 
  

Page 178

Item 18.



Page 6 of 7 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Reporting Requirements 
 

 The reporting that shall be provided should be similar to CVAG’s own CV Housing First quarterly 
reports.  

 
CVAG will provide the City of Coachella with quarterly reports that incorporates city centric 

data which includes but not limited to: Housed from CV 200- Clients housed in Crisis Stabilization Units 

(CSH), Clients being helped through Rapid Resolution (RR), Clients returned to the street (failures), Clients 
moved into permanent housing from CSH (successes), Clients moved into permanent housing through RR 
(successes) and Non CV200 - Households Housed in CSH Units, Households being helped through RR, 
Households returned to the street (failures) Households moved into permanent housing from CSH 
(successes), Households moved into permanent housing from RR (successes). 
 
The City may request a presentation at a City Council meeting should its City Council have questions about 
the program. 

Page 179

Item 18.



Page 180

Item 19.



Page 181

Item 19.



Page 182

Item 19.



Page 183

Item 19.



Page 184

Item 19.



Page 185

Item 19.



Page 186

Item 19.



Page 187

Item 19.



Page 188

Item 19.



Page 189

Item 19.



Page 190

Item 19.



Page 191

Item 19.



Page 192

Item 19.



Page 193

Item 19.



Page 194

Item 19.



Page 195

Item 19.



Page 196

Item 19.



Page 197

Item 19.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: 
 

Celina Jimenez, Economic Development Director 

Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director 

SUBJECT: 
 

Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Letter of Agreement with CannaBiz 

Consulting Group for Cannabis Social Equity Consulting Services in a Not-to-

Exceed Amount of $50,000 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the 

attached Letter of Agreement with CannaBiz Consulting Group, in a not-to-exceed amount of 

$50,000 for the provision of cannabis technical assistance services. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 

On May 13, 2021 the City Council approved a consulting agreement with CannaBiz Consulting 

Group for the “2020 Cannabis Consulting Services” in the amount of $25,000.  The major tasks 

of the Agreement included staff assistance services for the following tasks:  

 

 Creating and processing a merit-based review program for new retail cannabis – round #2 

applicants. 

 Assist in preparing scoring sheets and finalized scoring criteria and related print material. 

 Establish an internet portal for applicants submitting new Applications.  

 Establish regular communication with applicants as a City staff liaison. 

 Develop clear forms and transparent procedures for applicants, on an Internet portal. 

 Maintain all Application records and make them available to the public. 

 Incorporate the City’s Cannabis Social Equity policies for applicants. 

 

The consultant’s work was authorized by staff to be augmented in late 2020 to include additional 

tasks related to the City’s social equity program, applicant verifications, and technical assistance, 

and there were cannabis appeals meetings held in early 2021 that require extending the term of 

the Agreement. Accordingly, staff is recommending initiation of a new Agreement with 

CannaBiz Consulting Group until October 31, 2024. 

 

 

 

Page 198

Item 20.



DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Attached to this staff report is a document entitled Letter of Agreement that will include a 

termination date of October 31, 2024 and include the following tasks:  

 

 Amend the Social Equity Assessment Report 

 Improve the Social Equity Program 

 Conduct Operational Workshops 

 Provide technical assistance hours to CSEP Licensees 

 Provide assistance to City Staff 

    

The CannaBiz Consulting Group Agreement will qualify for grant funding under California 

Bureau of Cannabis Control (BCC) social equity grant.  The city currently has $50,000 of grant 

funds that can be used for technical assistance services.  

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Letter of Agreement with CannaBiz Consulting 

Group for the Provision of Cannabis Social Equity Consulting Services in a not-to-exceed 

Amount of $50,000 

 

2. Not Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Letter of Agreement with CannaBiz 

Consulting Group for the Provision of Cannabis Social Equity Consulting Services in a 

not-to-exceed Amount of $50,000 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The Agreement with CannaBiz Consulting Group will be paid out of existing GO-Biz Cannabis 

Grant funding. The City was awarded $50,000 for this provision of service. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Agreement with CannaBiz Consulting Group  

2. CannaBiz Consulting Group Proposal  

3. Former Agreement with CannaBiz Consulting Group 

 

Page 199

Item 20.



 

 

 

 

 

 

April 01, 2023 

 

Christopher Martinez  

CannaBiz Consulting Group  

P.O. Box 40  

Indio, CA 92202  

 

Re:  Letter of Agreement for “Cannabis Social Equity Consulting Services” 

 

Dear Mr. Martinez: 

 

This letter shall be our Agreement regarding consultant services for the City of 

Coachella’s Cannabis Social Equity Program as described below (“Services”) to be provided by 

CannaBiz Consulting Group, a California limited liability company (“Contractor”) as an 

independent contractor to the City of Coachella for the various applications to be received by the 

City (“Applications”).  

The Services to be provided include the following:  

 

1. Analyze Data. Review Coachella census data and Coachella policing agency's cannabis 

arrest records. Analyze Social Equity programs of cities with similar demographics to 

identify barriers for social equity applicants and equity policies with proven success. 

 

2. Community Outreach. Conduct workshops to educate, solicit feedback, and inform 

community residents of current and future social equity opportunities. 

 

3. Generate Report. Generate a report with findings from data and community outreach to 

amend the existing report. The report will include recommendations on how to 

incorporate social equity opportunities into the current local cannabis industry and how to 

improve the existing social equity program. 
 

4. Consult. Allocate 20 hours of compliance consulting to existing social equity license 

holders. Consulting can be utilized for compliance, improving operational efficiencies, 

and application renewals. 
 

5. Workshops. Host industry workshops to instruct cannabis operators on how to 

compliantly manage inventory, generate sales, report waste, and other required 

procedures. 
 

6. Technical Assistance. Provide ongoing assistance to city staff and CSEP participants. 

This will help cannabis equity applicants and licensees acquire the knowledge and/or  

 

Page 200

Item 20.



 

 

skills necessary in order to gain entry to, and to successfully operate. One-on-one consulting and 

training, including direct interactions in group settings, to provide equity applicants and licensees 

the technical knowledge and expertise necessary to facilitate business ownership and 

employment in the cannabis industry. 

 

7. The above tasks will be billed on a “time and material” basis based on the following 

rates:  

 

Senior Consultant ……………....$200 per hour  

Project Manager ……………......$125 per hour  

Project Assistant………………… $75 per hour 

 

Contractor shall perform all Services under this Letter of Agreement in a skillful 

and competent manner, consistent with the standards generally recognized as being employed by 

professionals in the same discipline in the State of California, and consistent with all applicable 

laws.  Contractor represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, 

qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, 

including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained 

throughout the term of this Agreement.  Compensation for the above services shall be based on 

the actual amount of time spent in adequately performing the Services, and shall be billed at the 

hourly rate of $200.00 for Contractor and support staff identified above.  However, unless 

expressly agreed in writing in advance by the City, the cost to the City for the Services shall not 

exceed fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00).  

 

Contractor shall provide proof of commercial general liability and automobile 

insurance to the City in amounts and with policies, endorsements and conditions required by the 

City for the Services. If Contractor is an employer or otherwise hires one or more employees during 

the term of the Projects, Contractor shall also provide proof of workers’ compensation coverage 

for such employees which meet all requirements of state law. Contractor shall also provide errors 

and omissions professional liability insurance appropriate to its profession in an amount, with 

conditions and for a term acceptable to the City. 

 

Contractor shall submit to City a monthly itemized statement which indicates work 

completed and hours of Services rendered by Contractor.  The statement shall describe the amount 

of Services and supplies provided since the initial commencement date, or since the start of the 

subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, through the date of the current billing period. 

 

City shall review and pay the approved charges on such invoices in a timely 

manner.  Services on the Projects shall begin as of April 01, 2023 and be completed by October 

31, 2024 unless extended by the City in writing.  The City may terminate this Letter of Agreement 

at any time with or without cause.  If the City finds it necessary to terminate this Letter of 

Agreement without cause before Projects completion, Contractor shall be entitled to be paid in full 

for those Services adequately completed prior to the notification of termination.  Contractor may 

terminate this Letter of Agreement for cause only. 

 

Page 201

Item 20.



 

 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 

the City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any and 

all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury, in law or 

equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining 

to, or relating to any negligence, errors or omissions, recklessness, or willful misconduct of 

Contractor, its officials, officers, employees, agents, consultants, and contractors arising out of or 

in connection with the performance of the Contractor’s Services, including without limitation the 

payment of all consequential damages, expert witness fees, and attorneys fees and other related 

costs and expenses. Contractor shall defend, at Contractor’s own cost, expense and risk, any and 

all such aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or 

instituted against City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  

Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City 

or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other 

legal proceeding.  Contractor shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in 

connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Contractor’s obligation to 

indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

 

If you agree with the terms of this Letter of Agreement, please indicate by signing 

and dating where indicated below.  An original, executed copy of this Letter of Agreement is 

enclosed for your records. 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA    CONTRACTOR 

 

Approved by:      Reviewed and Accepted by Contractor: 

 

 

                                                                                                                           

Gabriel Martin           Date:    Signature                                Date: 

City Manager 

 

 

Approved as to form:                                                                  

Name 

 

                                                                                                                           

Carlos Campos      Title 

City Attorney    

Page 202

Item 20.



C I T Y  O F  C O A C H E L L A
P R O P O S A L

 

P R E P A R E D  B Y :
C H R I S T O P H E R  M A R T I N E Z
S E N I O R  C O N S U L T A N T
C H R I S T O P H E R @ C A N N A B I Z C G . C O M
( 7 6 0 )  8 9 9 - 8 0 2 5

C A N N A B I S  S O C I A L
E Q U I T Y  C O N S U L T I N G

Page 203

Item 20.



Implementation of social equity policies into cannabis licensing procedures;
Oversight of cannabis social equity policy and verification processing;
Oversight of social equity grant disbursement for cannabis businesses;  
Hosting cannabis licensing and application workshops to assist applicants;
Creating a website to provide cannabis application and social equity information;
Successful procurement of conditional use permits, regulatory permits, business
licenses, and state cannabis operating licenses in several jurisdictions;
Writing and implementing standard operating procedures in compliance with local
and state regulations;
Writing and implementing security procedures in compliance with local and state
regulations;
Writing and implementing track and trace procedures and waste management
procedures; 
Establishing compliant packaging, labeling, and marketing procedures;
Establishing procedures to meet strict and extensive audit and record-keeping
requirements;
Compliance oversight of cultivation, manufacturing, and distribution facilities; and
Applying and obtaining state cannabis licenses.

Since 2018, CannaBiz has taken vital roles in representing cannabis clients,
establishing compliant and effective operating procedures, and licensing procurement
for multiple corporate cannabis facilities in Southern California. Our most recent
work consisted of consulting for a retail license recipient in the City of Moreno Valley,
where we provided technical assistance to license and open the business compliantly
on January 6, 2023. This project and our overall experience in the industry have
exposed us to a myriad of demands and responsibilities associated with managing a
project from construction buildout to acquiring the necessary licenses to begin
operations. We are familiar with a multitude of cannabis application programs
including social equity programs throughout the State of California. Our experience
has given us the ability to recognize, anticipate, and resolve potential issues to ensure
the desired outcome is achieved. The range of our experience in California includes
but is not limited to:

Technical ProposalTechnical Proposal
QualificationsQualifications

Page 204

Item 20.



Engage community and industry input to understand current needs
Identify disparities in cannabis-related arrests through police data
Identify disproportionately disadvantaged communities through census data
Identify cannabis arrest hotspots with police data
Identify potentially eligible communities with the findings of the data review
Improve the CSEP to better serve social equity applicants   

Amending the existing CSEP analysis to be used for future SEED Grants
Soliciting community engagement 
Soliciting industry feedback  
Retrieving Data related to cannabis arrests is limited
Some residents may not welcome additional cannabis businesses
Providing resources for existing social equity applicants
Incorporating a viable equity program into a matured local cannabis industry

Situation Analysis: The City of Coachella has permitted licensed cannabis operations under
Proposition 215 state regulations and was the first city in the Coachella Valley to pursue policies
to allow cannabis operations within the City legally. On January 1, 2018, Medical and Adult Use
Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MAUCRSA”) became the new cannabis law of California.
Unfortunately, individuals who were disproportionately affected by the previous cannabis
regulations have encountered numerous barriers of entry in their pursuit of a cannabis license
under the new regulations. In the cannabis arrest report prepared by the Marijuana Arrest
Research Projects and presented to the Drug Policy Alliance and the California NAACP, African
Americans were arrested for cannabis offenses up to 12 times the rate of White Americans
between 2008 and 2010. These types of disparities can be seen across the state to this day and
are also experienced by Latinos. The disproportionate arresting of minorities by the previous
marijuana laws has made it more difficult for minorities to participate in the current cannabis
market. This is why the State of California has created a social equity program. Coachella has
implemented a Social Equity program in an attempt to lower this barrier and has an opportunity
to improve the program. Since the creation of the program, the City has licensed three social
equity retailers with two currently operating. Christopher Martinez will utilize his professional
experience of reviewing California Social Equity programs of various jurisdictions for Coachella
and will implement his personal experience of being a social equity applicant of Los Angeles to
better understand how to best engage and serve the community to improve the existing
program. In order to reach our goal of lowering the barrier of entry into the cannabis industry
and providing opportunities for success, we must execute on the following items:

Goals

 
Challenges                

 

 

Work PlanWork Plan
OverviewOverview

Page 205

Item 20.



Analyze Data: Review Coachella census data and Coachella policing agency's cannabis arrest
records. Analyze Social Equity programs of cities with similar demographics to identify barriers
for social equity applicants and equity policies with proven success.
Community Outreach: Conduct workshops to educate, solicit feedback, and inform community
residents of current and future social equity opportunities.
Generate Report: Generate a report with findings from data and community outreach to
amend the existing report. The report will include recommendations on how to incorporate
social equity opportunities into the current local cannabis industry and how to improve the
existing social equity program.
Consult: Allocate 20 hours of compliance consulting to existing social equity license holders.
Consulting can be utilized for compliance, improving operational efficiencies, and application
renewals.
Workshop: Host industry workshops to instruct cannabis operators on how to compliantly
manage inventory, generate sales, report waste, and other required procedures.
Technical Assistance: Provide ongoing assistance to city staff and CSEP participants. This will
help cannabis equity applicants and licensees acquire the knowledge and/or skills necessary in
order to gain entry to, and to successfully operate. One-on-one consulting and training,
including direct interactions in group settings, to provide equity applicants and licensees the
technical knowledge and expertise necessary to facilitate business ownership and employment
in the cannabis industry. 

Utilize census data to identify regions with high poverty and minority populations
Analyze police cannabis arrest data to identify regions with higher arrest rates
Utilize data findings to produce color-coded maps of Coachella showing income demographics
and arrest rates
Utilize the City's listserve to conduct industry outreach with a Q & A document
Hold a community workshop for community input
Provide digital outreach in English and Spanish
Provide an email account or website for Coachella residents to leave feedback
Review city cannabis license data to identify current and past cannabis ownership
demographics to understand current trends
Use data findings to identify additional eligibility criteria
Analyze social equity programs of other cities with similar demographics to identify policies
that fit Coachella

Deliverables

Tactics:  

 

Work DeliverablesWork Deliverables  
and Tacticsand Tactics

Page 206

Item 20.



City Residents
Community Leaders
Current License Holders
City Officials

Schedule Progress meetings: We will schedule meetings with city staff to provide
updates and maintain deadlines. Up to a total of four meetings with city staff will be held. 
Email Account: An email account will be set up for questions and community responses
that will forward to each team member's email. 
Phone Line: A phone line will be set up for direct communication with city staff and
community members

Amend the Social Equity Assessment Report 
Improve the Social Equity Program
Conduct Operational Workshops
Provide technical assistance hours to CSEP Licensees
Provide assistance to City Staff

Target Audiences:

Communications:

Final Results:

In order to ensure the quality of the social equity program, we will utilize the work plan to
get an accurate pulse of the community's needs and improve the CSEP:
 

The Project Manager will meet with his team members with all data and information
gathered from the above strategies to begin drafting the assessment study and CSEP
amendments. Our team will go through a three-stage draft. The initial draft will be
produced by the project manager, and second by the project assistant. Close after, we will
schedule a status meeting with city staff and request final input. Once the final input is
received from city staff, the CannaBiz project team will meet to finalize the assessment
amendments for approval.

 

 

 

Work PlanWork Plan
ContinuedContinued

Page 207

Item 20.



Proposed Fees: CannaBiz will not exceed the 10% allotted by the state's Cannabis Equity
Grant Program which equates to $50,000.00.

Social Equity Consulting:
 

Hourly Rates: 
Senior Consultant

$200.00
Project Manager

$125.00
Project Assistant

$75.00
 

Referrals:
 

Kevin Flores, Owner
Its420Time

kevin@the420time.com
 

Nicolas Meza, Owner
Coachella Smoke Dispensary

cscoachella@yahoo.com
 

Charles Pfeifer, CEO
CEO of We Care Cat City (Cannabis Manufacturing)

charles@guidegroups.com
 

*Phone numbers can be provided upon request
 

 

 

Fees and ReferralsFees and Referrals

Page 208

Item 20.



c i t y  o f  C o a c h e l l a
c a n n a b i s  E Q U I T Y
C o n s u l t i n g
" O U R  P R O P O S E D  S E R V I C E S  A R E  I N T E N D E D
T O  G I V E  C O A C H E L L A  T H E  T O O L S  N E E D E D
T O  C R E A T E  A  S O C I A L  E Q U I T Y  P R O G R A M
T H A T  B R I N G S  D O W N  T H E  L I C E N S I N G
B A R R I E R S  E N C O U N T E R E D  B Y  T H O S E
A D V E R S E L Y  A F F E C T E D  B Y  C A N N A B I S
P R O H I B I T I O N "

We greatly appreciate the
opportunity to provide this proposal
to the City of Coachella and look
forward to your consideration.  

Kindest Regards,

Christopher Martinez
Senior Consultant
CannaBiz Consulting Group

Page 209

Item 20.



C" I I Y F C o "\ c I I I,: I, I

1; — 9 Q f ) F N  d t s \ Vy) ) (, a g n   i p v, ( , r C i u  r i r , x , r 012230

May 14, 2020

Christopher Martinez

CannaBiz Consulting Group
P 0 Box 40

Indio CA 92202

t ( \ I Q 7" Cq ' I ) X — 15 ( 9 , 0 v, v, vV , ( aj \ a ) R , 

Re: Letter of Agreement for " 2020 Cannabis Consulting Services" 
Dear Mr. Martinez: 

This letter shall be our Agreement regarding consultant services for the City of
Coachella' s cannabis retail round # 2 applications review and appeals programming as described
below (" Services") to be provided by CannaBiz Consulting Group, a California limited liability
company (" Contractor") as an independent contractor to the City of Coachella for the various
applications to be received by the City (" Applications"). 

The Services to be provided include the following: 
1. Assist City of Coachella staff with professional consultant tasks as assigned by the City

Manager or designee including, but not limited to, the following: 

a. Assist with creating and processing a merit -based review program for new Applications. 
b. Assist in preparing scoring sheets and finalized scoring criteria and related print material
c. Establish an internet portal for applicants submitting new Applications. 
d. Establish regular communication with applicants as a City staff liaison. 
e. Develop clear forms and transparent procedures for applicants, on an Internet portal. 
f. Maintain all Application records and make them available to the public. 

g. Incorporate the City' s Cannabis Social Equity policies for applicants. 

2. Assist staff with " Completeness Reviews". Contractor shall organize all electronic and

hard -copy files for Conditional Use Pen -nits, Cannabis Regulatory Permits, architectural
drawings, and related submittal requirements for the Round # 2 Retail Cannabis

Applications. This task includes coordinating the " completeness review" and sending out
incompleteness letters" as needed based on the City' s Prioritization/ Selection Criteria. 

Contractor shall attend one staff meeting and communicate with each individual
applicant, as directed by the City Manager and designee. 

3. Coordination of Cannabis Review Committee duties. Contractor shall organize all hard

copies and electronic copies of material needed for adequate review by the Committee, 
facilitate the review and ranking process with the Review Committee members as
needed, conduct site visits , and otherwise engaging in detailed discussions about each
project. 

I P1  ffinm Ot %' , . I r '0 m [" qnol ( )ppe w1miql I wr

Page 210

Item 20.



4. Coordination of scorin z sheets. heets. Contractor shall provide guidance to the Review Committee

members as a staff liaison without influencing their independent judgment, on scores for each

application, and presenting the final scoring sheets and backup material to the Director of
Development Services. 

5. Participation in Appeals Hearings. To the extent needed, Contractor shall attend the Appeal

Hearings as expert witness outlining how the Review Committee arrived at the individual scores
for appellant applications. 

6. The above tasks will be billed on a " time and material" basis based on the following rates: 

Senior Consultant ...................$ 200 per hour

Project Manager .....................$ 125 per hour

Project Assistant ..................... $ 75 per hour

Contractor shall perform all Services under this Letter of Agreement in a skillful and

competent manner, consistent with the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals
in the same discipline in the State of California, and consistent with all applicable laws. Contractor

represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals

of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City Business License, and
that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement. Compensation

for the above services shall be based on the actual amount of time spent in adequately performing the
Services, and shall be billed at the hourly rate of $200. 00 for Contractor and support staff identified above. 

However, unless expressly agreed in writing in advance by the City, the cost to the City for the Services
shall not exceed twenty five thousand dollars ($ 25, 000. 00). 

Contractor shall provide proof of commercial general liability and automobile insurance to

the City in amounts and with policies, endorsements and conditions required by the City for the Services. 

If Contractor is an employer or otherwise hires one or more employees during the term of the Projects, 
Contractor shall also provide proof of workers' compensation coverage for such employees which meet all

requirements of state law. Contractor shall also provide errors and omissions professional liability insurance
appropriate to its profession in an amount, with conditions and for a term acceptable to the City. 

Contractor shall submit to City a monthly itemized statement which indicates work
completed and hours of Services rendered by Contractor. The statement shall describe the amount of

Services and supplies provided since the initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent

billing periods, as appropriate, through the date of the current billing period. 

City shall review and pay the approved charges on such invoices in a timely manner. 

Services on the Projects shall begin as of May 14, 2020 and be completed by December 30, 2020 unless

extended by the City in writing. The City may terminate this Letter of Agreement at any time with or

without cause. If the City finds it necessary to terminate this Letter of Agreement without cause before
Projects completion, Contractor shall be entitled to be paid in full for those Services adequately completed

prior to the notification of termination. Contractor may terminate this Letter of Agreement for cause only. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the
City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, 
demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or

2

Page 211

Item 20.



persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to any negligence, 
errors or omissions, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Contractor, its officials, officers, employees, 

agents, consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the Contractor' s
Services, including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, expert witness fees, and
attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Contractor shall defend, at Contractor' s own cost, 

expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every kind that may

be brought or instituted against City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City or its

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal
proceeding. Contractor shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/ or

volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of* tllem in connection therewith or in
enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Contractor' s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to

insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or
volunteers. 

Unless otherwise approved by the parties in writing, allowable expenses for the Contractor
shall be limited to reimbursement of mileage at $. 55 per mile for meetings or site visits as requested by the

City. The Contractor' s hourly rate may be charged at a maximum of 50% during any travel time associated

with tasks regarding applications / projects. 

If you agree with the terms of this Letter of Agreement, please indicate by signing and

dating where indicated below. An original, executed copy of this Letter of Agreement is enclosed for your
records. 

Approved by: 

William B. Pattison Date: 

City Manager

Approved as lo, lbrm.- 

rcl000— .-.

0000010
qwll 

Carlos Campos

City Attorney

I

XMI

Reviewed and Accepted by Contractor. - 

Signature Date: 

Name

Title

Page 212

Item 20.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director  

SUBJECT: Approve cooperative agreement for El Grito Event between: the City of 

Coachella, Telemundo and Mexican Consulate in San Bernardino and approve 

operation of a beer garden at Rancho Las Flore Park for the 2023 El Grito Event.  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve cooperative agreement for El Grito Event between: the City of Coachella, Telemundo 

and Mexican Consulate in San Bernardino and approve operation of a beer garden at Rancho Las 

Flore Park for the 2023 El Grito Event. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The El Grito event is an annual City event delivered in partnership with the following agencies: 

Telemundo, and the Mexican Consulate in San Bernardino (Consulate).  After meeting with the 

event partners, staff is recommending the 2023 event date be Saturday, September 16th from 3pm 

-10/11pm at Rancho Las Flores Park.  This event draws 15,000-20,000 attendees; this is the largest 

of the city’s annual events.  

 

The cooperative agreement identifies the responsibilities of each party.  The City provides the 

venue, coordinates and secures food vendors, informational booths, will publish and award RFP 

for beer garden operator to a Coachella licensed business, provides/develops all event passes, 

manages parking, provides security officers, provides all utilities, develops VIP area and provides 

VIP food, and pays for the stage costs.  Telemundo secures all live entertainment, solicits all 

sponsorships, manages the stage day of event, provides a DJ for event, and pays for all 

advertisement of event; the contribution by Telemundo is estimated at $100,000.  The Consulado 

coordinates and performs the “El Grito” ceremony for the event.    

 

Staff is recommending approval of this cooperative agreement and authorizing operation of a beer 

garden at Rancho Las Flores Park for the 2023 “El Grito” event at Rancho Las Flores Park on 

September 16, 2023 from 3pm to 11pm. 

 

 

 

 

Page 213

Item 21.



FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

This event has been included in the budget submittals for FY 2023/24; the city’s contribution for 

this event is estimated at $120,000. 

 

Attachment: Cooperative Agreement 

Page 214

Item 21.



1 
 

AGREEMENT 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of May 10, 2023 by and between Gulf-California Broadcast 

Company for KUNA Telemundo 15 and La Poderosa 96.7 (“KUNA-TV-FM”), the City of Coachella (“City”) 

and the Mexican Consulate (“Consulate”) in reference to the following facts.  

RECITALS 

A. KUNA-TV-FM is in the business of advertising and promoting special events and festivals;  

B. The City has approached KUNA-TV-FM to partner in delivering Fiestas Patrias (“Event”) which in 

2023 would be held on September 16, 2023 at Rancho Las Flores Park, in the City of Coachella, 

from 3pm to 10pm; 

C. The City’s goal for the Event is to promote and enhance the good will and reputation of the City 

of Coachella, attract visitors to the City and to provide positive cultural education and 

experience for the residents and visitors to the City; and  

D. Therefore, the parties have agreed to collaborate with one another in connection with the 

development, production and promotion of the Event.  

WHEREFORE, the parties agree as follows. 

AGREEMENT 

1. Collaboration.  The parties hereby agree to collaborate for the purpose of presenting the Event. 

The Event will be held on September 16, 2023.  The target attendance is 15,000-20,000 

participants, exclusive of event staff, vendors and performers.  

2. Contributions By KUNA-TV-FM.  KUNA Telemundo 15 and La Poderosa 96.7 will be responsible 

for performing and sponsoring payment of  the following: 

a. Arranging for marketing and promotion of the Event: 

i. Five week on-air promotion (August 13, 2023 – September 18, 2023) 

1. KUNA Telemundo 15 

a. 150x – KUNA Telemundo, 30 second shared promos 

b. Minimum of 10x – On-Air mentions during the KUNA Noticias  

newscast at 6pm and 11pm the week leading to the event 

c. On air interviews with the City, Consulate or any talent available 

the week of the event. 

d. 35x - Proof of Performance post event spots to air the week 

after the event 

2. La Poderosa 96.7  

a. 150x – KUNA-FM, 60 second shared promos 

b. 90x – 30 second event promos  

c. 375x – Live DJ On-Air Event Mentions  

d. Minimum of 1,200 Artist/Event Headliners promoting the event 

e. On air Interviews during the morning show with the City, 

Consulate or any talent available the week of the event. 

Page 215

Item 21.



2 
 

f. 35x – Proof of Performance post event spots to air the week 

after the event 

3. Social media and kunamundo.com 

a. Frequent KUNA Noticias Telemundo 15 and La Poderosa 96.7 

Facebook posts and KUNA Telemundo Instagram,  

b. Rotating Leaderboard and rectangle web banners on 

kunamundo.com 

c. 150x – 60 second shared promos on streaming radio 

d. Banner ad on streaming radio 

ii. Provided for at Event site and on Event date: 

1. KUNA Telemundo and La Poderosa 96.7 hourly Facebook posts and 

KUNA Telemundo Instagram coverage; 

2. News coverage on KUNA Telemundo of event on air at 6pm and 11pm 

the following Monday on September 18th;  

3. One (1), two(2) hour live remote on location from 1pm-3pm;  

4. Eight (8) – live onsite mentions on day of event by remote staff; 

5. Event Emcees for entire event 3pm-10pm (KUNA Telemundo and La 

Poderosa 96.7 On-Air Talent). 

iii. Total media value of promotional support $80,000.00 

iv. Live Entertainment  

1. DJ to play in between sets on Event main stage 3pm-10pm 

2. Book headliners for the Event commencing at 3pm on Event main stage;  

a. Headliners will include at least three bands performing for forty-

five (45) minutes each;  

b. Confirm and provide all headliner requested amenities and 

Green Room(s);  

c. Confirm a local talent band performing for forty-five (45) 

minutes; 

d. Provide Total entertainment value of booking headliners should 

equal not less than $20,000-$30,000; 

e. Develop sponsorship packages;  

f. Locating and engaging sponsors for the Event; 

g. Locating and engaging a stage sponsor for the Event. 

3. Contributions By City.  The City will be responsible for performing and paying for the following: 

a. Interfacing with all appropriate governmental agencies and facilitating, to the extent 

reasonably possible, required for the Event to be held lawfully (Fire Department, ABC 

License and Health Department Permit) and approvals which are required for the Event 

to be held lawfully as it pertains to beer and food sales; 

b. Provide youth activities and kid zone rentals; 

c. Selecting and providing in-kind services for the following needs: parking attendants, 

sanitation, solid waste, and first aid; 

d. Provide Utilities (water, power, greywater) as needed for Event;  

Page 216

Item 21.



3 
 

e. Furnish all public safety, traffic control services needed for Event; 

f. Arrange for all components of Event parking;  

g. Furnish rentals for Food Vendor Booths and VIP Area; 

h. Provide food and beverages for VIP area;  

i. Manage and secure all food vendor booth entries 

j. Provide for stage and sound costs after sponsorship contributions are applied to the 

aggregate stage and sound expenses. 

k. Selecting and contracting for security personnel for Event Beer Garden, Event Venue – 

personnel minimum 14; 

l. Selecting and contracting for beer garden supplies and sales;  

m. VIP/Vendor event passes and VIP/Vendor/Artist parking passes 

4. Contributions by the Mexican Consulate San Bernardino Office.  The Consulate will be 

responsible for the following: 

a. Perform “El Grito” Ceremony on September 16, 2023; 

b. Arrange performance of Mexican Anthem. 

5. Event Location.  The location of the Event will be the Rancho Las Flores Park, in the City of 

Coachella, commencing at 3pm and ending at 10pm. 

6. Default.  In the event that one party believes the other party is in breach of this Agreement, 

written notice thereof will be delivered to that party who will have 30 days within which to cure 

the default.  If the default is not cured in a timely manner, the party who served the notice may 

terminate the Agreement and recover any damages incurred; provided, however, no Event may 

be cancelled within three (3) months of the date of the Event for any reason.  

7. Indemnity.  The City will indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Telemundo, Consulate and 

their officers, directors, members, managers, agents and owners, of and from all liability, 

expense, injury, damage, judgement, award, attorney’s fees or costs, arising from or related to 

any breach of this Agreement by, or any act or omission of, the City.  Telemundo will indemnify, 

defend and hold harmless the City, Consulate and their officers, directors, members, managers, 

agents and owners, of and from all liability, expense, injury, damage, judgement, award, 

attorney’s fees or costs, arising from or related to any breach of this Agreement by, or any act or 

omission of, Telemundo.   The Consulate will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Telemundo, 

and City and their officers, directors, members, managers, agents and owners, of and from all 

liability, expense, injury, damage, judgement, award, attorney’s fees or costs, arising from or 

related to any breach of this Agreement by, or any act or omission of, the Consulate. 

8. Sole Responsibility.    Each Party acknowledges that it is solely responsible for any obligations it 

assumes or debts it incurs to third parties in the performance of the Agreement.  Each Party will 

include in any agreements it enters into with third parties with respect to this Event that the 

Party is solely responsible for any failure to perform.  

9. California Law.  This Agreement shall be enforced and interpreted in accordance with the laws 

of the State of California.  

10. Arbitration of Disputes.  All disputes arising under or related to this Agreement will be decided 

by binding arbitration to take place in San Bernardino County before a mutually agreeable 

retired judge whose decision will be final and binding.  The initial expense of the arbitration will 

Page 217

Item 21.



4 
 

be split evenly but will be a recoverable cost to the prevailing party.  The prevailing party in any 

such arbitration, or in any court action between the parties, shall be entitled to recover his, her, 

or its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.  

11. Binding on Successors.  This Agreement will be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties 

and their respective successors, transferees, assignees, representatives, and all like persons.  

12. Amendments.  No purported alteration, modification, or amendment of this Agreement will be 

valid or binding, to any degree or at all, unless and until it is reduced to writing and signed by all 

parties.  

13. Entire Agreement.  This document contains the sole, entire, and exclusive Agreement between 

the parties on any subject.  There are no prior or contemporaneous promises, understandings, 

agreements, representations, inducements, or warranties made by one party hereof to the 

other party except for those expressly contained within this Agreement.  

14. Notices.  Any notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be served by 

personal delivery or by fax or email as follows: 

If to City: City of Coachella 
  Attention: City Manager 
  53-990 Enterprise Way  

Coachella, CA 92236 
 
 If to Telemundo:  
   Attention: General Sales Manager, KUNA 

31276 Dunham Way 
   Thousand Palms, CA 92276 
 
 If to Mexican Consulate: 
   Attention: Head Consul   
   293 N. D Street 
   San Bernardino, CA 92401 
 

15. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in three counterparts each of which shall be 

deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  

 

[Signatures on following page] 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 218

Item 21.



5 
 

Wherefore, This Agreement is made of the date first written above.  

 

City of Coachella  

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Gabriel D. Martin Ph.D, City Manager 

 

Approved as to Form: 

By: ___________________________________ 

Best Best & Krieger LLP, City Attorney 

 

Gulf-California Broadcast Company for KUNA Telemundo 15 and La Poderosa 96.7 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Celeste Gonzalez, General Sales Manager-KUNA 

 

 

Mexican Consulate, San Bernardino 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

 

  

 

Page 219

Item 21.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Andrew Simmons, P.E., City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Professional Service Agreement with California Waters Development, Inc. to 

provide Design/Build Construction Services in an amount not to exceed $46,000 

for the design phase and authorize appropriation of $46,000 from General Fund 

for the Veteran’s Park Splash Pad Project, City Project P-26. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

o Authorize City Manager to execute a Professional Service Agreement with California 

Waters Development, Inc. to provide Design/Build Construction Services in an amount not 

to exceed $46,000 for the design phase; 

o Authorize appropriations from General Fund in an amount of $46,000 for the Veteran’s 

Park Splash Pad Project, City Project P-26. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Veteran’s Park Splash Pad Project proposes to reconstruct an existing 2,000 SF landscaped 

area to a splash pad with a patriotic theme at Veteran’s Park. Ultimately, the project will include a 

splash pad with up to 15 in ground water jets, plumbing and electrical for splash pad, in ground 

lighting, concrete topcoat urethane cement sealer for use in water feature. Additionally, the project 

proposes to include up to two shade structures, benches and replacement/relocation of existing 

plaques.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

In 2022 City Staff engaged KDI to engage with citizens of Coachella and discuss future amenities 

at existing and proposed parks. A total of five events were attended by KDI at City hosted events. 

During the events Coachella residents were asked about the need for a splash pad at Veteran’s 

park. Seventy Six percent (76%) of respondents agreed or strongly agreed that a splash pad at 

Veterans Park was needed, while only 12% of respondents strongly disagreed.  Based on this 

overwhelming community support, City staff sought proposals from qualified Design Build firms 

to evaluate the design and construction costs of a Veteran’s Park splash pad.  

 

In February 2023, the City posted a request for proposals from qualified professional Design/Build 

Contractors. On March 14, 2023, proposals were received from two contractors. Staff reviewed 

the proposals and evaluated based on experience, schedule and familiarity with the area and 

Page 220

Item 22.



project. As a result, California Waters Development, Inc. was selected as the top firm for this 

project. California Waters was selected based on an evaluation of all proposals and received the 

highest score due to their related experience, project organization, and detailed work plan. 

California Waters has a qualified team for both design and construction to deliver a seamless 

project quickly.  

 

The Design/Build contract will be split between two phases. The first phase, will incorporate the 

conceptual and final design processes and will be an interactive process that includes input from 

staff, City council and the Parks and Recreation Commission. This portion of the project will 

include producing construction ready plans and specifications as well as full construction cost 

estimates. This action will approve the design portion of this project, once final plans and 

construction costs are determined, a separate action will be presented to City Council for 

consideration of phase II build options. 

 

The second phase of the project will be the build phase. City Staff proposes to seek grant funding 

opportunities for the build phase of the project. However, to maximize grant funding opportunities 

and improve the potential for successful grant procurement, it is recommended that phase 1 be 

completed now.  Establishing a shovel ready project that has completed the design phase and 

interactive community outreach phases will improve the City’s grant funding opportunities for 

successful completion of the project. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

With this action, City Council will be approving appropriation and transfer of $46,000 from 

General Fund to CIP Fund 182 for the design phase of the project only.  City Staff will seek various 

grant opportunities for the construction phase of the project.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

  

1. Proposal Rating Summary Table 

2. Professional Service Agreement – California Waters Development, Inc. 

Page 221

Item 22.



CITY OF COACHELLA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into this                  day of                     , 2023 by and 

between the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

California with its principal place of business at 53990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 

92236 (“City”) and California Waters Development, Inc., a CORPORATION with its principal

place of business at 23311 E. La Palma Avenue, Yorba Linda, CA 92887 (“Consultant”). City

and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS.

2.1 

2.2 

Consultant. 

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 

professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing design/build services to public clients,

is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar with the plans of City. 

Project. 

City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the DESIGN / BUILD 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR THE VETERAN’S PARK SPLASH PAD  project 

(“Project”) as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. TERMS.

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

Page 222

Item 22.



10 

3.2 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to the 

City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work necessary 

to fully and adequately supply the professional design/build consulting services necessary for the

Project  (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference. All Services shall be subject to, and performed in 

accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from March 22, 2023 to

March 22, 2024, unless earlier terminated as provided herein. Consultant shall complete the

Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 

deadlines. The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if 

necessary to complete the Services. 

Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The Services 

shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision. Consultant will determine the means, 

methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this Agreement. City 

retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee. Consultant retains the 

right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of this Agreement. Any 

additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall 

also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive direction and 

control. Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due such personnel in connection 

with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as required by law. Consultant shall be 

responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not 

limited to: social security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability 

insurance, and workers’ compensation insurance. 

Page 223

Item 22.



3.2.2 Schedule of Services. Consultant shall perform the Services expeditiously, 

within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services set forth in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Consultant represents that it has 

the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in conformance with such 

conditions. In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance with the Schedule, City shall respond to 

Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner. Upon request of City, Consultant shall provide a more 

detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements. All work prepared by Consultant 

shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel. Consultant has represented to City that certain 

key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement. Should one or more of 

such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of at least equal 

competence upon written approval of City. In the event that City and Consultant cannot agree as to 

the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause. As 

discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to 

the City, or who are determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate 

or timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly 

removed from the Project by the Consultant at the request of the City. The key personnel for 

performance of this Agreement are as follows: Mark Pitman, California Waters 

Development, Inc.t- President.

3.2.5 City’s Representative. The City hereby designates Andrew Simmons,sP.E., 

City Engineer, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 

Agreement (“City’s Representative”). City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of 

the City for all purposes under this Contract. Consultant shall not accept direction or orders from 

any person other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative. Consultant hereby designates Markark 

Pitman, President, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 

Agreement (“Consultant’s Representative”). Consultant’s Representative shall have full authority to 

represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement. The 

Consultant’s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and 

attention, and shall be responsible for all means, 11 methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures 

and for the satisfactory 

Page 224

Item 22.



12 

coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services. Consultant agrees to work closely with City staff 

in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other staff at all 

reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees. Consultant shall perform all 

Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 

generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 

California. Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling necessary 

to perform the Services. Consultant warrants that all employees and subconsultants shall have 

sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them. Finally, Consultant represents 

that it, its employees and subconsultants have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of 

whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City Business License, 

and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement. As 

provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own 

cost and expense and without reimbursement from the City, any services necessary to correct errors 

or omissions which are caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply with the standard of care 

provided for herein. Any employee of the Consultant or its sub-consultants who is determined by the 

City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a 

threat to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the 

Services in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the 

Consultant and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.8.1 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant 

shall perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 

3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Consultant shall also perform the Services in strict accordance 

with any completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits “A” or “B” attached hereto, 

or which may be separately agreed upon in writing by the City and Consultant (“Performance 

Milestones”).  Consultant agrees that if the Services are not completed within the aforementioned 

Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed pursuant to provisions 

of this Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer damage. 

Page 225

Item 22.



13 

(3.2.9 Laws and Regulations. Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and in compliance 

with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the performance 

of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall give all notices 

required by law. Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations in 

connection with Services. If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such 

laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, Consultant shall be solely 

responsible for all costs arising therefrom. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City, its 

officials, directors, officers, employees, and   agents  free  and  harmless, pursuant to 

the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any 

failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance. Consultant shall  not commence Work 

under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has secured all 

insurance required under this section. In addition, Consultant shall not allow any subconsultant to 

commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that the 

subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements. Consultant shall, at its expense, 

procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to 

persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 

Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants. Consultant 

shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance for the duration 

of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of coverage: 

(A) Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as

broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 

Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 

Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and (3) 

Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by 

Page 226

Item 22.



the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain

limits no less than: (1) General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with general 

aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general aggregate limit 

shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 

required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability: $1,000,000; per accident for bodily injury and 

property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ 

Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California. Employer’s 

Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily  injury or disease. 

3.2.10.3 Professional Liability. Consultant shall procure and 

maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years 

following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their 

profession. Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim and shall

be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

3.2.10.4 Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall contain 

the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved 

by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability. The general liability policy shall be

endorsed to state that: (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 

shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations performed by or on 

behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such 

work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of 

14Page 227

Item 22.



15 

coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be 

excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability. The automobile liability policy shall be

endorsed to state that: (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 

shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, 

loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Consultant or for which the 

Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the 

City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an 

unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying coverage. Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 

and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute 

with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage.

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, officials, 

officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the insurance policy 

which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that: (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or 

canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the 

policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations. All insurance 

required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions. In addition, such 

insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions. Any deductibles 

or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. Consultant shall guarantee 

that, at the option of the City, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-

insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

Page 228

Item 22.



16 

volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.10.7 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with 

insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in California, 

and satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.8 Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish City with 

original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement on 

forms satisfactory to the City. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be 

signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms 

provided by the City if requested. All certificates and endorsements must be received and approved 

by the City before work commences. The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies 

of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.10.9 Reporting of Claims. Consultant shall report to the City, in 

addition to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in connection 

with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Safety. Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury 

or damage to any person or property. In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at all times be 

in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall 

exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature of the work 

and the conditions under which the work is to be performed. Safety precautions as applicable shall 

include, but shall not be limited to: (A) adequate life protection and lifesaving equipment and 

procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and subconsultants, such as safe 

walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, 

trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing apparel as are 

necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the 

proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including authorized 

reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in Exhibit ”C” 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The total compensation shall not exceed 

Page 229

Item 22.



17 

Forty-Six Thousand Dollars ($46,000.00) without written approval of City Manager. Extra 

Work may be authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates 

and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to City a monthly 

itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Consultant. 

The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the initial 

commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, through the 

date of the statement.  City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review the statement 

and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses. Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any 

expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work. At any time during the term of this Agreement, City  may 

request that Consultant perform Extra Work. As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work 

which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which the 

parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement. 

Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written 

authorization from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California 

Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title 

8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of prevailing wage 

rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” and “maintenance” 

projects. If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or 

“maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is

$1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws. City shall 

provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the 

commencement of this Agreement. Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing rates of per 

diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the Services 

available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Consultant’s principal place 

of business and at the project site. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its 

elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or liability 

arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

Page 230

Item 22.



18 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection. Consultant shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement. All such 

records shall be clearly identifiable. Consultant shall allow a representative of City during normal 

business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other 

documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all work, data, 

documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years from 

the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination. City may, by written notice  to 

Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving 

written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at least 

seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination. Upon termination, Consultant shall be 

compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, and Consultant 

shall be entitled to no further compensation.   Consultant may not terminate this Agreement except 

for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated as 

provided herein, City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and 

Data and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance 

of Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall be required to provide such document and other 

information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services. In the event this Agreement is terminated 

in whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it 

may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

Page 231

Item 22.



19 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices. All notices permitted or required under this Agreement 

shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 

respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

Consultant: 

California Waters Development Inc.
23311 E. La Palma Avenue
Yorba Linda, CA 92887
Attn: Mark Pitman, President

City: 

City of Coachella 

53900 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA 92236 

Attn:  Andrew Simmons, Engineering Department 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 

(48) hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at its

applicable address. Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice occurred, 

regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property. This 

Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or 

sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, 

specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in any 

tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data magnetically 

or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be prepared by 

Consultant under this Agreement (“Documents & Data”). Consultant shall require all subconsultants 

to agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for any Documents & 

Data the subconsultant prepares under this Agreement. Consultant represents and warrants that 

Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & Data. Consultant makes no such 

representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data which were prepared by design 

professionals other than Consultantor provided to Consultant by the City. City shall not be limited in any 

way in its use of the Documents and Data at any time, provided that any such use not within the purposes 

intended by this Agreement shall be at City’s sole risk. 

Page 232

Item 22.



20 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality. All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, 

procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written information, 

and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in connection with the 

performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant. Such materials shall not, 

without the prior written consent of City, be used by Consultant for any purposes other than the 

performance of the Services. Nor shall such materials be disclosed to any person or entity not 

connected with the performance of the Services or the Project. Nothing furnished to Consultant which 

is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has become known, to the related industry 

shall be deemed confidential. Consultant shall not use City’s name or insignia, photographs of the 

Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or the Project in any magazine, trade paper, 

newspaper, television or radio production or other similar medium without the prior written consent 

of City. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts. The Parties shall fully cooperate with  one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 

appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees. If either party commences an action against the other party, 

either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the 

prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party reasonable 

attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.    To the  fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 

defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free 

and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, 

damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner 

arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to any negligence, errors or omissions, recklessness, or 

willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, consultants, and 

contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the Consultant’s Services, 

including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, expert witness fees, and 

attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Consultant shall defend, at Consultant’s own 

cost, expense and risk, any and all such  aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every 

kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, or volunteers. 

Page 233

Item 22.



21 

Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against 

City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action 

or other legal proceeding. Consultant shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, 

employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of 

them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Consultant’s 

obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the 

City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

3.5.7 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement  of the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both 

parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of California.   Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this

Agreement.

3.5.10 City's Right to Employ Other Consultants. City reserves right to employ 

other consultants in connection with this Project.

3.5.11   Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors 

and assigns of the parties.

Page 234

Item 22.



22 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer. Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate  or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 

prior written consent of the City. Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 

hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 

assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions. Since the Parties or their agents have 

participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall 

be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party. Any 

term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not 

workdays. All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and 

subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.   All references to 

City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 

specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 

content or intent of this Agreement. 

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification. No supplement, modification or amendment of 

this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.15 Waiver. No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 

default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition. No waiver, benefit, privilege, 

or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights 

by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no intended third party beneficiaries 

of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, 

illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions

shall continue in full force and effect. 

Page 235

Item 22.



23 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 

Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants that it has not paid nor 

has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 

Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent 

upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. Consultant further agrees to file, or 

shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic Interest with the City’s 

Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the Services. For breach or violation 

of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability. For the term of 

this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of City, during the term of his or her service with 

City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material 

benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment. Consultant represents that it is an equal 

opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or applicant 

for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex or age. Such 

non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial employment, 

upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination. 

Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority Business Enterprise 

program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines currently in effect or 

hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification. By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies that it is 

aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every employer 

to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 

accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such provisions before 

commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement. Consultant has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement. Each Party 

warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 

authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.22 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which 

Page 236

Item 22.



24 

shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 

work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written approval of 

City. Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated 

in this Agreement. 

CITY OF COACHELLA CALIFORNIA WATERS DEVELOPMENT, INC..

By:  By: 

Gabriel Martin
City Manager

Mark Pitman
President

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: 
         Carlos Campos
         City Attorney

Attest:

By:
        Angela Zepeda
        Deputy City Clerk

Page 237

Item 22.



A-1 
ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Page 238

Item 22.



23311 E. La Palma Ave. | Yorba Linda, CA 92887 | 949.528.0900 | californiawaters.com | CA Lic#958960 

4  |  Proposal and Schedule 

Design Scope | Phase 1: Design, Preparation of Construction Documents and Permitting
Objective: Provide Design Services for the construction of one (1) appx. 2,000 square foot splash pad based 
on the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Veteran’s Park Splash Pad project issues by the City of Coachella. 
Consultant agrees to perform the following services: 

Task 01: Site Survey 
Consultant will visit the project site along with a licensed surveyor to survey the site to verify dimensions, elevations, 
verify utility locations and identify any issues that will need to be addressed prior to submitting plans to Riverside 
County’s Department of Environmental Health and the City of Coachella for plan check approval. 

Site Survey Deliverables: 
Consultant shall provide client for review and approval: One (1) site survey report and one (1) topo survey map. 

Task 02: Demo Plan 
Consultant to coordinate with the Owner and other project team members to create a demo plan detailing all existing 
items to be removed and other items to be protected in place from the project site. 

Demo Design Deliverables: 
Consultant shall provide client for review and approval: One (1) demo set of drawings. 

Task 03: Schematic Design 
A. Consultant shall coordinate with Owner and other project team consultants to determine site requirements and

constraints regarding the splash pad layout, equipment location and access, surge tank location and access,
piping corridor between the splash pad, surge tank and equipment room, mechanical, electrical, chemical
equipment locations and other pertinent design elements that pertain to the splash pad.

B. Consultant shall identify existing domestic water supply points and utility connection sizes for the splash pad
and coordinate the use of the existing water supply points with the project team.

C. Consultant shall coordinate the location and sizing for the filter backwash (equipment room), surge tank
overflow sewer requirements including all points of connection to the sanitary sewer system for the splash
pad.

D. Consultant shall coordinate the storm drain location and sizing including points of connection to the splash pad
main drain/rain diverter.

Schematic Design Deliverables: 
Consultant shall provide client for review and approval: One (1) schematic design set of drawings. 

Task 04: Design Development 

A. Consultant shall prepare preliminary sizing for all splash pad equipment based upon the hydraulic requirements,
drainage requirements, standard filtration turnover, jet effect flow rate requirements, UV flow
requirements, circulation system requirements, surge tank requirements, including sizing of the equipment room 
and preliminary equipment layout.

B. Consultant shall develop the splash pad circulation and effects pump systems and piping layout to include
pump sizing, drainage piping from the splash pad to the surge tank, all pipe runs will include the preliminary
pipe routing.

Page 239

Item 22.



23311 E. La Palma Ave. | Yorba Linda, CA 92887 | 949.528.0900 | californiawaters.com | CA Lic#958960 

C. Consultant shall prepare data table listing area, with square footage, volume, filter turnover rate, and UV
turnover rate calculations for the splash pad.

D. Consultant to provide drawings and specifications indicating all splash pad water play elements, surge tank,
main drain/rain diverter and mechanical equipment required to operate the splash pad.

E. Consultant shall prepare equipment vault layout and provide space requirements addressing the
effects/circulation pumps, filter, UV and chemical equipment to operate the splash pad.

F. Phone conferences via GoToMeeting will be held as required to go over the progress of the plan set and discuss 
specifics about the project.

Design Development Deliverables: 
Consultant shall provide client for review and approval: One (1) set of design development drawings. 

Task 05: Electrical Design 

A. Consultant shall provide electrical coordination for all the electrical equipment associated with the splash
pad. Consultant shall coordinate electrical MCC panel design and coordinate splash pad electrical
requirements with site Electrician.

B. Design of system shall include electrical engineering design for the splash pad equipment, controls, and
automation. Electrical plans to include single line diagram, load calculations, panel schedule, electrical site plan,
and equipment and field wiring diagram.

C. Electrical plans shall be signed, stamped and sealed by a California licensed Electrical Engineer.

D. Electrical design does not include equipment or controls not specified by Consultant.

Electrical Design Deliverables: 
Consultant shall provide client for review and approval: one (1) set of electrical construction documents. 

Task 06: Structural Design 
A. Consultant shall size the splash pad concrete deck, surge tank and equipment vault below grade structures, toy

footings and housekeeping pads.

B. Consultant shall size and space rebar required to build the splash pad concrete deck, surge tank and equipment
vault below grade structures, toy footings and housekeeping pads.

C. Consultant shall specify concrete/shotcrete mix design used to construct the splash pad concrete deck, surge
tank and equipment vault below grade structures, toy footings, and housekeeping pads.

D. Structural plans shall be signed, stamped and sealed by a California licensed Structural Engineer.

E. Structural design does not include or other structural appurtenances.

Structural Design Deliverables: 
Consultant shall provide client for review and approval: One (1) set of structural construction documents. 

Task 07: Construction Documentation 

A. Based upon completion and approval of the Design Development phase, the Consultant shall prepare
final construction plans and details.

Page 240

Item 22.



23311 E. La Palma Ave. | Yorba Linda, CA 92887 | 949.528.0900 | californiawaters.com | CA Lic#958960 

B. Consultant shall prepare plans at an appropriate scale on 24” x 36” sheet, using AutoCAD MEP version
2022. All AutoCAD base files prepared by other parties to be provided.

C. Plans will include the preparation of a title and notes sheet, plan sheets and detail sheets. The plan and
detail sheets will include the following design elements:

1. Plan view of the equipment room and all equipment, piping layouts, fill source connections,
overflow/drain/backwash connections, applicable easements, right of way, and PUE’s.

2. Plan view of the surge tank and all surge tank components, pipe penetrations, and access hatch
detail.

3. Isometric (three dimensional) layout of the equipment room.
4. Equipment room details shall include:

i. Plan and elevation views.
ii. All equipment including specification and locations of pumps, filters, UV, disinfection

equipment control panels, ventilation, sump pumps (if applicable), and valves and fittings
required for construction

5. Architectural detail coordination shall include:
i. Coordination of all cross sections and elevation details needed for construction.
ii. Specification of all pipe sizes, pipe penetrations, intakes, discharges, drains and overflows.

6. Hydraulic calculations shall include:
i. Suction and discharge pipe sizing.
ii. Drainage pipe sizing.
iii. Filtration sizing.
iv. Disinfection design and phasing.

7. Standard detail coordination shall include:
i. Pipe penetration details, grading details, level control details, and other miscellaneous

details needed for construction.

Construction Documentation Deliverables: 
Consultant shall provide client for review and approval: One (1) set of final construction documents. 

Task 08: Agency Approvals 

Consultant shall work with Riverside County’s Environmental Health Department and the city of Coachella’s Building 
Department to ensure splash pad plans are approved for construction. Consultant will meet with plan checker as 
needed to have splash pad construction plans approved. 

Phase I: Assumptions & Clarifications 

1. All drawings and documents will be submitted electronically.

2. Drawings will be created using AutoCAD 2022 software.

3. The existing domestic water supply, electric power, equipment room air ventilation, storm drain and sewer
utilities to be located at the project site.

Phase I: Exclusions 

1. It is agreed that changes in the Scope of Work requested by Client or by reason of revisions or changes in
any applicable law, regulation, policy, standard or personnel of any governmental agency, district or utility
company having jurisdiction over all or any part of the project after the date this Agreement shall constitute
Extra Work, and Consultant shall be compensated for said Extra Work as agreed between Consultant and
Client or on a time-and-materials basis pursuant to Consultant’s then effective rate schedule. Client also
understands and agrees that the costs of Consultants services are subject to change due to conditions
encountered during the course of furnishing services, including but not limited to changes in the

Page 241

Item 22.



23311 E. La Palma Ave. | Yorba Linda, CA 92887 | 949.528.0900 | californiawaters.com | CA Lic#958960 

Scope of Work, delays, unanticipated or additional requirements imposed by government agencies, 
districts, utility companies, or other persons, acts of God, or actions of other parties. 

2. No environmental documentation or support, including no environmental permitting.

3. Existing utility information mapping is not included and will be provided by Client.

4. Client agrees to pay the costs of zoning, annexation and other applicable fees, assessment fees, and all other
professional service fees, title company charges, and all other charges and expenses necessary for the
performance relating to the Scope of Work.

5. The existence, location, type and size of any underground utilities, improvements and/or obstacles
WILL NOT be determined by Consultant. Consultant makes no promise, representation, or warranty, expressed
or implied, as to the existence, location, type or size of any underground utility, improvement or obstacle.
Client agrees to include as a condition of any construction contract relating to the project the requirement
that the contractor verify the existence, location, type and size of any underground utilities, improvements or
obstacles, whether shown on any construction plan or not, and if such requirement is not included in such
construction contract, or if the contractor fails to verify the existence, location, type and size of any
underground utilities, improvements or obstacles, Consultant shall not be liable for any delays, expenses or
liability suffered by Client and Client agrees to defend and indemnify Consultant against any loss, damage, liability
and costs, including attorneys’ fees suffered or claimed by any other person by reason of the existence of any
underground utility, improvement or obstacle, and any additional cost incurred by Consultant shall be
deemed extra work for which Consultant will be paid on a time- and-materials basis pursuant to consultant
then effective rate schedule.

6. Specifications in CSI format.

7. Structural engineering services not specified in this proposal.

8. Design of natural gas supply to include gas pressure regulator sizing for a heater.

9. Design of chiller system.

10. BIM plan generation.

11. Design in REVIT format.

12. This proposal assumes there is no asbestos and has not included any design work to remediate any asbestos.

13. Geotechnical design services of any kind.

14. SWPPP Plan.

15. Site lighting design work.

16. Landscape design work other than detailing areas of where new sod is to be installed.

Page 242

Item 22.



B-1 
ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

March 22, 2023 - March 22, 2024

Page 243

Item 22.



C-1
ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007 

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

Not to exceed $46,000.

Page 244

Item 22.



Company Name Address Office Number Total Score

Hydrology Group Inc.
17 Spectrum Pointe Drive, #509         
Lake Forest, CA 92630 951-348-1856 82

California Waters 
Development Inc.

23311 E. La Palma Avenue                 
Yorba Linda, CA 92887 949-528-0900 94.7

RFP Design/Build Services - Veteran's Park Splash Pad for Project P-26

Page 245

Item 22.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Recommend approval of Memorandum of Understanding between for Library 

Operations at the Coachella Library between the City of Coachella and County 

of Riverside. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Recommend approval of Memorandum of Understanding between for Library Operations at the 

Coachella Library between the City of Coachella and County of Riverside. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 27, 2018, City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 

County of Riverside and City of Coachella for library services at the new Coachella Library.  The 

MOU was approved and executed by the County on September 25, 2018.  The MOU identifies 

that the County will operate the Coachella Library for forty (40) hours each week at no cost to 

the City.  Additionally, the MOU identifies that the City provides for all utility expenses and 

building maintenance needs for the facility (the only exception is internet services which is 

provided by County to library designated area).   

The County appropriated funds to provide for furnishing the inside of the new Coachella Library; 

not including the Library Conference Rooms.  The First Amendment (Amendment) to the MOU 

allowed for the City to be reimbursed by the County for the costs expensed by the City to purchase 

the furniture that is inside the library space operated by the County.  The term of the current MOU 

ends on June 30, 2023.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

On October 19, 2022, the City of Coachella was notified it was awarded a grant for $4,568,807 

from the California State Library Building Forward Grant Program (CSLBFGP) to renovate and 

upgrade its Library Annex building.  To secure the awarded funds the CSLBFGP has requested 

the City enter into a new MOU with the County to include the Library Annex.  The award of the 

identified funding is contingent upon the City affirming that the Library Annex, once improved 

using the awarded funds, will be operated as a library facility to include circulation and library 

programing.   

 

Page 246

Item 23.



The County operates the Coachella Library through a contract they hold with LS&S and through 

this contract are available to provide services to the future Library Annex.  The City received a 

proposal from LS&S to provide auxiliary library services at the Library Annex facility (attached).   

 

The services that would be provided would be refined through outreach that would occur during 

the Library Annex Project’s design phase.  The Library Annex provides an opportunity to provide 

more programming (such as makers space – creative hands-on STEM programs) and an expanded 

circulation that was not included in the final design of the Coachella Library due to fiscal 

constraints.  The one-time start-up cost is estimated at between $70,000-$89,000.  The operational 

costs are based on weekly operating hours.  The LS&S proposal identified three options: 16 hours 

a week, 20 hours a week or 25 hours a week; corresponding costs ranging from $173,000 to 

$241,500 (as shown below). 

 

 
 

The current MOU with the County will expire on June 30, 2023.  A new MOU is required for 

continued library services.  The new proposed MOU has the following changes from the current 

MOU/Amendment No. 1: 

- Term is amended to extend through  June 30, 2028;  

- Includes the Coachella Library and Library Annex.  The Library Annex service level in the 

attached new draft MOUis the 20 hour option noted above.   

- Identifies that the Coachella Library and Library Annex facilities will solely be used for 

the purpose of library services, operations and programming provided by LS&S and 

approved by the City.  All existing and future library space uses by an outside organization 

would require City Council approval; excluding the study rooms and meeting rooms. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Approve new MOU including Library Annex at 16 hours per week service level.  

2. Approve new MOU including Library Annex at 20 hours per week service level.  

3. Approve new MOU including Library Annex at 25 hours per week service level.  

4. Approve new MOU without including the Library Annex. 

5. Provide alternate direction.   

 

Page 247

Item 23.



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The furnishings or operational costs of the Library Annex are not eligible expenses that can be 

funded by the CSLBFGP (grant).  Thus, including the Library Annex location as a library facility 

in the new MOU will add between $173,000-$241,500 operational costs that would be allocated 

from General Fund; allocation would be based on the service level selected: A, B or C.  

 

Attachment: 

 

New MOU 

LS&S Proposal  

Page 248

Item 23.



Coachella Library Annex Proposal (REVISED)

Background

The City of Coachella was awarded a grant for $4,568,807 from the California State Library Building
Forward Grant Program to renovate and upgrade its Library Annex building. Built in 1927, the
Coachella Public Library Annex infrastructure has reached the need for renovation. The existing
facility is an old church consisting of a main building, an office and a hall with four rooms totaling

7,701 sq. ft. A planned renovation will transform the facility into an inviting public space and
provide new opportunities for additional programs and services that will support literacy, learning
and cultural enrichment opportunities. The Library Annex will be open 40 hours/five days per

week.

Proposed Services

Dedicated space, equipment and skilled staff are proposed to provide creative, hands-on STEAM
(science, technology, engineering, arts and math) programs, instruction, services, events and

collections for children, teens and adults at the Coachella Library Annex..

h ib
Coachella Library Annex Proposal (REVISED)

Background

The City of Coachella was awarded a grant for $4,568,807 from the California State Library Building
Forward Grant Program to renovate and upgrade its Library Annex building. Built in 1927, the

Coachella Public Library Annex infrastructure has reached the need for renovation. The existing
facility is an old church consisting of a main building, an office and a hall with four rooms totaling

7,701 sq. ft. A planned renovation will transform the facility into an inviting public space and

provide new opportunities for additional programs and services that will support literacy, learning
and cultural enrichment opportunities. The Library Annex will be open 40 hours/five days per

week.

Proposed Services

Dedicated space, equipment and skilled staff are proposed to provide creative, hands-on STEAM

(science, technology, engineering, arts and math) programs, instruction, services, events and
collections for children, teens and adults at the Coachella Library Annex..

Branch Library

To provide support for the Annex, changes to the Branch Library’s operating hours are
recommended. The proposed changes will enable greater optimization of existing staff resources,
including the addition of a librarian position, with no financial impact. Recommendations are

responsive to established usage patterns and maximize high traffic hours in the afternoon and early

Page 249

Item 23.



evening, maintain morning hours for storytime and school visits, while reducing lower traffic hours
in the late evening.

Current hours:

Monday 10am-6pm
Tuesday 10am-6pm

Wednesday 12pm-8pm

Thursday 10am-6pm
Friday closed
Saturday 10am-6pm
Sunday closed

Proposed hours:

Monday closed
Tuesday 11am-7pm

Wednesday 11am-7pm

Thursday 10am-6pm
Friday 10am-6pm
Saturday 10am-6pm
Sunday closed

The recommended start date for the new hours is July 1, 2023; this will allow adequate time to
phase in restructured branch staffing prior to the Annex grand opening.

Costs

Year one operating costs will include one-time start-up costs plus annual (recurring) costs.
Subsequent years will include annual (recurring) costs only.

Two options are provided for one-time start-up costs, reflecting a core services approach and an

enhanced services approach. One-time start-up costs incurred prior to opening day include:

● Collections

● Supplies and Equipment

● Databases, IT Services and Subscriptions

Three options are provided for annual (recurring) costs, reflecting a core services approach and
two enhanced services scenarios. Annual (recurring) operational costs for year one include:

● Library Operations: Public Services, IT and Courier

● Programs, Services, Instruction and Events

● Databases, IT Services and Maintenance, Copiers

● Supplies and Equipment

● Library Collection and Materials. LS&S will charge a 5% processing fee.

Recurring costs will increase by 3% annually.

Not included:

● Security

● Custodial

● Courier

● Mandatory minimum wage increases

● Furnishings

● Copiers (may be leased)

Page 250

Item 23.



Coachella Library Annex Proposal (REVISED)

Background

The City of Coachella was awarded a grant for $4,568,807 from the California State Library Building
Forward Grant Program to renovate and upgrade its Library Annex building. Built in 1927, the

Coachella Public Library Annex infrastructure has reached the need for renovation. The existing
facility is an old church consisting of a main building, an office and a hall with four rooms totaling

7,701 sq. ft. A planned renovation will transform the facility into an inviting public space and
provide new opportunities for additional programs and services that will support literacy, learning
and cultural enrichment opportunities. The Library Annex will be open 40 hours/five days per

week.

Proposed Services

Dedicated space, equipment and skilled staff are proposed to provide creative, hands-on STEAM
(science, technology, engineering, arts and math) programs, instruction, services, events and
collections for children, teens and adults at the Coachella Library Annex..

h ib
ONE-TIME (STARTUP) COSTS Option 1

(Baseline)
Option 2
(Enhanced)

Program Supplies & Equipment $10,000 $15,000

Databases, IT Services &
Equipment, Subscriptions

$50,000 $54,000

Library Collection & Materials $10,000 $25,000

TOTAL $70,000 $89,000

Option 1: Basic startup costs. Includes a modest STEAM/Makerspace, with sewing machines, 3D
printing and smaller program-centric items such as Legos and Ozobot Coding kits. Library
collections and materials assume a small collection of approximately 400 books, with an emphasis

on materials for youth,

Option 2: Includes everything from Option 1, plus additional items for lending such as podcasting

kits, Raspberry Pis, Launchpads and STEAM (science, technology, engineering, arts and math) kits
and an in-house VR system.

Page 251

Item 23.



ANNUAL COSTS Option A
(16 hours)

Option B
(20 hours)

Option C
(25 hours)

Library Operations (Public
Services, IT)

$149,700 $175,000 $213,000

Programs, Services, Instruction &
Events

$8,300 $8,300 $8,500

Supplies and Equipment $5,000 $5,000 $5,000

Library Collection & Materials $10,000 $11,700 $15,000

TOTAL $173,000 $200,000 $241,500

Option A: Basic operating costs for 16 open hours per week. Professional and highly-skilled staff to
provide programs and services for the public, ongoing replacement and maintenance of supplies
and equipment.

Monday closed
Tuesday closed

Wednesday 2pm-6pm
Thursday 2pm-6pm
Friday 2pm-6pm

Saturday 2pm-6pm
Sunday closed

Option B: Basic operating costs for 20 open hours per week. Professional and highly-skilled staff to
provide programs and services for the public, ongoing replacement and maintenance of supplies

and equipment.

Monday closed
Tuesday closed

Wednesday 1pm-6pm
Thursday 1pm-6pm

Friday 1pm-6pm
Saturday 1pm-6pm

Sunday closed

Option C: Basic operating costs for 25 open hours per week. Professional and highly-skilled staff to
provide programs and services for the public, ongoing replacement and maintenance of supplies

and equipment.

Monday closed

Tuesday 1pm-6pm
Wednesday 1pm-6pm

Thursday 1pm-6pm
Friday 1pm-6pm

Page 252

Item 23.



Coachella Library Annex Proposal (REVISED)

Background

The City of Coachella was awarded a grant for $4,568,807 from the California State Library Building
Forward Grant Program to renovate and upgrade its Library Annex building. Built in 1927, the
Coachella Public Library Annex infrastructure has reached the need for renovation. The existing

facility is an old church consisting of a main building, an office and a hall with four rooms totaling

7,701 sq. ft. A planned renovation will transform the facility into an inviting public space and
provide new opportunities for additional programs and services that will support literacy, learning
and cultural enrichment opportunities. The Library Annex will be open 40 hours/five days per

week.

Proposed Services

Dedicated space, equipment and skilled staff are proposed to provide creative, hands-on STEAM

(science, technology, engineering, arts and math) programs, instruction, services, events and

collections for children, teens and adults at the Coachella Library Annex..

h ibSaturday 1pm-6pm

Sunday closed

Page 253

Item 23.



 

Page 1 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 

 FOR LIBRARY OPERATIONS AT THE COACHELLA LIBRARY BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

COACHELLA AND THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

 

 This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made and entered into by and between 

the COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE (“COUNTY”), a political subdivision of the State of California, and 

the CITY OF COACHELLA (“CITY”), a municipal organization organized under the laws of the 

State of California. 

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the COUNTY oversees the administration and operations of the Riverside 

County Library System (“RCLS”); and 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has entered into an agreement with Library Systems & 

Services, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company (“LS&S”), for contracted services for the RCLS 

for the provision of library services; and 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has been under contract with the CITY since October 20, 1998 

to operate the Coachella Library, now located at 1500 Sixth St., Coachella, CA 92236; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to enhance library services by establishing a Coachella 

Library Annex learning environment by converting the CITY-owned building located at 1538 

Seventh Street, Coachella, California into the Coachella Library Annex and adding Coachella 

Library Annex Management; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY mutually agree that library and Coachella Library 

Annex services will be provided by the COUNTY at the Coachella Library through LS&S. 

 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the CITY and COUNTY agree as follows: 

 SECTION 1: TERM  

 This MOU shall take effect on __________________, 2023 and shall remain in effect 

through and including June 30, 2028 (the “Term”).  The CITY or COUNTY may request an 

extension of this MOU with modified terms.  If either the CITY or COUNTY desires to extend the 

Term of this MOU on modified terms, the CITY and COUNTY shall negotiate in good faith to 
Page 254

Item 23.



 

Page 2 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

extend this MOU.  Unless otherwise agreed to by the CITY and COUNTY, any extension to this 

MOU would use the then-existing terms and conditions of the MOU as the floor of acceptable 

standards for the future library service. Any extension shall be memorialized as a written 

amendment to this MOU.   

SECTION 2: HOURS OF OPERATION 

2.1 – COACHELLA LIBRARY. During the Term of this MOU, the Coachella 

Library located at 1500 Sixth Street, Coachella, CA 92236 shall operate a minimum of forty (40) 

hours per week.  When requested by the CITY to operate more than forty (40) hours per week, 

CITY shall pay COUNTY one hundred ten dollars ($110) per hour for every hour exceeding forty 

(40) hours per week of library operations.  The COUNTY will provide invoices for library services 

rendered on a semi-annual basis. Upon receipt of each invoice, the CITY will make payment for 

all undisputed fees within thirty (30) days. In the event that the CITY withholds payment, the 

COUNTY will take necessary actions to resolve the issue. If the CITY has any objections 

regarding the fees charged by the COUNTY for services performed under this Agreement, the 

CITY must provide written notice to the COUNTY within thirty (30) days of receiving the invoice, 

specifying the disputed fees. 

The days and hours of operations shall be as follows: 

Monday 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

Tuesday 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

Wednesday 12:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

Thursday 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

Friday Closed 

Saturday 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

Sunday Closed 

The Coachella Library shall observe the COUNTY holiday schedule. 

2.2 – COACHELLA LIBRARY ANNEX. During the Term of this MOU, the 

Coachella Library Annex located at 1538 Seventh Street, Coachella, California shall operate a 

Page 255

Item 23.



 

Page 3 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

minimum of twenty (20) hours per week.  When requested by the CITY to operate more than 

twenty (20) hours per week, CITY shall pay COUNTY one hundred ten dollars ($110) per hour 

for every hour exceeding twenty (20) hours per week of Library Annex operations.  The COUNTY 

will provide invoices for library services rendered on a semi-annual basis. Upon receipt of each 

invoice, the CITY will make payment for all undisputed fees within thirty (30) days. In the event 

that the CITY withholds payment, the COUNTY will take necessary actions to resolve the issue. 

If the CITY has any objections regarding the fees charged by the COUNTY for services 

performed under this Agreement, the CITY must provide written notice to the COUNTY within 

thirty (30) days of receiving the invoice, specifying the disputed fees. The Coachella Library 

Annex shall observe the COUNTY holiday schedule. 

 SECTION 3: STAFFING/SERVICES AND OPERATIONS/PROGRAMMING 

3.1 COUNTY shall provide an adequate number of professional library staff 

persons for the efficient and effective operations of the Coachella Library and Library Annex.  

COUNTY currently provides library staff and library services through a separate agreement with 

LS&S.  CITY acknowledges and agrees that staff and other services shall be provided to the 

Coachella Library and Library Annex through the COUNTY’s agreement with LS&S.  COUNTY, 

using contract staff by LS&S, shall provide programming such as the literacy program, summer 

reading program, story time, and ESL classes. COUNTY  

3.2 Library and Library Annex facilities will be used solely for the purpose of 

library services, operations, and programming provided by LS&S and approved by CITY. Any 

existing use of the library space and future requests that add support to the library by any outside 

organization shall be approved by City Council. This does not apply to programs occurring in the 

study rooms and meeting room that receive approval through a signed rental agreement.  

3.2.1 COACHELLA LIBRARY ANNEX STAFFING. During the period of 

management, the Coachella Library Annex staff shall have the expertise in the following areas: 

 Laser Cutting and Etching 

 Computer Aided Design (CAD) Software 

Page 256

Item 23.



 

Page 4 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 3D Printing 

 Electronics and Robotics 

 Sewing 

 Power Tools and Hand Tools 

 Customer Service 

3.2.2 COACHELLA LIBRARY ANNEX MANAGER. During the period of 

management, the Coachella Library Annex Manager shall have the expertise in the following 

areas: 

 Onsite management of the daily operations of the Coachella Library 

Annex 

 Supervise and evaluate employees 

 Directing and management of operations 

 Operating a computer and relevant software applications 

 Operating modern equipment 

 Mange the work of Coachella Library Annex staff 

 Other tasks associated with the operation of the Coachella Library 

Annex as required by the CITY 

SECTION 4: MAINTENANCE 

CITY shall provide adequate staff persons to provide all necessary janitorial services, 

landscape maintenance, and maintenance and repairs to the Coachella Library, Coachella Library 

Annex, and appurtenant equipment and fixtures placed on the Coachella Library and Coachella 

Library Annex.  CITY shall keep the Coachella Library and Coachella Library Annex in good and 

suitable condition for the uses herein, and in compliance with Federal, State and local laws, 

ordinances, rules and regulations relating to fire, health and safety, and CITY shall maintain the 

exterior and the interior of the Coachella Library and Coachella Library Annex, including, but not 

limited to, pest control, air conditioning equipment, heating equipment, plumbing, electrical wiring 

Page 257

Item 23.



 

Page 5 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

and fixtures, windows, and structural parts, grounds, in good working condition and repair and in 

compliance with such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations. 

SECTION 5: SECURITY SYSTEMS 

CITY shall administer cyber keys that provide door access and support various levels of 

security to the Coachella Library and Coachella Library Annex.  These cyber keys shall be issued 

to COUNTY by CITY’s Information Systems (“IS”) Department.   

SECTION 6: VOICEMAIL SERVICES 

The Coachella Library and Coachella Library Annex telephones shall be answered by a 

live library staff member or voicemail system during the Coachella Library and Coachella Library 

Annex’s operational hours. 

SECTION 7: ON-GOING COLLECTIONS DEVELOPMENT/MAINTENANCE 

COUNTY shall provide collections development for the Coachella Library and Coachella 

Library Annex on an annual basis. COUNTY shall provide maintenance of the Coachella Library 

and Coachella Library Annex collections consistent with professional library practices.  This shall 

include, but not be limited to, procurement, processing, mending and de-accessioning of the 

collections.   

SECTION 8: FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT 

 8.1: LIBRARY FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT. County shall own 

and maintain all furniture and equipment in the Coachella Library  

8.1.1: MAINTENANCE OF LIBRARY FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND 

EQUIPMENT. COUNTY shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair, and replacement of 

the furniture, fixtures, and equipment used for library operations and staff functions.  

8.2: COACHELLA LIBRARY ANNEX FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND 

EQUIPMENT. Upon purchase and installation, CITY shall own and maintain all furniture, fixtures, 

and equipment in the Coachella Library Annex. 

8.2.1: MAINTENANCE OF COACHELLA LIBRARY ANNEX 

FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT. CITY shall be responsible for the maintenance, 

Page 258

Item 23.



 

Page 6 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

repair, and replacement of the furniture fixtures, and equipment used for Coachella Library Annex 

operations and staff functions. 

 SECTION 9: UTILITIES 

 The following utilities shall be in the CITY’s name and CITY shall be responsible for the 

payment of utility costs to include electricity, gas, sewer and solid waste disposal services, water, 

and telephone services, associated with the operations of the Coachella Library.  Internet services 

will be provided by COUNTY to the designated library area of the facility and CITY will provide 

internet and phone utility services for the conference area of the facility.  

SECTION 10:  INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS 

A. Indemnification by CITY.  CITY shall indemnify and hold COUNTY, its officers, 

agents, employees and independent contractors free and harmless from any claim or liability 

whatsoever, based or asserted upon any act or omission of CITY, its officers, agents, employees 

or volunteers for property damage, bodily injury or death, or any other element of damage of any 

kind or nature arising out of the performance of this MOU, and CITY shall defend at its expense, 

including attorney fees, COUNTY, its officers, agents, and employees and independent 

contractors in any legal action or claim of any kind based upon such alleged acts or omissions.  

However, this duty to indemnify and hold harmless shall not include and claim arising from the 

sole negligence or willful misconduct of the COUNTY, its officers, agents, employees and 

independent contractors. 

B. Indemnification by COUNTY.  COUNTY shall indemnify and hold CITY, its 

officers, agents, employees and independent contractors free and harmless from any claim or 

liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any act or omission of COUNTY and its officers, 

agents, employees or volunteers for property damage, bodily injury or death, or any other element 

of damage of any kind or nature arising out of the performance of this MOU, and COUNTY shall 

defend at its expense, including attorney fees, CITY, its officers, agents, employees and 

independent contractors in any legal action or claim of any kind based upon such alleged acts or 

omissions.  However, this duty to indemnify and hold harmless shall not include any claim arising 

Page 259

Item 23.



 

Page 7 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its officers, agents, employees and 

independent contractors. 

 SECTION 11:  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

A. COUNTY is and shall at all times remain as to CITY a wholly independent 

contractor.  Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers 

shall have control over the conduct of COUNTY or any of COUNTY's officers, 

employees, or agents except as set forth in this MOU.  COUNTY shall not at any 

time or in any manner represent that it or any of its officers, employees or agents 

are in any manner officers, employees or agents of CITY.  COUNTY shall not incur 

or have the power to incur any debt, obligation or liability whatsoever against CITY, 

or bind CITY in any manner. 

B. No employee benefits shall be available to COUNTY in connection with the 

performance of this MOU.  Except for the fees paid to COUNTY as provided in this 

MOU, CITY shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to COUNTY for 

performing services hereunder for CITY.   

SECTION 12:  INSURANCE 

 Both COUNTY and CITY maintain programs of self-insurance.  In the event either party 

shall cease such program, then that party shall be required to procure insurance which would be 

typical for its obligations under this MOU.     

 SECTION 13:  NOTICES 

 Any notices which either party may desire to give to the other party under this MOU must 

be in writing and may be given either by (i) personal service (ii) delivery by reputable document 

delivery service, such as but not limited to, Federal Express, that provides a receipt showing the 

date and time of delivery, or (iii) mailing in the United States Mail, certified mail, postage prepaid, 

return receipt requested, addressed to the address of the party as set forth below or at any other 

address as that party may later designate by Notice.   Notice shall be effective upon delivery to 

Page 260

Item 23.



 

Page 8 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

the addresses specified below or on the third business day following deposit with the document 

delivery service or United States Mail as provided below. 

To City: 

City of Coachella 

Attention: City Manager 

53-990 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA 92236 

To County: 

County of Riverside 

Attention:  Suzanne Holland 

3403 10th Street, Suite 400  

Riverside, California 92501 

 

SECTION 14: GENERAL 

 A. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is intended that this MOU sets forth the full and 

entire understanding of the parties regarding the matters set forth herein. Any agreement, 

alteration, understanding, variation, waiver, or modification of any of the terms or provisions 

contained herein shall not be binding upon the parties hereto unless made and executed in writing 

by all parties hereto, and if required, approved and implemented by the Coachella City Council 

and the Riverside County Board of Supervisors. 

B. No waiver by either party at any time of any of the terms and conditions of this 

MOU shall be deemed or construed as a waiver at any time thereafter of the same or of any other 

terms or conditions contained herein or of the strict and timely performance of such terms and 

conditions.  

C. Neither party can assign, sublet, mortgage, hypothecate or otherwise transfer in 

any manner any of its rights, duties, or obligations hereunder to any person or entity without the 

written consent of the other party being first obtained, which consent shall be in the absolute 

discretion of that party.    

D. The   invalidity   of   any   provision   in   this   MOU   as determined by a court of 

competent jurisdiction shall in no way affect the validity of any other provision hereof. 

E. Any action at law or in equity brought by either of the parties hereto for the purpose 

of enforcing a right or rights provided for by this MOU shall be tried in a court of competent 

Page 261

Item 23.



 

Page 9 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

jurisdiction in the County of Riverside, State of California, and the parties hereby waive all 

provisions of law providing for a change of venue in such proceedings to any other county.  

F. The section headings herein are for the convenience of the parties only, and shall 

not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, meaning or intent of 

the provisions or language of this MOU. 

G. Both parties shall maintain the confidentiality of all information and records 

pertaining to privacy and confidentiality, and comply with all other statutory laws and regulations 

relating to privacy and confidentiality. 

H.   Both parties shall cooperate with and provide reasonable assistance to the other 

to the extent contemplated hereunder in the performance of all obligations under this MOU and 

the satisfaction of the conditions of this MOU.  Approvals required by any party, or any officers, 

agents or employees thereof, shall not be unreasonably withheld and approval or disapproval 

shall be given within a reasonable time. 

G.  The MOU is hereby executed by the following authorized representatives of the CITY 

and COUNTY.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 262

Item 23.



 

Page 10 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this MOU to be executed the 

day and year first above written. 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA, a California   COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, a political 
municipal corporation      subdivision of the State of California 
        
     
 
By: ____________________________                     By: ____________________________ 
Steven Hernandez, Mayor     Kevin Jeffries, Chairman  
                                                                           Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
        
        Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________                     By: ____________________________ 
City Clerk       Deputy 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Minh C. Tran 
County Counsel 

 
 
 
By: ____________________________                     By: ____________________________ 
City Attorney                               Ryan Yabko, Deputy County Counsel 
 

 

Page 263

Item 23.



 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director  

Anahi Fernandez, Management Analyst  

SUBJECT: 
 

City of Coachella Annual Progress Report (APR) to the California Dept. of 

Housing Community Development  
 

 

Staff Recommendation:  

 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

 

1. Adopt Resolution (Attachment 1) titled: “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE GENERAL PLAN 

2022 ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT”; and 

 

2. Direct staff to submit the 2022 APR to the State as required by law. 

 

Background:  

 

California Government Code Section 65400 requires the City to prepare an annual status report on 

City of Coachella 2035 General Plan implementation. The annual status report must be presented 

to Council for review and acceptance, and then submitted to the Governor’s Office of Planning 

and Research (OPR) and the Housing and Community Development (HCD) by April 1st of each 

year pursuant to State guidelines. The purpose of the progress report is to provide information to 

Council to assess how the General Plan is being implemented. Also, the report provides State 

required information regarding the City’s progress in meeting its share of regional housing needs. 

 

Discussion/Analysis: 

 

General Plan Implementation Actions 

 

The General Plan 2023 APR describes the status of General Plan implementation measures and 

housing activity and programs.  The City of Coachella General Plan 2035 serves as a blueprint for 

the future growth of the City of Coachella and includes goals and policies within various General 

Plan elements that include land use, housing, mobility, health and wellness, sustainability, safety, 

infrastructure and public services, and noise.  The General Plan Implementation Actions describes 

Page 264

Item 24.



actions that the City shall undertake to implement the General Plan, the level of priority of the 

action, timeframe, the responsible party and the relevant General Plan goals for the action.  The 

status of the General Plan Implementation Actions is provided in Attachment 1. 

 

A status of notable general plan implementation actions are provided in the table below: 

 

Table 1: Key General Plan Implementation Actions Completed or Underway 

 

Element Action Responsibility Update 

Land Use Update Zoning Coded and 

Zoning Map to comply with 

General Plan 

Planning Scheduled for PC May 17 and 

Council June 14. 

 Historic Preservation Study Planning Staff will propose to Council 

establishment of a historic 

resources study and historical 

context statement in FY 23-

24. 

 Community engagement 

process protocols 

Planning and 

City Manager 

A Resident Leadership 

Academy will be presented to 

Council in June for 

implementation Fall ’23 as a 

step to address this action.  

 Design Guidelines Update Planning Objective Design Standards 

are being developed for 

single family and multi-

family development for 

adoption by end of FY 22-23. 

Mobility Pedestrian and bicycle action 

plan 

Engineering, 

Planning, Public 

Works, Grants 

Manager 

Active Transportation Plan 

has been adopted. 

Health 

and 

Wellness 

Edible Landscapes Public Works, 

Planning, 

Engineering 

Introduced with fruit trees at 

Shady Lane Park.  This is 

being encouraged in future 

park development. 

 Fund additional library 

facilities, equipment and 

programs 

City Manager, 

Finance, 

Riverside 

County Library 

System 

City completed 6th Street 

Library in 2018 and received 

a State Grant to fund 

construction of the Library 

Annex area on 7th Street. 

 

There are numerous general plan implementation actions in Attachment 1 that have not occurred 

and this is likely a result of a lack of reporting to the Planning Commission (Commission) and the 

City Council (Council) on these actions in previous years.  Development Services Department staff 

plans to provide the status of these General Plan actions to the Commission and Council annually 

Page 265

Item 24.



to order to assess the City’s progress with General Plan implementation and the priority level of 

these actions. 

 

Housing Activity Reporting 2022 

 

For the 2022 calendar year, the City Permitted 52 Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) that count 

towards the City’s Residential Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) for low-income units. The City 

also permitted 191 Single Family Detached Units that are above the moderate income affordability 

level. A total of 108 multifamily units were issued by the City, 58 units are categorized as very-

low income and 50 units are categorized as low-income based on affordability. These multifamily 

units have not been issued permits or certificates of occupancy.  The City currently has a 6th Cycle 

RHNA of 7,886 residential units across four income categories: Very Low, Low, Moderate, and 

Above Moderate.  The Housing Activity Report for calendar year 2022 is provided as Attachment 

2.  

 

Attachments:   

1. Resolution 20223-25 - City of Coachella Annual Progress Report 

2. Housing Activity Reporting Data for calendar year 2022 

3. City of Coachella General Plan Implementation Actions Status 

 

Page 266

Item 24.



Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT Note: "+" indicates an optional field
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation

Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Date 
Application 
Submitted

Total 
Approved 
Units by 
Project

Total 
Disapproved 

Units by 
Project

Streamlining

2 3 4 6 7 8 9

Prior APN+ Current APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+

Unit Category
(SFA,SFD,2 to 
4,5+,ADU,MH)

Tenure

R=Renter
O=Owner

Date 
Application 
Submitted+

(see 
instructions)

Very Low-
Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low-
Income Non 

Deed 
Restricted

Low-Income 
Deed 

Restricted

Low-Income 
Non Deed 
Restricted

Moderate-
Income 
Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 
Income   

Non Deed 
Restricted

Above
Moderate-

Income

Total PROPOSED 
Units by Project

Total 
APPROVED 

Units by project

Total 
DISAPPROVED 
Units by Project

Was APPLICATION 
SUBMITTED 

Pursuant to GC 
65913.4(b)?  

(SB 35 
Streamlining)     

Did the housing 
development 

application seek 
incentives or 
concessions 
pursuant to 

Government Code 
section 65915?

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 0 0 0 0 0 0 9852 9852 0 0

779-360-001 Van Buren, 
between Ave 51 

& Ave 52
Encanto

Tentative Tract 
Map 38429

SFD O

9/27/2022

112 112 No No

779-280-002,      
779-320-001

SEC Van Buren 
and Avenue 50

Sevilla II
Tentative Tract 

Map 38577
SFD O

12/19/2022
204 204 No No

603-210-004, 603-
140-016, 603-200-
002, 603-160-007, 

 

East of Dillon Road 
North of I-10 

Freeway
KPC Coachella SP 22-01

SFD O

10/6/2022

9536 9536 No No

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Table A

Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas

51

Project Identifier Unit Types Proposed Units - Affordability by Household Incomes Density Bo   
Applica

10

Housing Development Applications Submitted

Page 267

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021  10/15/2029

Table A2

Streamlining Infill
Housing without Financial 

Assistance or Deed 
Restrictions

Term of Affordability 
or Deed Restriction Notes

2 3 5 6 8 9 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Prior APN+ Current APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+

Unit Category               
(SFA,SFD,2 to 
4,5+,ADU,MH)

Tenure

R=Renter
O=Owner

Very Low- 
Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low- 
Income   Non 

Deed 
Restricted

Low- Income 
Deed 

Restricted

Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted

Moderate- 
Income Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 
Income Non 

Deed 
Restricted

Above
Moderate-

Income

Entitlement
Date Approved # of Units issued 

Entitlements

Very Low- 
Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low- 
Income   Non 

Deed 
Restricted

Low- Income 
Deed 

Restricted

Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted

Moderate- 
Income Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 
Income Non 

Deed 
Restricted

Above
Moderate-

Income

Building Permits 
Date Issued

# of Units Issued 
Building Permits 

Very Low- 
Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low- 
Income   Non 

Deed 
Restricted

Low- 
Income 
Deed 

Restricted

Low- 
Income   

Non Deed 
Restricted

Moderate- 
Income 
Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 
Income Non 

Deed 
Restricted

Above
Moderate-

Income

Certificates of 
Occupancy or other 
forms of readiness          
(see instructions)    

Date Issued

# of  Units 
issued 

Certificates of 
Occupancy or 
other forms of 

readiness

How many of 
the units were 
Extremely Low 

Income?

Was Project    
APPROVED using 

GC 65913.4(b)?  
(SB 35 

Streamlining)            
Y/N

Infill Units?
Y/N+

Assistance Programs 
for Each Development
(may select multiple - 

see instructions)

Deed Restriction 
Type

(may select 
multiple - see 
instructions)

For units affordable without 
financial assistance or deed 
restrictions, explain how the 
locality determined the units 

were affordable
(see instructions)

Term of Affordability or 
Deed Restriction 

(years) (if affordable in 
perpetuity enter 1000)+ 

Number of 
Demolished/De

stroyed Units

Demolished or 
Destroyed Units

Demolished/D
estroyed Units    

Owner or 
Renter

Total Density Bonus Applied 
to the Project (Percentage 

Increase in Total Allowable 
Units or Total Maximum 

Allowable Residential Gross 
Floor Area)

Number of Other 
Incentives, 

Concessions, Waivers, 
or Other Modifications 
Given to the Project 
(Excluding Parking 
Waivers or Parking 

Reductions)

List the incentives, 
concessions, 
waivers, and 
modifications 

(Excluding Parking 
Waivers or 

Parking 
Modifications)

Did the project receive 
a reduction or waiver of 
parking standards? (Y/N)

Notes+

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 58 0 50 52 0 0 111 258 0 0 0 0 0 52 191 230 0 0 0 0 0 8 66 74 0 0 0 0

768-510-003
84457 CALLE 

LARRIVA SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15577 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
2/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

84451 CALLE 
LARRIVA SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15578 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

2/1/2022
1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-500-010 50873 CALLE 
CARRASSCO SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15568 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

3/7/2022
1 1 7/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-011 50845 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15569 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

3/7/2022
1 1 7/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-012 50803 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15570 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

3/7/2022
1 1 7/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-013 50771 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15571 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

3/7/2022
1 1 7/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-014 50731 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15572 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

3/7/2022
1 1 7/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-006 84422 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15573 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

3/7/2022
1 1 9/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-503-005 84421 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-01-15574 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

3/7/2022
1 1 7/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-270-009 50007 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE 9/13/2022 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-279-017 83536 AVENIDA 
CAMPANAS MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15765 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-279-018 83542 AVENIDA 
CAMPANAS MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15766 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-001 50052 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15767 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-002 50046 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15768 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-003 50040 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15769 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-004 50034 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15770 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-005 50028 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15771 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-006 50022 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15772 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-007 50016 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15773 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-008 50010 CALLE 
FRONTERA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-04-15774 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

4/12/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

84427 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-02-15591 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 9/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-007
84428 CALLE 

CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-02-15592 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 9/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-008
84434 CALLE 

CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-02-15593 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 9/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-503-003
84435 CALLE 

CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-02-15644 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 9/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-503-002
84441 CALLE 

CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-02-15645 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 10/14/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-503-001
84447 CALLE 

CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-02-15646 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 9/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-010
84446 CALLE 

CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-02-15647 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 10/31/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-009
84440 CALLE 

CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-02-15648 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 9/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-005
84423 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15691 SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 11/17/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-015
50695 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15692 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 10/31/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-016
50657 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15693 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 11/8/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-017
50611 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15694 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 11/8/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-018
50587 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15695

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/9/2022

1 1 11/11/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-005
84422 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15696
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 11/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-008
84430 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15697
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 11/18/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-009
84436 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15698
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 11/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-50-2003
84435 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15699
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 11/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-004
84429 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-03-15700
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/9/2022
1 1 11/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-010
84442 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15782
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/11/2022
1 1 11/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-011
84446 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15783
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/11/2022
1 1 11/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-012
84452 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15784
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/11/2022
1 1 12/12/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-001
84447 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15785
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/11/2022
1 1 12/12/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-502-002
84441 CALLE 

YSIANO SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15786
SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

5/11/2022
1 1 12/12/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

50694 CALLE 
CERVANTES SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15787

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/16/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

50656 CALLE 
CERVANTES SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15788

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/19/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

50616 CALLE 
CERVANTES SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15789

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/16/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

50584 CALLE 
CERVANTES SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15790

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/16/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-006
84425 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15791

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/29/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-019
50565 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15792

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/22/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-020
50533 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15793

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/22/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-021
50509 CALLE 
CARRASCO SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15794

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/22/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-022
84412 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15795

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/22/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-023
84420 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15796

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/29/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-024
84426 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15797

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/29/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-005
84431 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15798

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/29/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-025
84432 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15799

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/29/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-026
84438 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15800

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/29/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-500-027
84442 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15801

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-003
84441 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15802

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-004
84435 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-04-15803

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
5/11/2022

1 1 12/29/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-034 50196 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15931 SFD O 1 1/5/2022

1
1

6/1/2022
1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-023
50181 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15932

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-024
50187 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15933

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-025
50193 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15934

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-033
50202 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15935

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-035
50190 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15936

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-036
50184 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15937

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 1 12/28/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-026
50199 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15938

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-027
50205 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15939

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-028
50211 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15940

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-029
50217 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15941

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-030
50220 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15942

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-031
50214 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15943

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-032
50208 CAMINO 
ROSARIO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-05-15944

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

778-053-011 1441 5th BL-2022-06-15971 SFD O 1 8/8/2021 1 1 6/2/2020 1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-500-028
84448 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-05-15896

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
6/7/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-500-029 84454 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-05-15897 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

6/7/2022
1 1 12/29/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-001 84453 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-05-15898 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

6/7/2022
1 1 12/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-501-002 84447 CALLE 
RODRIGUEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-05-15900 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

6/7/2022
1 1 12/30/2022 1 N Not Applicable 

768-511-014 50564 CALLE 
CERVANTES SEVILLA BL-2022-05-15901 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

6/7/2022
1 1 1/26/2023 1 N Not Applicable 

768-511-015 50532 CALLE 
CERVANTES SEVILLA BL-2022-05-15902 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

6/7/2022
1 1 1/26/2023 1 N Not Applicable 

768-510-030 50508 CALLE 
CERVANTES SEVILLA BL-2022-05-15903 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

6/7/2022
1 1 1/26/2023 1 N Not Applicable 

768-510-031 50500 CALLE 
CERVANTES SEVILLA BL-2022-05-15904 SFD O 1 6/23/2021

1
1

6/7/2022
1 1 2/22/2023 1 N Not Applicable 

779-271-009
50097 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15980

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/16/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-010
50103 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15981

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/16/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-011
50109 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15982

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/16/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-012
50115 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15983

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/16/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-020
50112 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15984

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/16/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-021
50106 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15985

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-022
50100 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15986

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-013
50121 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15987

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-014
50127 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15988

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-015
50133 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15990

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-016
50136 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15991

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-017
50130 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15992

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-018
50124 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15993

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-019
50118 CAMINO 
CONVENTO MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15994

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-043
50280 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15995

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-044
50274 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15996

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

Density Bonus

1

Unit Types Affordability by Household Incomes - Completed Entitlement Affordability by Household Incomes - Building Permits Affordability by Household Incomes - Certificates of Occupancy

4 7 10

Note: "+" indicates an optional field

Housing with Financial Assistance 
and/or Deed Restrictions Demolished/Destroyed UnitsProject Identifier

Annual Building Activity Report Summary - New Construction, Entitled, Permits and Completed Units

Page 268

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021  10/15/2029

Note: "+" indicates an optional field

779-271-045
50268 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15997

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-046
50265 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15998

SFD O 1 1/5/2022 1
6/16/2022

N Not Applicable 

779-271-047
50271 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-15999

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/16/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-048
50277 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-16000

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/16/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-049
50283 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-06-16001

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
6/16/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-152-020
84501 CALLE 
CATHRON BL-2022-03-15727

SFD O 1 11/30/2021
1

1
6/30/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53027 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16117 SFD O 1 4/5/2022

1
1

7/25/2022
1 0 N Not Applicable 

53031 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16118

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53035 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16119

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53039 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16120

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53045 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16121

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53051 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16122

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53055 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16123

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53003 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16124

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53007 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16125

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53011 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16126

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53015 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16127

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53019 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16128

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

53025 CALLE 
EMPALME BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16129

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
7/25/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-024 50532 CALLE 
CEBRINO BELLISSIMA BL-2022-05-15906

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/17/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-025 50522 CALLE 
CEBRINO BELLISSIMA BL-2022-05-15907

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/17/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-026 50510 CALLE 
CEBRINO BELLISSIMA BL-2022-05-15908

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/17/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-027 50502 CALLE 
CEBRINO BELLISSIMA BL-2022-05-15909

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/17/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-028 50501 CALLE 
CEBRINO BELLISSIMA BL-2022-05-15910

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/17/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-029 50507 CALLE 
CEBRINO BELLISSIMA BL-2022-05-15911

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/17/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-001
50533 CALLE 
CEBRINO BELLISSIMA BL-2022-05-15912

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/17/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-022
53039 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16165

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/17/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-023
53035 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16166

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-024
53031 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16167

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-026
53023 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16168

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-037
53024 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16169

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-038
53028 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16170

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-025
53027 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16171

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-039
53032 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16172

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-040
53038 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16173

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-027
53019 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16182

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-028
53015 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16183

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-029
53011 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16184

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-031
53005 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16185

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-032
53006 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16186

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-033
53008 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16187

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-034
53012 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16188

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-035
53016 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16189

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-520-036
53020 MODENA 
TERRACE BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16190

SFD O 1 4/5/2022
1

1
8/9/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-460-024 84103 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16191 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-025 84093 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16192 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-026 84079 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16193 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-027 84067 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16194 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-028 84055 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16195 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-029 84045 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16196 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-521-025 84114 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16197 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-521-026 84126 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16198 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-521-027 84136 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16199 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-021 84139 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16200 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-022 84127 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16201 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-023 84115 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-07-16202 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/9/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-039
50304 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-07-16211

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
8/3/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-040
50298 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-07-16212

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
8/3/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-041
50292 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-07-16213

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
8/3/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-042
50286 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-07-16214

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
8/3/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-050
50289 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-07-16215

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
8/3/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-051
50295 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-07-16216

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
8/3/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

779-271-052
50301 CAMINO 
MAGDALENA MARIPOSA POINTE BL-2022-07-16217

SFD O 1 1/5/2022
1

1
8/3/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-521-028 84146 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-08-16246 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/17/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-521-029 84160 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-08-16247 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/17/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-521-030 84172 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-08-16248 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/17/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-521-031 84184 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-08-16249 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/17/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-017 84185 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-08-16250 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/17/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-018 84173 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-08-16251 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/17/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-019 84161 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-08-16252 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/17/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 
768-460-020 84151 SIENA LN BELLISSIMA BL-2022-08-16253 SFD O 1 4/5/2022 1 1 8/17/2022 1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-020 50658 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-07-16226

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
9/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-021 50610 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-07-16227

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
9/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510022 50582 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-07-16228

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
9/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510023 50564 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-07-16229

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
9/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-002 50567 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-07-16230

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
9/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-003 50585 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-07-16231

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
9/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-004
50621 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-07-16232

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
9/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-005
50669 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-07-16233

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
9/1/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-015 84489 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-09-16405

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
10/19/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-016 50808 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-09-16406

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
10/19/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-017 50766 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-09-16407

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
10/19/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-018 50730 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-09-16408

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
10/19/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-019 50688 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-09-16409

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
10/19/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-006 50707 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-09-16410

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
10/19/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-007
50753 CALLE 
CEBRINO SEVILLA BL-2022-09-16411

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
10/19/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-010 84453 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-11-16528

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
12/6/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-011 84459 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-11-16529

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
12/6/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-012 84465 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-11-16530

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
12/6/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-013 84473 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-11-16531

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
12/6/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-510-014 84481 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-11-16532

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
12/6/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-008 84460 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-11-16533

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
12/6/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

768-511-009 84454 CALLE 
CHAVEZ SEVILLA BL-2022-11-16534

SFD O 1 6/23/2021
1

1
12/6/2022

1 0 N Not Applicable 

778-340-016

53351 CALLE 
BELLA BL-2022-01-15499

ADU O 1

1/3/2022 1

1

1/3/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-140-018

84498 VIA ZAHIDI BL-2022-01-15518

ADU O 1

1/5/2022 1

1

1/5/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-441-007

52821 GENOA ST BL-2022-01-15521

ADU O 1

1/10/2022 1

1

1/10/2022

1 1 9/27/2022 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

612-590-038

49237 PLUMA 
BLANCA PL BL-2022-01-15557

ADU O 1

1/24/2022 1

1

1/24/2022

1 1 3/16/2022 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

 763-053-005

86051 LAS 
FLORES AVE BL-2022-01-15566

ADU O 1

1/26/2022 1

1

1/26/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-460-007

84114 
BELLISSIMA AVE BL-2022-02-15596

ADU O 1

2/2/2022 1

1

2/2/2022

1 1 7/22/2022 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-110-016
50920 CHIAPAS 
DR BL-2022-03-15669

ADU O 1

3/7/2022 1

1

3/7/2022

1 1 9/7/2022 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-381-009

85617 VIA 
MISIONERO BL-2022-03-15733

ADU O 1

3/29/2022 1

1

3/29/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

Page 269

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021  10/15/2029

Note: "+" indicates an optional field

612-453-019
83577 
SHADOWROCK 
DR BL-2022-04-15829

ADU O 1

4/18/2022 1

1

4/18/2022

1 1 6/29/2022 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

612-560-025

83618 RIMROCK 
LN BL-2022-04-15844

ADU O 1

4/20/2022 1

1

4/20/2022

1 1 1/24/2023 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-152-022

84505 CALLE 
CATHRON BL-2022-05-15919

ADU O 1

5/19/2022 1

1

5/19/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-290-027

52876 ADAM LN BL-2022-05-15920

ADU O 1

5/19/2022 1

1

5/19/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-270-040

52088 ALLENDE 
DR BL-2022-05-15946

ADU O 1

5/24/2022 1

1

5/24/2022

1 1 11/14/2022 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

603-530-003
84401 AVENIDA 
FLORABUNDA BL-2022-05-15951

ADU O 1

5/25/2022 1

1

5/25/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-120-067

50430 AVENIDA 
ADOBE BL-2022-05-15952

ADU O 1

5/25/2022 1

1

5/25/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-100-027

50510 JALISCO 
AVE BL-2022-05-15953

ADU O 1

7/25/2022 1

1

7/25/2022

1 1 7/27/2022 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-430-017

85814 AVENIDA 
VERONICA BL-2022-06-16034

ADU O 1

6/16/2022 1

1

6/16/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-040-003

1639 2ND ST BL-2022-06-16050

ADU O 1

6/27/2022 1

1

6/27/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-273-016

52089 ALLENDE 
DR BL-2022-06-16054

ADU O 1

6/27/2022 1

1

6/27/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-152-010

50781 AVENIDA 
RAZON BL-2022-06-16101

ADU O 1

6/29/2022 1

1

6/29/2022

1 1 9/13/2022 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-432-037
85810 AVENIDA 
ALEENAH BL-2022-06-16109

ADU O 1

6/29/2022 1

1

6/29/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-090-020

50513 SALTILLO 
CIR BL-2022-07-16132

ADU O 1

7/12/2022 1

1

7/12/2022

1 1 3/21/2023 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-411-017

52829 CALLE 
AVILA BL-2022-07-16148

ADU O 1

7/13/2022 1

1

7/13/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-383-002

52138 CALLE 
CAMACHO BL-2022-07-16155

ADU O 1

7/18/2022 1

1

7/18/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-090-041

50695 CHIAPAS 
DR BL-2022-07-16175

ADU O 1

7/25/2022 1

1

7/25/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

612-531-013

83223 LOS CABOS 
AVE BL-2022-17-16180

ADU O 1

7/25/2022 1

1

7/25/2022

1 1 2/7/2023 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-302-005

85439 HEATHER 
LN BL-2022-07-16221

ADU O 1

7/27/2022 1

1

7/27/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-462-013
85556 AVENIDA 
MARIA BL-2022-08-16286

ADU O 1

8/11/2022 1

1

8/11/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

612-544-008

48670 EL ARCO ST BL-2022-08-16287

ADU O 1

8/11/2022 1

1

8/11/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-432-043

52748 ADRIANA 
CT BL-2022-08-16315

ADU O 1

8/16/2022 1

1

8/16/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-212-014

85685 CALLE 
LIMON BL-2022-08-16329

ADU O 1

8/23/2022 1

1

8/23/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-105-006

1516 8TH ST BL-2022-09-16361

ADU O 1

9/1/2022 1

1

9/1/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

778-262-013

52355 OASIS 
PALM AVE BL-2022-09-16397

ADU O 1

9/20/2022 1

1

9/20/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-091-017

50410 
CHIHUAHUA CT BL-2022-09-16398

ADU O 1

9/21/2022 1

1

9/21/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-111-027
50805 CHIAPAS 
DR BL-2022-09-16413

ADU O 1

9/27/2022 1

1

9/27/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

612-591-002

49190 PLUMA 
BLANCA PL BL-2022-09-16414

ADU O 1

9/27/2022 1

1

9/27/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

603-422-002

84443 
MARGARITA AVE BL-2022-10-16448

ADU O 1

10/4/2022 1

1

10/4/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

763-412-007

86765 NAOMI CT BL-2022-10-16489

ADU O 1

10/6/2022 1

1

10/6/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-101-017

50355 JALISCO 
AVE BL-2022-10-16501

ADU O 1

10/20/2022 1

1

10/20/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

603-560-012

49699 CORTE 
MOLINO BL-2022-11-16521

ADU O 1

11/8/2022 1

1

11/8/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-325-022

53968 
MAHOGANY CT BL-2022-11-16524

ADU O 1

11/8/2022 1

1

11/8/2022

1 1 1/26/2023 1 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

612-590-047
83427 PLUMA 
DORADA CT BL-2022-11-16526

ADU O 1

11/8/2022 1

1

11/8/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-152-008

50761 AVENIDA 
RAZON BL-2022-11-16535

ADU O 1

11/9/2022 1

1

11/9/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

768-480-008

84253 LA JOLLA 
AVE BL-2022-11-16540

ADU O 1

11/16/2022 1

1

11/16/2022

1 0 N

Market Rate Rents for 
apartment units observed 
between $1,500 to $2,200 
which is affordable to low 

income and moderate income 
households

Page 270

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

1 Projection Period 3 4

RHNA Allocation by 
Income Level

Projection Period - 
06/30/2021-
10/14/2021

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Total Units to 
Date (all years)

Total Remaining 
RHNA by Income 

Level

Deed Restricted  -                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Non-Deed Restricted  -                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Deed Restricted  -                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Non-Deed Restricted  -                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Deed Restricted  -                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Non-Deed Restricted  -                          78                          52                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

Above Moderate                                   4,487  -                           -                          191                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                          191                             4,296 

                                  7,886 
                              -                            78                        243                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                          321                     7,565 

5 6 7
Extremely low-Income 

Need 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Total Units to 

Date
Total Units 
Remaining

                                     517                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                          517 

Please note: The APR form can only display data for one planning period. To view progress for a different planning period, you may login to HCD's online APR system, or contact 
HCD staff at apr@hcd.ca.gov.

                            1,237 

                          -   

This table is auto-populated once you enter your jurisdiction name and current year data. Past 
year information comes from previous APRs.

                       130 
Moderate

                                  1,033 

                                     999 

                                  1,367 

Please contact HCD if your data is different than the material supplied here

                          -   

2

Table B
Regional Housing Needs Allocation Progress

Permitted Units Issued by Affordability

                            1,033 

                               999 

Please note: For the last year of the 5th cycle, Table B will only include units that were permitted during the portion of the year that was in the 5th cycle. For the first year of the 6th 
cycle, Table B will only include units that were permitted since the start of the planning period. Projection Period units are in a separate column.

Total RHNA
Total Units

Income Level

Very Low

Low

Extremely Low-Income Units*

Note: units serving extremely low-income households are included in the very low-income RHNA progress and must be reported as very low-income units in section 7 of Table A2. They must also be reported in the extremely 
low-income category (section 13) in Table A2 to be counted as progress toward meeting the extremely low-income housing need determined pursuant to Government Code 65583(a)(1).

*Extremely low-income houisng need determined pursuant to Government Code 65583(a)(1). Value in Section 5 is default value, assumed to be half of the very low-income RHNA. May be overwritten. 

Progress toward extremely low-income housing need, as determined pursuant to Government Code 65583(a)(1).

Page 271

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Date of Rezone Rezone Type

2 4 5 6 7 9 10 11

APN Street Address Project Name+
Local 

Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+

Date of Rezone Very Low-Income Low-Income Moderate-Income Above Moderate-
Income

Rezone Type Parcel Size
(Acres)

General Plan 
Designation Zoning Minimum    

Density Allowed 
Maximum    

Density Allowed
Realistic 
Capacity Vacant/Nonvacant Description of Existing 

Uses

Note: "+" indicates an optional field

Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below

83

Project Identifier RHNA Shortfall by Household Income Category Sites Description

1

Sites Identified or Rezoned to Accommodate Shortfall Housing Need and No Net-Loss Law
Table C

Page 272

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31)

1 2 3 4
Name of Program Objective Timeframe in H.E Status of Program Implementation

ADU/JADU Standards Increase Housing Unit Availability 22-Jun In progress
Objective Design and 
Development Standards 
Toolkit

Streamline the Development Approval 
Process 22-Jun In progress

Housing Programs Progress Report  
Describe progress of all programs including local efforts to remove governmental constraints to the maintenance, improvement, and development of housing as identified in the housing element.

Table D
Program Implementation Status pursuant to GC Section 65583

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

Page 273

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Annual Progress Report  January 2020

Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Period 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Description of Commercial 
Development Bonus

Commercial Development Bonus 
Date Approved

3 4

APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+

Very Low
Income

Low
Income

Moderate
Income

Above Moderate
Income

Description of Commercial 
Development Bonus

Commercial Development Bonus 
Date Approved

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below

Units Constructed as Part of Agreement

 Commercial Development Bonus Approved pursuant to GC Section 65915.7
Table E

Note: "+" indicates an optional field

Project Identifier

1 2

Cells in grey contain auto-calculation 
formulas

(CCR Title 25 §6202)

Page 274

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Annual Progress Report  January 2020

Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT Note: "+" indicates an optional field

Reporting Period 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

The description should adequately document how each 
unit complies with subsection (c) of Government Code 
Section 65583.1+. 
For detailed reporting requirements, see the chcklist 
here: 

Extremely Low-
Income+ Very Low-Income+ Low-Income+ TOTAL UNITS+

Extremely Low-
Income+

Very Low-
Income+ Low-Income+ TOTAL UNITS+

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-
development/docs/adequate-sites-checklist.pdf

Rehabilitation Activity

Preservation of Units At-Risk

Acquisition of Units

Mobilehome Park Preservation

Total Units by Income

Table F 

Please note this table is optional: The jurisdiction can use this table to report units that have been substantially rehabilitated, converted from non-affordable to affordable by acquisition, and preserved, including mobilehome park preservation, consistent with 
the standards set forth in Government Code section 65583.1, subdivision (c). Please note, motel, hotel, hostel rooms or other structures that are converted from non-residential to residential units pursuant to Government Code section 65583.1(c)(1)(D) are 

considered net-new housing units and must be reported in Table A2 and not reported in Table F.

Activity Type

Units that Do Not Count Towards RHNA+

Listed for Informational Purposes Only

Units that Count Towards RHNA +
Note - Because the statutory requirements severely limit what can be 

counted, please contact HCD at apr@hcd.ca.gov and we will unlock the 
form which enable you to populate these fields.

Units Rehabilitated, Preserved and Acquired for Alternative Adequate Sites pursuant to Government Code section 65583.1(c) 

Page 275

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/docs/adequate-sites-checklist.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/docs/adequate-sites-checklist.pdf


Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Note: "+" indicates 
an optional field

Reporting Period 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Notes

2 3 6

Prior APN+ Current APN Street Address Project Name+
Local 

Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+

Unit Category               
(2 to 4,5+)

Tenure

R=Renter

Very Low- 
Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low- 
Income   Non 

Deed 
Restricted

Low- Income 
Deed Restricted

Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted

Moderate- 
Income Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 
Income Non 

Deed Restricted

Above
Moderate-

Income

Total Moderate Income Units 
Converted from Above 

Moderate

Date Converted Notes

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below

Table F2 
Above Moderate Income Units Converted to Moderate Income Pursuant to Government Code section 65400.2

For up to 25 percent of a jurisdiction’s moderate-income regional housing need allocation, the planning agency may include the number of units in an existing multifamily building that were converted to deed-restricted rental housing for moderate-income households by the imposition of affordability covenants and restrictions for the unit. Before adding information to 
this table, please ensure housing developments meet the requirements described in Government Code 65400.2(b).

5

Project Identifier Unit Types

1 4

Affordability by Household Incomes After Conversion Units credited toward Above Moderate 
RHNA

Page 276

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella

Reporting Period 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31)

Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029 ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

2 3 4

APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+

Realistic Capacity 
Identified in the 

Housing Element

Entity to whom the site 
transferred Intended Use for Site

1

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below

Note: "+" indicates an optional field

Cells in grey contain auto-calculation 
formulas

Table G
Locally Owned Lands Included in the Housing Element Sites Inventory that have been sold, leased, or otherwise disposed of

Project Identifier

NOTE: This table must only be filled out if the housing element sites 
inventory contains a site which is or was owned by the reporting 
jurisdiction, and has been sold, leased, or otherwise disposed of 
during the reporting year.

Page 277

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella Note: "+" indicates an optional field

Reporting Period 2022
(Jan. 1 - Dec. 

31)
Cells in grey contain auto-calculation 
formulas

Designation Size Notes

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

APN Street Address/Intersection Existing Use Number of 
Units

Surplus 
Designation

Parcel Size (in 
acres) Notes

767-720-001 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2022

767-720-002 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2023

767-720-003 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2024

767-720-004 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2025

767-720-005 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2026

767-720-006 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2027

767-720-007 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2028

767-720-008 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2029

767-720-009 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2030

767-720-010 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2031

767-720-011 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2032

767-720-012 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2033

767-720-013 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2034

767-720-014 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2035

767-720-015 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2036

767-720-016 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2037

767-720-017 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2038

767-720-018 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2039

767-720-019 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2040

767-721-001 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2041

767-721-002 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2042

767-721-003 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2043

767-721-004 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2044

767-721-005 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2045

767-721-006 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2046

767-721-007 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2047

767-721-008 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2048

767-721-009 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2049

767-721-010 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2050

767-721-011 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2051

767-721-012 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2052

767-721-013 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2053

767-721-014 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2054

767-721-015 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2055

NOTE: This table is meant to contain an invenory of 
ALL surplus/excess lands the reporting jurisdiction 

owns

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below

Parcel Identifier

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

Table H
Locally Owned Surplus Sites

For Riverside County jurisdictions, please format the APN's as follows:999-999-999

Page 278

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



767-721-016 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2056

767-721-017 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2057

767-721-018 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2058

767-721-019 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2059

767-721-020 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2060

767-721-021 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2061

767-721-022 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2062

767-721-023 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2063

767-721-024 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2064

767-721-025 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2065

767-721-026 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2066

767-721-027 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2067

767-721-028 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2068

767-721-029 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2069

767-721-030 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2070

767-721-031 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2071

767-721-032 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2072

767-721-033 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2073

767-721-034 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2074

767-721-035 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2075

767-721-036 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2076

767-721-039 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2077

767-721-040 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2078

767-721-041 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2079

767-721-042 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2080

767-721-043 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2081

767-721-044 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2082

767-721-045 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2083

767-722-001 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2084

767-722-002 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2085

767-722-003 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2086

767-722-004 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2087

767-722-005 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2088

767-722-006 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2089

767-722-007 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2090

767-722-008 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2091

767-722-009 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2092

767-722-010 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2093

767-722-011 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2094

767-722-012 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2095

767-722-013 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2096

767-722-014 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2097

767-722-015 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2098

767-722-016 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2099

767-730-001 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2100

767-730-002 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2101

Page 279

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



767-730-003 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2102

767-730-004 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2103

767-730-005 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2104

767-730-006 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2105

767-730-007 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2106

767-730-008 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2107

767-730-009 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2108

767-730-010 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2109

767-730-011 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2110

767-730-012 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2111

767-730-013 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2112

767-730-014 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2113

767-730-016 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2114

767-730-017 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2115

767-730-018 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2116

767-730-019 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2117

767-730-020 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2118

767-730-021 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2119

767-730-022 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2120

767-730-023 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2121

767-730-024 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2122

767-730-025 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2123

767-730-026 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2124

767-730-027 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2125

767-730-028 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2126

767-730-029 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2127

767-730-030 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2128

767-730-031 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2129

767-730-032 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2130

767-730-033 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2131

767-730-034 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2132

767-730-035 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2133

767-730-036 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2134

767-730-037 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2135

767-730-038 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2136

767-730-039 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2137

767-730-040 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2138

767-730-041 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2139

767-730-042 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2140

767-730-043 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2141

767-730-044 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2142

767-730-045 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2143

767-730-046 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2144

767-730-047 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2145

767-730-048 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2146

767-730-049 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2147

Page 280

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



767-730-050 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2148

767-731-008 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2149

767-731-009 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2150

767-731-010 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2151

767-731-011 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2152

767-731-012 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2153

767-731-013 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2154

767-731-014 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2155

767-731-015 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2156

767-731-016 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2157

767-731-017 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2158

767-731-018 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2159

767-731-019 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2160

767-731-020 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2161

767-731-021 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2162

767-731-022 SE Corner of Ave 50 + Calhoun St., Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 37.3 Part of 37.3 Acre Property and sold in 
2163

778-420-004 Not Available Residential 0 Surplus Land 5
763-131-018 86969 Avenue 52, Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 5.16
763-400-016 Not Available Residential 0 Surplus Land 3.99
763-400-017 Not Available Residential 0 Surplus Land 3.8
763-131-018 86969 Avenue 52, Coachella, CA 92236 Industrial 0 Surplus Land 5.16
778-042-009 Not Available Residential 0 Surplus Land 0.22
778-042-010 1609 4th Street, Coachella, CA 92236 Residential 0 Surplus Land 0.14
778-093-005 1308 6th Street, Coachella, CA 92236 Commercial 0 Surplus Land 0.15
778-110-001 Not Available Commercial 0 Surplus Land 0.14
763-412-030 Not Available Residential 0 Surplus Land 0.15
768-222-004 Not Available Residential 0 Surplus Land 0.18

Page 281

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Annual Progress Report  January 2020

Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Note: +  indicates an 
optional field

Reporting Period 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Cells in grey contain 
auto-calculation 
formulas

Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Project Type Date

2 3

APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+ Activity Date Very Low

Income
Low

Income
Moderate
Income

Above Moderate
Income

Table I
Units Constructed Pursuant to Government Code 65852.21 and Applications for Lot Splits Pursuant to Government Code 66411.7 (SB9)

NOTE: SB 9 PROJECTS ONLY. This table only 
needs to be completed if there were lot splits 
applied for pursuant to Government Code 
66411.7 OR units constructed pursuant to 
65852.21. 
Units entitled/permitted/constructed must also 
be reported in Table A2. Applications for these 
units must be reported in Table A.

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below

Project Identifier Unit Constructed

1 4

Page 282

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Annual Progress Report  January 2020

Jurisdiction Coachella ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Period 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Project Type Date

2 3

APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+

Unit Category
(SH - Student Housing) Date Very Low- Income 

Deed Restricted

Very Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted

Low- Income Deed 
Restricted

Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted

Moderate- Income 
Deed Restricted

Moderate- Income 
Non Deed 
Restricted

Above
Moderate-

Income

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below

Not      

Cells in g    

Table J
Student housing development for lower income students for which was granted a density bonus pursuant to subparagraph (F) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (b) of Section 65915

Project Identifier Units (Beds/Student Capacity) Approved

1 4

NOTE: STUDENT HOUSING WITH DENSITY BONUS ONLY. This 
table only needs to be completed if there were student housing 

projects WITH a density bonus approved pursuant to 
Government Code65915(b)(1)(F)

Page 283

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Jurisdiction Coachella

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31)
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Current Year
Deed Restricted 0
Non-Deed Restricted 0
Deed Restricted 0
Non-Deed Restricted 0
Deed Restricted 0
Non-Deed Restricted 52

191

243

Units by Structure Type Entitled Permitted Completed
SFA 0 0 0
SFD 98 178 66
2 to 4 0 0 0
5+ 108 0 0
ADU 52 52 8
MH 0 0 0
Total 258 230 74

3
9,852

0
0

0
0
0
0

Income Rental Ownership Total
Very Low 0 0 0
Low 0 0 0
Moderate 0 0 0
Above Moderate 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0

Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas

Units Constructed - SB 35 Streamlining Permits

Number of Streamlining Applications Approved
Total Developments Approved with Streamlining
Total Units Constructed with Streamlining

Total Housing Applications Submitted:
Number of Proposed Units in All Applications Received:
Total Housing Units Approved:
Total Housing Units Disapproved:

Total Units

Housing Applications Summary

Use of SB 35 Streamlining Provisions

Note: Units serving extremely low-income households are included in the very low-income permitted units totals

Number of Applications for Streamlining

Building Permits Issued by Affordability Summary
Income Level

Very Low

Low

Moderate

Above Moderate

Page 284

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2



Resolution No. 2023-25 

Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-25 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE GENERAL PLAN 

2022 ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT. 

  
 WHEREAS the State of California requires cities to have an adopted General Plan to 

provide guidance on land use decisions; and,  

 

WHEREAS on April 22, 2015, the City Council of the City of Coachella approved 

the General Plan 2035 document along with the Program EIR and Climate Action Plan; 

and 

 

WHEREAS the City of Coachella General Plan 2035 is the City’s comprehensive 

long-term policy document comprised of goals and policies for achieving Coachella’s 

vision. The plan guides land use and physical development of the geographic area of the 

incorporated City limits; and 

 

WHEREAS the General Plan contains the seven State-required elements and four 

additional elements, as follows: 1) Land Use; 2) Circulation; 3) Housing; 4) Conservation; 

5) Open Space; 6) Noise; 7) Safety; 8) Mobility, 9) Health and Wellness; 10) Sustainability; 

11) Infrastructure and Public Services; and 

 

WHEREAS each element of the General Plan has a set of goals and policies that 

are intended to achieve specific objectives. The City’s General Plan Implementation Action 

Matrix lists and prioritizes specific projects and ongoing programs or “Implementation 

Measures” that align with goals and policies in General Plan Elements, excluding Housing. 

For the Housing Element, implementation measures are included in a Housing Action Plan 

certified by the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 

with the Housing Element; and 

 

WHEREAS California Code of Regulations, Title 25, Division 1, Chapter 6, 

Sections 6200, et seq., requires the City to use in the report forms and definitions adopted 

by the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) to report 

on the status and progress implementing the City’s Housing Element; and, 

 

WHEREAS California Government Code Section 65400(a)(2)(B) requires the City 

to include in the APR the City’s progress in meeting its share of regional housing needs; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, California Code of Regulations, Title 25, Division 1, Chapter 6, 

Section 6200, et seq., requires the City to use in the report forms and definitions adopted 

by the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) to report 

on the status and progress implementing the City’s Housing Element; and, 

 

WHEREAS California Government Code Section 65400(a)(2)(F) requires the City 

Attachment  1 

Page 285

Item 24.



to include in the report an assessment of the degree to which the General Plan complies 

with the guidelines developed and adopted pursuant to Section 65040.2 and the date of the 

last revision to the General Plan; and, 

 

WHEREAS California Government Code Section 65400(a)(2) requires the City to 

submit the report to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and HCD by 

April of each year; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Division has determined in accordance with the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) that the General Plan 2022 Annual Progress 

Report (2022 APR) is not a project under the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA). The APR is an informational report documenting progress towards implementing 

the General Plan and does not make decisions for City actions; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2023, the City Council of the City of Coachella held a 

public meeting on the 2022 APR, considered written and oral comments, and facts and 

evidence presented by City staff, and other interested parties. The 2022 APR is Attachment 

3 of the May 10, 2023 City Council staff report, incorporated herein by reference. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF COACHELLA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  Incorporation of Recitals. 

 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the facts in the Recitals are true and correct 

and are incorporated and adopted as findings of the City Council as if fully set forth in this 

resolution. 

 

Section 2.  CEQA Findings. 

 

The Progress Report is not a project under the California Environmental Quality 

(CEQA) because the report is an informational report documenting progress towards 

implementing the General Plan and does not make decisions for City actions. 

 

Section 3.  Acceptance of 2022 APR. 

 

Based on the foregoing recitals and findings above, and the written and oral 

comments, facts, and evidence presented, the City of Coachella City Council, pursuant to 

Section 65400(a)(2) of the Government Code, has reviewed the 2022 APR that is 

Attachment 2 and 3 to the May 10, 2023 City Council staff report, incorporated herein by 

reference. The City Council accepts and finds the 2022 APR: 

 

A. Adequately assesses the status of the General Plan and Housing Element and its 

implementation; 

 

B. Provides information regarding the City’s progress in meeting its share of 

Page 286

Item 24.



Resolution No. 2023-25 

Page 3 

regional housing needs; 
 

 

C. Uses the forms and definitions adopted by HCD to report on the status and 

progress in implementing the City’s Housing Element; 

 

D. Adequately assesses the degree to which the General Plan complies with the 

General Plan Guidelines; and 

 

E. Accurately documents the date of the last revision to the General Plan. 

 

Section 4.  Submission of Progress Report. 

 

Pursuant to the California Government Code Section 65400(a)(2), the City shall 

submit the Progress Report to OPR and HCD. 

 

Section 5.  Certification. 

 

The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution and enter 

it into the book of original resolutions. 

 

 

PASSED APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of May 2023 by the 

following vote: 

 

AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

Page 287

Item 24.



City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

   

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney

Page 288

Item 24.



   

   

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2023-25 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on this 10th day of May 

2023 by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:   

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Delia Granados 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 289

Item 24.



General Plan Implementation Actions Update for 2022 Calendar Year

Land Use + Community character (LU)
# Action description Priority Time frame Respons

ibility
Relevant 
Goals 2022 Update

Zoning ordinance update. Following the adoption of the General Plan, update Coachella’s Zoning Ordinance. The City Council and planning staff should explore and/or 
modify the following items in addition to others in line with the Plan’s vision. The zoning consistency analysis can be found in Appendix C.

LU-1 -Zoning Consistency Update will go to PC May 17 and CC June 14 2023

•          Update the zoning code and official Zoning Map to comply with and implement the General Plan Designations and General Plan Designation Map. LU-2
-Coachella Multi-Family Objective Design Standards will be completed and in effect by Aug '23

•          Update the zoning code to encourage creative leisure and recreational uses in transit accessible and walkable areas.  LU-3

•          Create a park once district. LU-5 -Park once district to be considered with parking standards update 2023
•          Establish climate-appropriate, design guidelines that recommend best practices for passive heating and cooling in Coachella’s climate. M-1

•          Develop an incentive program that will assist developers in revitalizing existing structures. M-4 -incentive program not in place - goal by '24

•          Develop an incentive program to encourage and assist developers to develop along transit routes and to revitalize existing structures. M-7
-bicycle and storage requirement shall be made with zoning consistency changes - goal '23

•          Create bicycle parking and storage requirements for all new development (or remodeling/rebuilding to the extent feasible) to cover a broad range of bike parking 
needs, including parking in multi-family residential dwellings, employee parking for commuters and general purpose parking in commercial areas, civic facilities and parks. 
Collaborate with the School Districts to provide adequate bicycle parking facilities for students and staff. 

CHW-5
-universal design element requirement will occur with zoning consistency goal '22

•          Require a certain proportion or number of units in each residential development to include universal design elements, ensuring easy modifications to accommodate 
wheelchairs.

CHW-8
-community gardens or stub outs - being introduced with parks in new development proposals. Also 
considering with future '23 City land purchase.

•          Establish community gardens in appropriate locations and set forth basic regulations for community gardens, such as creation, maintenance, and operating rules.  CHW-9 -not prohibited today - will add language to permitted used in res zones '22
•          Allow food gardening by right in residential open space areas, including front, back, and side yard space. SNE-1

•          Prevent schools and other sensitive receptors from locating near known or expected new sources of air pollution and vice versa. The specific “safe” distance from a 
pollution source is dependent on the source and amount of pollution releases; however, a good rule of thumb is at least 500 feet from busy roadways, highways, and 
stationary sources. 

SNE-2

•          When permitting new child-care facilities, require them to submit a customized, or adopt a standard, wellness policy plan to address physical activity programs, 
interdisciplinary nutrition education and provide meals and snacks that are consistent with current guidelines established by the US Department of Agriculture.

SNE-4

•          Allow physicians and other medical providers to convert foreclosed or other vacant residential structures into neighborhood health clinics. The City may set restrictions 
(such as hours of operation, parking, signage, and services offered) to ensure the clinic is not a burden to the neighborhood. 

SNE-5

•          Strive for and encourage all new health and social service facilities to be transit-accessible and pedestrian-friendly. Work with Sun Line to improve transit routes and 
Sun Dial (Dial a Ride) access to service related facilities. 

SNE-9

•          Encourage the co-location of medical healthcare, mental/behavioral health and social services to increase access to care. SNE-11

•          Update development standards and/or create a development checklist to incorporate climate change adaption techniques into the development process.
•          Establish minimum tree planting requirements and guidelines for different sub areas, development types, street trees and parking lot landscaping to ensure the City’s 
urban forest/tree canopy is extensive and well maintained. These requirements should also address drought tolerant and native plants and landscaping to reduce overall 
water usage. 
•          Allow and encourage the creation of legal accessory dwelling units (ADUs) to enhance the diversity of housing options in existing residential neighborhoods. ADUs 
may be detached or attached to the principal structure.
•          Require below market rate units to come in a mix of sizes/number of bedrooms to address the need for affordable housing for different household types.
•          Require developers/contractors to recycle at least 50 percent of all construction and demolition waste.
•          Allow and incentivize renewable energy and energy efficiency technologies.
•          Identify and remove regulatory or procedural barriers to implementing green building practices within the City, such as updating codes, guidelines and zoning, and 
ensure that all plan review and building inspection staff are trained in green building design practices and techniques.
•          Identify appropriate buffers between agricultural and urban uses.
•          Develop standards to provide for cluster development and conservation design to minimize the impacts of urban development on areas where sensitive species are 
identified.
•          Identify standards for green roofs.
•          Create guidelines/requirements for permeable paving.
Expand allowances for home occupations/businesses in residential areas.
Reduce parking minimum requirements in projects where the developer conducts a traffic study to determine that unbundled parking and other measures will reduce the 
number of spaces required per unit. 

1.               High Short Planning

Page 290

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



Planning LU-2, LU-3 The City began a process of objective design standards to be completed end of FY 22-23.  The City 
also adopted updated design guidelines for the Pueblo Viejo District in October 23, 2019.

Engineering LU-5
Engineering will follow up on standards specs after zoning consistency update is complete.

LU -6

Planning
The City has not engaged with the County on a healthy development review checklist and will aim to 
do this late 2002.

Engineering N/A Engineering

County 
Public Health

Planning

City Manager

School 
District
Local 

community 
groups

5.              Sphere of Influence update. Update the City’s Sphere of Influence to exclude undevelopable land in Sub-Area 17. Medium Medium Planning LU-1

Planning LU-2
This has not been completed.  COFEM has reached out regarding conservation and working with the 
City which may be a potential partnership.

Parks LU-4 Not yet achieved - okay to report.
Planning LU-2

City Manager LU-7

Finance LU-10 Finance is not aware of an ongoing effort on this item.
Library LU-11

Planning

Finance
The City has implemented development impact fees effective 2017 to ensure development pays its 
fair share or added City service costs.

9.              
Historic preservation study. Study neighborhoods with a significant number of buildings over 50 years old to determine whether historic districts should be established. 
Create and maintain an inventory of historic and pre-historic sites, structures and landmarks of historic and cultural significance in order to determine the potential impact on 
these resources from proposed projects.

Low Ongoing Planning LU-1 The City has an existing historic resources survey from the early 2000's.  A new historic resources 
survey is needed and will require an appropriation.

               

2.              

Design guidelines update. Update the City’s design guidelines to encourage human-scale urban design at the neighborhood-, block-, and building-scale to promote 
walkability and social interaction. Elaborate and expand upon the contents of the Land Use + Community Design and Mobility Elements. Guidelines should specify how 
development along existing and planned transit lines should provide convenient, direct and safe connections to nearby transit stops and integrate transit stops into public 
space designs.

Medium Medium

3.              

Healthy development review. Work with the Riverside County Department of Public Health to create a development review process to analyze the health and social equity 
impacts of development proposals prior to the beginning of the CEQA review process. This could include the creation of a checklist that includes a key set of high priority 
questions related to how the project affects the food, recreation, and active transportation environments; affordability and access; pollution and toxics exposure; local wealth 
creation and other topics deemed relevant. The City can choose to integrate this review into the approval process. For larger or more complex projects the City may partner 
with others (the County Public Health Department, community groups, independent consultants, universities, etc.) to compile a more extensive health impact assessment.

High Short LU-3

4.              

Community engagement process protocols. Work with community groups and the school district to create minimum protocols for community outreach and engagement 
processes for different types of municipal decisions so community members can easily learn about input opportunities and know how best to contribute. These protocols 
should be utilized by all City departments and could include a single electronic database/spreadsheet of institutions, community groups, business, and interested individuals 
who want to receive meeting announcements; a list of public outreach methods; Spanish translation/interpretation guidance (in what cases to use); social media strategies; 
youth engagement; provision of food and child-care at public meetings; and other related items. The City should also consider purchasing translation headsets to support 
increased inclusion. 

High Short LU-15

6.              Open space conservation strategy. Create an open space conservation program that prioritizes which open space lands to preserve. Emphasize the creation of a citywide 
greenbelt to achieve conservation goals.

Medium Medium

7.               

Economic development strategic plan. Develop a long-term economic development strategy that develops and retains businesses and a strong middle class in Coachella 
for the decades to come. The plan should place a strong importance on creating quality jobs in Coachella for existing Coachella residents, career support programs and 
lifelong education, and professional development. The plan should also highlight the community’s desire for industries that use a “triple bottom line” (health/people, 
environmental sustainability and profit) and invest back into Coachella’s local economy. 

High Short

8.              Fiscal impact assessment fees. Establish guidelines and create a fiscal impact assessments fee structure for new projects over 20 acres. High Medium LU-13

Page 291

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



Mobility (M)
# aCTION Description Priority Time FRame Responsibili

ty Relevant Goals 2022 Update

Complete streets manual. Develop a complete streets manual to ensure new roadway construction addresses all modes of travel to implement complete street principles. This manual should include the following components, which the 
City can write as stand-alone chapters over time: Engineering LU-3                                          

M-1
 traffic study with ped count and cyclist count FY 
22/23

•          Multi-modal street guidelines Public Works LU-3 Okay to report.
o    Review, identify and implement - Review existing roadways in the City to identify what enhancements are appropriate for specific facilities to better accommodate additional modes of travel and increase connectivity. Implement 
guidelines within the Complete Streets Design Manual that can be constructed in lieu of roadway and intersection widening. Planning LU-5

o    Create standards – Design and document standards for typical roadway right-of-way widths and types that include specifications for bicycle facilities, sidewalks, turn lanes, intersections, crosswalks, transit facilities and other details. Grants Manager
Will work with the Engineering Division in getting 
these standards developed

o    Multi-modal level of service – Develop traffic study guidelines that address the impact on all users including automobile drivers and passengers, bicyclists, pedestrians, persons with disabilities and transit riders. Consider revising 
traditional vehicle level of service (LOS) with methodologies more inclusive of other modes such as the multi-modal level of service (MMLOS). The City should update these guidelines on an ongoing basis as Coachella continues to grow 
and as new research and technology becomes available. 

Public Works
Okay to report.

•          Pedestrian and bicycle action plan LU

o    Pedestrian and bicycle design guidelines – Develop pedestrian and bicycle design guidelines that identify pedestrian requirements such as sidewalk width, offset from the curb and other criteria for sidewalks along roadways. Bicycle 
guidelines and requirements should ensure that bicycle facilities connect all areas of the city including new and existing developments, regardless whether these areas have gates, sound walls or other barriers. The guidelines should also 
contain design specifications for on- and off-street bike paths and bike lanes,, street markings, dimensions, intersections, turning lanes, signage and bicycle parking standards. The guidelines should also consider installing drinking water 
fountains along key bicycle and pedestrian routes. We have an ATP Plan
o    Prioritization plan – Prepare a prioritization plan for the creation and improvement of sidewalks in existing neighborhoods and bicycle facilities throughout the City. 

o    Subdivision retrofits program – Review existing subdivisions to identify those neighborhoods that can be retrofitted to accommodate additional pedestrian and bicyclist connections.  No subdivision retrofit program
o    Active transportation requirements – Develop guidelines that require future residential and commercial developments in the City enhance and connect to external bicycle and pedestrian networks.

o    Pedestrian and bicycle network map update – Create and update Citywide map (or two maps) of pedestrian and bicycle facilities on a recurring interval of no less than two years and ensure the map(s) is/are accessible to the public. 

o    Active transportation programs – In addition to design and policy, the plan should contain programs to complement infrastructure improvements such as safety education or a bike sharing programs. 
Complete streets funding  - On an ongoing basis, pursue grants to implement the multi-modal streets in Coachella, including but not limited to funding from federal and state agencies, philanthropic organizations and corporate giving 
programs.

Engineering

Public Works

This is accomplished through new development 
review and annually through the speed hump 
installation CIP.

              Temporary car-free zones program. Develop a program with a simple application process for community event organizers to apply for temporary street closure permits necessary to create car-free events that allow people to safety walk, 
bike, socialize and exercise in the streets. Medium Short Public Works M-3

This can be achieved through the city's special 
event permit - city has permitted several block 
parties using this application process. 

Public Works

Partnering with CVAG in the Go Human Campaign - 
installed various street banners and other 
educational material with Sunline to promote 
walking, cycling, and other modes of 
transportation. 

Engineering

School District

Partnering with CVAG in the Go Human Campaign - 
installed various street banners and other 
educational material with Sunline to promote 
walking, cycling, and other modes of 
transportation. 

County Health 
Department
Engineering

Planning

Transit supportive environments. Collaborate with Sun Line Transit Agency to identify and enhance those existing areas of the City where the land uses, development intensity and the pedestrian environment are conducive to higher 
levels of transit service and usage. Sun Line

Transit Hub effort both existing and future 
facilities

Bus stop location review. Review existing bus stop locations to determine their accessibility to key destinations such as schools, residential areas, retail centers and civic facilities. Work with Sun Line to relocate existing bus stop 
locations as needed to provide greater access to key community destinations. Engineering

Sunline does the review of bus stop location and 
submits new stations for review by the City. City 
has also requested stops previously.

Bus stop prioritization. Prioritize those bus stop locations that are connected to bicycle and pedestrian facilities to help meet users’ last mile travel needs.

               High Ongoing

              Traffic calming program. Develop a citywide program that implements a mechanism to apply traffic calming features to neighborhood roadways in a systematic fashion. This program should incorporate a strong element of public 
involvement to obtain resident feedback and input to identify appropriate improvements from each neighborhood. High Medium

              High Short M-5

M-2

              Signage program. Implement a signage program for bicycle facilities that documents connections to regional facilities, bicycle parking and community facilities along existing and future bicycle facilities. Medium Short M-4

              Walking, cycling and public transit education. Develop an active transportation awareness and safety education program in partnership with community groups, schools, other public agencies; employers to educate residents, workers, 
drivers, businesses and other organizations about the benefits of walking, bicycling, and/or using public transit. Low Medium M-3

Page 292

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



Transit service prioritization.  Work with Sun Line to prioritize future transit service in those areas where the greatest level of transit ridership will occur based on the supportive land use and transportation patterns.

Development incentives. Explore and develop incentives to encourage higher-density, transit-friendly development along these transit routes. 

Engineering bus stops must be ADA accessible. 

Sun Line
Senior Center - bus transport M-F.  Cal Vans for 
Sunline.

Planning

Engineering

Sun Line

Engineering Okay to report. Track bike lane striping separetly.
Public Works

            
Transportation infrastructure maintenance funding. Investigate funding mechanisms to maintain existing transportation infrastructure based on existing development such as assessment districts. Citywide traffic fee programs should 
also be updated on a recurring interval of not less than every five years. High Short Engineering M-6

No plans for a new funding mechansim. Priority 
and timeframe medium

Engineering Traffic Study to be conducted in FY 22-23
Sun Line

             Driver education programs. Work with community groups or other public agencies to educate motorists about safely sharing the road with bicyclists, pedestrians, and transit vehicles; child restraint laws; fuel efficient driving; and common 
causes of preventable collisions to promote overall safety of multi-modal streets users. Low Medium Engineering M-3 Recommend with Police.  

Engineering

Public Works

Participating in CVAGs synchronization projects.  
Continue to look at opportunities to incorporate 
these features in new construction and grants. 
Timeframe - ongoing

              

              Travel survey. Implement a regular travel survey in association with Sun Line Transit for Coachella residents to identify their commute patterns every two to five years. Low Medium M-5

               Transit service improvements for seniors. Meet with Sun Line Transit and community groups annually to identify transit service changes and improvements to accommodate the mobility needs of seniors. Medium Ongoing M-5

              Traffic data collection program. Implement a traffic data collection program on a recurring interval of no less than two years. The program should collect data on peak and non-peak traffic counts, bicycling and pedestrian counts for key 
intersections, transit ridership and automobile collision locations, especially ones that involved a pedestrian cyclist, or alcohol usage. Medium Medium M-7

              Operations and maintenance annual reports. Prepare annual reports disclosing incremental operations and maintenance costs associated with new transportation infrastructure built in the City over the past year. Medium Short M-6

             Improve traffic flow. Implement traffic features such as roundabouts or the use of integrated signalization to improve traffic flow and reduce emissions from vehicle idling and stop and start. Medium Medium SNE-11

Page 293

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



Community Health + Wellness (CHW)
# Action description pRIORITY Time frame Responsibility rELEVANT 

gOALS 2022 Update

Planning
This has not been developed or coordination with Riverside County due to 
staffing.  Planning will begin a conversation on this late 2023.

Riverside County 
Department of Public 

Health
Healthy budget items. Create a process and criteria that helps staff and elected officials make budget decisions about programs and capital improvement projects that could improve health and 
equity in Coachella. City Manager Consideration of DIF fee for wellness projects/infrastructure
A potential approach could include: Human Resources HR has no updates on this section.
•          Train department leadership on health equity. Planning

•          Create health and equity criteria to help departments prioritize budget items. Finance
In person budget meetings have been established to work through department 
budgets. All Departments have been directed to submit full budgets for needed 
service levels to ensure all needs are considered and prioritized.

•          Encourage each department to identify one or more health objectives for their annual budget. Engineering CIP program priortizes ATP goals.
•          Ensure budget items leverage opportunities to improve health co-benefits. Public Works Continue to work with staff to identify opportunities. 

3               Community oversight. Expand the role of an existing commission or create an ad hoc committee to advise the city council and planning commission on the implementation of the Community 
Health and Wellness Element and other health-related issues. High Ongoing Planning CHW-1

A Commission has not been created and another Commission has not been 
identified to assume Community Health and Wellness Issues.  This is worth a 
discussion with Council upon APR review and staff resources available. 

City Manager CHW-1
A Workplace wellness team does not exist. (Follow up with CM on feasibility)

Planning CHW-7 Employee Assistance program

5               Support events. Host, co-sponsor, and/or organize citywide community health events such as health fairs, educational talks, and workshops, to support positive health behaviors. Medium Ongoing City Council CHW-1

6               Mobile home park environmental checklist. Work with community partners to create a mobile home park checklist to assess compliance with health and safety regulations for a recurring site 
inspection program. High Short Code Enforcement CHW-2

These are registered by the State and working with the State for bringing them 
into compliance.

Foreclosure prevention. To prevent foreclosures and to help families who are already in the foreclosure process, work with local community partners to do the following: 
Ordinance exists where banks have to register property with City when there is 
a foreclosure and vacant and abondoned.

•          Identify key information such as the number, location, value, condition and owners of foreclosed properties; The City doesn't have a program for assisting the public to prevent foreclosures 
and should involve a discussion with the RIVCO Housing Authority

•          Create bi-lingual information and self-help resources (to post on the City’s website and in City offices) to help residents prevent and cope with the foreclosure process. 

Code enforcement would be involved in a small piece of this and perhaps this 
would involve coordination between Development Services and the Grants 
Manager

•          Sponsor a home economics/finance education class for first time homebuyers. 

•          Pass and enforce a foreclosure registration ordinance that applies to both vacant and occupied buildings. 

•          Work with utility companies to transfer account holder names in lieu of shutting off service in foreclosure properties.

Planning 

City Manager -City contracts $100,000 a year for homeless services/outreach
CVAG

Riverside County 
Homeless Programs 

Unit

9               Healthy building resources. Create healthy building material checklists and fact sheets that can be provided to property owners and contractors when applying for building permits. Short Building CHW-2
This has not been completed and could be assigned as a task of the Dev Svcs 
Dept Assistant II.

             Tobacco retail licensing fee. Adopt a tobacco retail licensing fee and penalties that would allow more stringent oversight and enforcement of tobacco sales to minors. Medium Police Administration CHW-3

              Smoke-free public events and facilities. Ban smoking at outdoor public events and public facilities, including farmers’ markets, public parks and trails, and community street fairs. Ongoing Public Works CHW-3
City events occur on city property which bans the use of tobacco on city 
property.

2               High Short CHW-1

1                

Health impacts in staff reports. Collaborate with the Riverside County Department of Public Health to create and implement the use of a health impacts protocol to help assess and disclose the 
health co-benefits and impacts of new construction, capital improvement projects and other land use decisions. The protocol should provide guidance on a range of health topics and include 
objective criteria. The protocol’s results should be included in city council and planning commission staff reports. When appropriate, seek review assistance from the Riverside County Department 
of Public Health in completing the assessment.

High Immediate CHW-1

4               

Workplace wellness. Identify a workplace wellness team and create a model workplace wellness program for City employees. The team should assess employee health needs and implement 
workplace wellness programs and events. Some possible actions include offering employee incentives for healthy eating and physical activity; smoking cessation programs; group fitness or diet 
programs; health screenings; physical activity breaks for meetings over one hour in length; accommodate breastfeeding employees upon their return to work; and encourage walking meetings and 
use of stairways. The City should share this model workplace wellness program information with local employers to encourage the adoption of similar practices. The City can provide incentives 
(such as priority permit processing) to “healthy employers” who provide employee health benefits such as paid sick days, health insurance, gym membership, among others.

High Ongoing

7                Medium Ongoing Code Enforcement CHW-2

8               
Homelessness plan and services. Review the Valley Wide Homelessness Plan and existing homeless services and shelters in the Eastern Coachella Valley to determine gaps in services and 
housing. Implement the most applicable strategies for Coachella and focus on helping homeless persons in high visibility areas (like Harrison street or Veterans’ Park) who detract from 
perceptions of public safety. Work with community organizations to create supportive housing for homeless community members.  

Ongoing CHW-2

Page 294

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



             
Second- and third-hand smoke exposure. Research and adopt an ordinance that bans smoking in multi-unit residential buildings and care/convalescent facilities. Before an ordinance is 
passed, educate single- and multi-family property owners and managers about the effects of second-and third-hand smoke and encourage them to include anti-smoking policies in rental 
agreements. Connect property owners to resources (such as model lease language) if they want to ban smoking in their rental units. 

Short Planning CHW-3 This has not been done and recommend a study session with Council to identify 
what priority level this is.

             Smoke-free worksites. Write and adopt an ordinance that bans smoking: in outdoor dining areas, within 30 feet of unenclosed waiting areas, within 30 feet of enclosed areas where smoking is 
prohibited, in hotel rooms, in retail stores dealing exclusively in the sale of tobacco and smoking paraphernalia, and in unenclosed places of employment. Short Planning CHW-3

This has not been done and recommend a study session with Council to identify 
what priority level this is.

Planning
This has not been completed. Aware of organizations such as Alianza and 
Konkuey Design Initiative that has been doing some work on this issue.  A 
discussion on this issue may be a good idea for the Parks SubCommittee.

City Council

Police
 Desert Recreation 

District
Park and Recreation 

Committee Continue work with community partners to grow this programming.
Public Works

Senior Center
This has not been done and should be presented to Council in a study session 
regarding the Health Element.

Administration -Senior Center was expanded in 2020
Planning

Desert Recreation 
District

             Community events. Streamline the permit process for block parties, street fairs and neighborhood events that promote positive interactions, build relationships and attract residents from 
surrounding communities. Immediate Public Works CHW-1

City's special events continue to grow and provide engagement of varios 
community members.

Planning
Staff has not been trained in this and Planning can committee to prioritizing 
this in 2023

Building

Engineering

             Police-community forums. Organize annual community forums with the police department, residents and local businesses to improve relationships and address public safety related to gangs, 
prostitution, illegal drug sales/use, and general safety around schools and parks. Immediate Police CHW-4 * Should Police answer this?

2             Grassroots emergency preparedness. Facilitate the creation and training of neighborhood emergency response teams to promote preparedness/safety, build community and encourage self-
efficacy of neighbors. Immediate EOC Coordinator CHW-4

Public Works The City has eperimented with this at Shady Lane Park with fruit trees and is 
also adding Grapefruit trees along the Urban Greening Project at Sixth Street.

Planning

Engineering

Public Works

This has not occurred.  This is worth a discussion with the City Council regarding 
City allocating resources for this effort or determining if the City may want to 
apply for grants

Planning

Master Gardener – 
UCR Extension 

Program

2             
Gardening tools and resources. Work with community organizations and neighborhood groups to organize a garden-tool lending program and garden bounty exchange program. The tool 
lending program would have a “library” of tools and gardening supplies that residents could “check-out” for free or at a very low cost. The garden bounty exchange could be a regular (weekly or 
monthly) gathering where residents can trade their surplus food crops. 

Short Public Works CHW-5

This has not been achieved - okay to report.  Can timeframe be updated to 
medium?  Find food bank can aassit with this.  Would support nonprofits in 
this.

City Manager

Food Banks

Riverside County 
Department of Public 

Health

Planning

This has not occurred.  This is worth a discussion with the City Council regarding 
City allocating resources for this effort or determining if the City may want to 
apply for grants

Heal Committee

Safe routes to school. Work with local community groups and public agencies to increase the number of students who walk and bike to/from school by implementing the following: Grants Manager
Planning will contact the County Health department.  The City has coordinated 
on these efforts in the past for traffic safety awareness.

•          Collaborate with the county public health department, the Coachella Valley Unified School District (CVUSD), and local community groups to obtain grant funds to for infrastructure  and safe 
routes to school programs (crossing guards, walking schools buses, bike trains, and carpools). Engineering

Planning staff is encouraging more pedestrian/cyclist connections to streets 
and pathways.

•          Work with the CVUSD to incorporate traffic safety awareness, including bicycle and pedestrian safety, into school curriculums. Planning

•          Integrate street improvement priorities identified by the county’s safe routes to school program into the City’s capital improvement program. A listing of completed SRTS projects can be found in ATP Plan

1              Safe teen activities. Streamline the process for community organizations to provide after-hours, weekend, and drug- and alcohol-free programming for youth in public spaces and facilities. Short CHW-8

1              Teen and youth needs. Assess the City’s entertainment/recreation resources every three years with the participation of Coachella youth to ensure their needs are met and to curb the influence 
of gang affiliation/violence. Ongoing CHW-8

1              
Crime prevention through environmental design. Train one or more city employees in crime prevention through environmental design (CPTED) principles so they can review and improve the 
safety of development plans and existing developments with strategies such as building doors/entrances and windows to look out on to streets and parking areas; pedestrian-friendly sidewalks 
and streets; front porches and adequate nighttime lighting. 

Short CHW-4

1              Senior programs. Assess the overall needs of Coachella’s older adult population every three years, in order to plan the appropriate type, quantity and schedule of senior programs and activities. 
The assessment should also address senior transportation and funding mechanisms. Short CHW-4

2              Community garden and composting education. Consider hosting demonstration or lecture events and/or providing electronic or printed resources about community and home gardening, 
composting and permaculture to educate the general public on how to grow organic edible plants. Short CHW-5

2              

Edible landscapes. Seek opportunities to create resilient and diverse edible landscapes in appropriate public spaces in Coachella for educational and nutritional purposes. Edible landscapes 
could be on public property, such as parks, in public rights-of-way, or in front of public buildings, so long as the edible landscapes do not negatively affect the pedestrian experience or create 
unsafe environments for residents and vehicle occupants. Establish a community-based network of residents, businesses and community organizations to maintain the plants and harvest the 
food. 

Ongoing CHW-5

2             

Healthy foods and beverages at public events. Research and adopt an ordinance to increase healthy food and beverage options at public facilities, meetings and events. The ordinance 
should consider banning sugar-sweetened beverages and increase the proportion of “healthy” items sold in vending machines and at concession stands. Adopt City nutrition guidelines based on 
work across the state and nation. Guidelines should include unhealthy food items that may not be served at public meetings/events, ideas of healthy food and beverage alternatives and criteria for 
“healthy” vs. “unhealthy” items. 

Short CHW-6

2             Emergency food. Partner with the Riverside County Public Health Department, local agricultural businesses and charity groups to distribute information about and expand the capacity and reach 
of emergency food resources. Ongoing CHW-6

2              Ongoing CHW-8

Page 295

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



•          Work with local developers, Home Owners Associations, and schools to provide more direct pedestrian and cyclist access to schools by creating pathways through dead ends and sound 
walls.   

Planning
This has not been done but worth a preliminary discussion with first 5 
California.

First 5

Finance

No updates - not implemented
Planning

City Manager

Finance City completed a new library on 6th Street and looking to improve facilities 
with the Library Annex construction in 2023 funded by State Grant 

Riverside County 
Library System 

2              Community space fund. Maintain development fee programs to accumulate funds for the acquisition and improvement of parks and public gathering places and facilities. Ongoing Finance CHW-8
The City has continued to implement a park improvemnt development impact 
fee.

3             Plaza vendors. Create a simple healthy food truck permit program that allows food and beverage vendors to operate in or around the perimeter of parks and plazas so long as they meet certain 
nutritional requirements determined by the City. Ongoing Planning CHW-6

This has not occurred but can be addressed when the City drafts its street 
vendor ordinance in 2023.

Riverside County

Finance
Compliance has already been mandated. This was in effect in 2010. Not sure 
what can be added to this.

3             Mobile clinics. Increase the use of mobile or remote health care (e.g., e-health care, clinics on wheels) in Coachella for farm workers and others with poor health care access through 
partnerships with Riverside Department of Public Health, local hospitals and community clinics. Ongoing Local Health Clinics CHW-9

City Council
To some extent this has been created in partnership with nonprofit 
organizations at the old City Hall.

City Manager -City completed a feasibility study for such facilities
Planning

Information Technical 
Manager CHW-9 This has not been created and could be done in late 2023 led by Planning.
Planning CHW-8

             

2              

Comprehensive child care plan.  Work with local and regional agencies and community partners to assess child-care supply, demand and affordability in Coachella at least every five years and 
implement programs to address child-care shortfalls. Develop and implement a comprehensive Coachella child-care facilities plan that engages the resources of the City, community partners, and 
employers in Coachella. The plan will identify priority geographic areas to locate new centers considering target populations and supply gaps and identify and assess existing and potential 
financing mechanisms for facility development. The plan will also consider a variety of funding sources and, if appropriate, include a nexus study to determine whether new development should 
contribute to child care facilities in Coachella.

Short CHW-8

CHW-8

CHW-8

3              Patient protection and the Affordable Care Act. Provide resources and training for employers to address compliance with the Affordable Care Act. Short CHW-9

2             
Library facilities. Work with the Riverside County library system to expand the reach and scope of programs and services offered at the Coachella branch. Specifically, improve service to the 
immigrant community; be a centralized resource for information about, and referrals, to community and social services; bridge the digital divide (age, race/ethnicity, and income) through computer 
classes; expand multilingual materials. As Coachella’s population increases, consider using development impact fees to fund additional library facilities, equipment and programs.

Ongoing

3             Health and social services resource list. Publish a list of health and social services resources on the City’s website. Immediate Ongoing

3             Multi-use facilities. Collaborate with community partners to create a resource center that could house a “one-stop shop” for social services in the City including an employment opportunity center. Long term Long

Page 296

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



Sustainability + Natural Environment (SNE)
# aCTION Description Priority Time FRame Responsibili

ty
Relevant 
Goals 2022 Update

               Heat island mitigation plan. Write and adopt a Heat Island Mitigation Plan that requires new commercial and residential developments to incorporate cool roofs, cool pavements and strategically 
placed shade trees. The plan should outline how the City will actively inspect and enforce state requirements for cool roofs on non-residential re-roofing projects. High Short Engineering SNE-1

priority - short - timeframe - Medium and consolidate w/ sustainable landscape management 
plan. Grant needed

Planning SNE-1
Building 

Engineering SNE-3 consolidate with above 
Public Works SNE-11

Planning
Emergency 
Coordinator

CVAG

HARC

Public Health

Building
Imperial Irrigation 

District
Planning This will require adoption of an ordinancy by City Council.  Will begin in 2023
Building

Planning Will begin in 2023.
Building

               Agriculture education park. Acquire a working agricultural site to manage as an educational and cultural park. Low Long Public Works SNE-5

              Right-to-Farm Ordinance. Work with the Riverside County Agriculture Commissioner to write and adopt a right-to-farm ordinance. (See this model 
ordinance:  http://www.smartgrowthamerica.org/smartgrowthusa/wp-content/uploads/2011/01/modelrtfordinance.pdf) 

High Short Planning SNE-5

This has not been done.  Planning staff can look into this in 2023.

              Habitat impacts. Develop a set of guidelines for evaluating project impacts to habitat, as well as for requiring specific mitigations for those that are identified. Low Medium Planning SNE-9
This has not been done and currently this City would rely on CEQA.  Staff recommend this be a 
long-term goal.

City Manager

Public Works Not yet achieved 
Engineering Difficult to implement due to extreme heat and staff idling.

City Manager
The Existing Park Master Plan is more than 15 years old.  This likely is overdue and would require 
an appropriation to bring on a consultant to assist.

Public Works

Engineering

Public Works
The Existing Park Master Plan is more than 15 years old.  This likely is overdue and would require 
an appropriation to bring on a consultant to assist.

Planning

Planning
This has not been created and may be worth developing with drafting of a new Parks Master Plan.

Public Works

EngineeringParks 
and Recreation 

Committee

             Climate Action Plan. Maintain and implement a Climate Action Plan. At a minimum interval of two years, update the GHG inventory and evaluate progress towards the City’s GHG emissions 
reduction target.

Planning staff will work on this with coordination with the Assistant to the City Manager in late 
2023.

             Retention Basins. Establish requirements for below grade onsite storm water requirements water storage of a certain size be stored underground to preserve land. This may be a savings to developers do underground retention and get park credit.

              

Sustainable landscape management plan. Create and update a landscape management plan that includes a consistent and sustainable landscaping and streetscape palette to apply to all 
roadways throughout the City. Different pallets and designs should apply to different districts and street types. Should specify different landscape designs for different districts and street types and 
prioritize shade, ease of maintenance and water conservation. The plan should also contain an urban forest management strategy. The effect should seek to optimize shade, ease of maintenance, 
water conservation climate benefits. 

High Medium

              

Vulnerability/resiliency assessment and climate adaptation strategy. Work with the regional government associations to conduct a community-wide assessment of the potential health impact, 
cumulative impact, and risk resiliency factors of climate change on Coachella residents. The assessment should identify the geographic areas, groups and individuals most vulnerable to climate 
change and specific opportunities for the City to improve its response. Vulnerable groups typically include infants and young children, the elderly, outdoor workers, people with preexisting health 
conditions such as asthma, and communities already affected by other social, economic, or other environmental injustices. With this information, develop a climate adaptation strategy to protect 
the public from heat waves and vector control, increased threats of wildfire, changing precipitation patterns, reduced water supply and increased peak energy demand. 

Medium Medium SNE-1

4               Energy efficiently education. Organize workshops on how to increase energy efficiency of homes and businesses through topics such as home weatherization, building envelope design, smart 
lighting systems and conducting a self-audit of energy usage. High Ongoing SNE-2

              Grey water ordinance. Write and adopt a grey water ordinance establishing criteria and standards to permit the safe and effective use of grey water (also known as on-site water recycling). 
Review and revise, without compromising health and safety, other building code requirements that might otherwise prohibit such systems. High Short SNE-3

              Water efficient buildings. Establish or adopt a checklist to ensure developers and contractors plan and install water-efficient infrastructure and technology, including low-flow toilets and 
showerheads, moisture-sensing irrigation and other advances. High Short SNE-3

              Eco-contractor policy. Consider the creation and adoption of a policy that gives preference to contractors that use reduced emissions equipment for City construction projects as well as for City 
contracts for services (e.g., garbage collection). The preference policy could also include other aspects of environmentally friendly business and operations practices. Low Ongoing SNE-11

             Vehicle idling ordinance. Establish a local ordinance that exceeds the state vehicle idling restrictions where appropriate, including restrictions for bus layovers, delivery vehicles, trucks at 
warehouses and distribution facilities and taxis, particularly when these activities take place close to sensitive land uses (schools, senior centers, medical facilities and residences). Medium Ongoing SNE-11

             Developer park guidelines. Create “Developer Guidelines for Coachella Park Standards and Requirements” to set standards, requirements, definitions, and procedures to assist developers in 
creating parks that contribute to the City’s parks system. Medium Short SNE-13

             

Parks Master Plan. Revise and adopt the parks master plan, which shall address current deficiencies in park space, specific sites, accessibility, funding sources and fees. The new Parks Master 
Plan shall also provide for physical activity amenities in selected parks and recreation centers. The City shall install and maintain indoor or outdoor exercise equipment in selected park and 
recreation centers and signage to encourage exercise (i.e., mile markers on existing and new paths, health and safety tips, and stretching/ strengthening exercise suggestions, etc.). The City shall 
also incorporate improvements, such as water fountains and restroom facilities, in parks to allow people to spend more time outdoors.

High Immediate SNE-13

Page 297

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



Safety (S)
# aCTION Description Priority Time FRame Responsibility Relevant 

Goals 2022 Update

1                Hazard prevention education. Develop and make available to all residents and businesses, literature on hazard prevention and disaster response, including information on how to 
earthquake-proof residences and places of business and information on what to do before, during and after an earthquake.  Short- Community 

Development         S-8 This has not been done.

2               Housing rehabilitation program. Develop and administer a housing rehabilitation grant and/or loan program that allows owners of manufactured (mobile) homes to seismically retrofit 
their houses. Short- Community 

Development         S-1 Grant Manager is working on a program and identified as an important issue by 
Councilmembers.  Planning can coordinate with this as well.

3               
FIRM updates. Work with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the Coachella Valley Water District to develop better, more comprehensive Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps for Coachella, including the hillside areas.  The City should identify and map local problem areas too small or currently outside of FEMA or California Department of Water 
Resources mapping.  Use the mapping to create flood overlays for zoning and land use maps.

Long-

Community 
Development, Public 
Works, and Water 
Department

        S-3

This effort is ongoing and maps are updated in collaboration with CVWD.

4               Comprehensive drainage plan. Develop a comprehensive drainage plan that could be used as a guide as the City is built out in the future. Long-
Public Works, 
Community 
Development

        S-3
Storm Water Master Plan adopted last year. 

5               Fire safety education.  Prepare and provide educational materials that inform homeowners of the importance of defensible space, correct use of power tools and machinery that can 
spark and ignite a fire, the dangers of igniting outdoor fires and fireworks and proper construction standards and materials. Long-term, as developm     

Fire Department, 
Community 
Development

        S-8

6               
Notification of hazardous materials. Adopt a notification and posting requirement ordinance for pesticide use in all public buildings and facilities in the City. Notification that pesticides, 
such as insecticides, fungicides or herbicides, are to be applied creates the opportunity to identify problems before spraying. A City ordinance may consider limiting when and what 
pesticides are used (e.g. restricting spray zones to non-play areas, prohibiting pesticide application when residents will be present, etc.).

Short- Fire Department         S-5

7                Pesticide education to business. Create a program to provide educational materials to gardeners and landscape companies that do business in Coachella about alternatives to and 
safer usage of toxic pesticides and herbicides. Short Fire Department         S-6

8               Restrictions on pesticide application. Develop policies and protocols to ensure pesticides are not sprayed when not safe to do so, for example when there are high winds, when nearby 
schools are in session, etc.        S-6

9               Siting. Update the zoning code to reflect healthy siting considerations and avoid siting unhealthy land uses near schools or residential areas. Ongoing Community 
Development        S-5 This can be addressed with the Zoning Consitency Update.

Page 298

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



Infrastructure + Public Service (IPS)
# Action Description Priority Time Frame Responsibility Relevant Goals 2022 Update

Utilities Manager

Engineering

Finance The City has implemented development impact fees effective 2017 to 
ensure development pays its fair share or added City service costs.

Sanitary

Finance The City has implemented development impact fees effective 2017 to 
ensure development pays its fair share or added City service costs.

              Stormwater treatment. Establish a development impact fee program to fund the development of new stormwater treatment and conveyance capacity. High Short Public Works         IPS-4 This is okay to report recommend timeframe be updated to medium.

              Solid waste management. Create and implement a Solid Waste Management Plan to institute measureable reduction targets that includes composting green waste and food scraps. Medium Medium Public Works         IPS-5
The city submits its annual report to CalRecycle that includes the city's 
reduction efforts. 

              Wastewater treatment. Establish a development impact fee program to fund the development of new wastewater treatment and conveyance capacity. High Short          IPS-3

               Development Impact Fees. Update the development impact fee program to fund the development of all infrastructure necessary for new development, including new water supplies and new water supply 
infrastructure. This fee program shall include a mechanism for the provision of tertiary water treatment and distribution infrastructure. High Short          IPS-2

Page 299

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



Noise (N)
# Action Description Priority Time 

Frame Responsibility Relevant 
Goals 2022 Update

Revise the City’s Municipal Code to achieve the goals and policies of this General Plan Noise Element, as necessary. Examples of such revisions may include: N-1 Planning will work on Zoning Code changes beginning November 2024.
•          Limit the hours of deliveries to commercial, mixed-use, and industrial uses adjacent to residential and other noise-sensitive land uses. N-2

•          Limit noise levels generated by commercial and industrial uses. N-3
•          Limit the hours of operation for refuse vehicles and parking lot sweepers if their activity results in an excessive noise level that adversely affects adjacent residential 
uses.
•          Require the placement of loading and unloading areas so that commercial buildings shield nearby land uses from noise generated by loading dock and delivery activities. 
If necessary, additional sound barriers shall be constructed on the commercial sites to protect nearby noise-sensitive uses.

•          Require all commercial health, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) machinery to be placed within mechanical equipment rooms wherever possible.

•          Require the provision of localized noise barriers or rooftop parapets around HVAC, cooling towers, and mechanical equipment so that line of sight to the noise source 
from the property line of the noise-sensitive receptors is blocked.

1 High Short Planning

Page 300

Item 24.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3



             

 

STAFF REPORT 

5/10/2023 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Eva Lara, Planning Technician and Gabriel Perez, Development Services 

Director 

SUBJECT: 
 

Pueblo Viejo Downtown Parking Survey Update 
 

 

Background:  

 

Growing the Pueblo Viejo Downtown District as a hub for small business and a destination for 

residents and visitors are City priorities.  The 2019 Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan included a 

parking analysis and identified recommendations for managing parking demand as Pueblo Viejo 

develops.  Our intent is to update the City Council Members regarding parking occupancy as the 

Pueblo Viejo Downtown District continues to grow. 

 

The Plan organized Downtown parking by numbered blocks (Attachment 1).  The survey 

monitored parking demand on Tuesday, March 28, 2023 (Observation Day 1) and Friday, April 

21, 2023 (Observation Day 2) for on-street and off-street parking occupancy between the hours of 

7 a.m. to 5 p.m. on 24 blocks.  Staff also analyzed the 6th Street segment between Vine and Orchard 

Streets where parking occupancy is anticipated to be highest.  Observation Day 2 was chosen to 

evaluate any impacts to parking from the Coachella Festival (Weekend 2). 

 

Discussion/Analysis: 

 

This report is intended to update the City Council Members and Planning Commission of the 

survey results and identify parking management options.  

 

On Sixth Street, between Orchard and Vine Streets, there are a total of 19 parallel on-street parking 

spaces that experience highest occupancies due to adjacent uses that include the Coachella Library, 

Sixth Street Coffee, Todec, True Awakening Studio, Las Tres Conchitas, on the South side and 

Alianza, COFEM, and Firehouse Bar and Grill. On Observation Day 1, the peak parking 

occupancy occurred at 3 p.m. at 89% and generally observed above 58% occupancy between 9 

a.m. to 3 p.m.  The lowest parking occupancy was observed at 7 a.m. and 5 p.m. at 47%.  On 

Observation Day 2, the peak parking occupancy occurred at 9 a.m. at 84% and generally observed 

above 53% occupancy between 11 a.m. to 3 p.m.  The lowest parking occupancy was observed at 

5 p.m. at 16%.  

 

On Sixth Street, between Cesar Chavez and Grapefruit, there are a total of 106 on-street supply of 

parking spaces.  On Observation Day 1, the peak occupancy was observed at 11 a.m. at 48% and 

Page 301

Item 25.



the lowest peak was observed at 7 a.m. at 27%.  On Observation Day 2, the peak occupancy was 

observed at 9 a.m. to 11 a.m. at 46% and the lowest peak was observed at 5 p.m. at 21%. 

 

Figure 1: Downtown Parking Study Area Block Numbering 

 
 

On Block 6 “Library Block”, there are a total of 50 parking spaces available, of which 9 are on-

street on 6th Street in front of Library/Sixth Street Coffee, 13 on Orchard, 13 on Vine and 15 on 

7th Street.  On Observation Day 1, the peak occupancy was around 11 a.m. to 3 p.m. at 66%.  

Parking was observed below 50% occupancy between 7 a.m., 9 a.m. and 5 p.m.  The lowest 

occupancy occurred at 7 a.m. at 20%.  On Observation Day 2, the peak occupancy was around 9 

a.m. at 82%.  Parking was observed below 50% occupancy between 7 a.m., and 1 p.m. to 5 p.m.  

The lowest occupancy occurred at 5 p.m. at 8%. 

 

At Veterans Park, Block 5, there are a total of 124 parking spaces, of which 35 are on-street on 

Orchard Street, 26 on 4th Street, 36 on Vine Street, and 17 off-street in a gated parking lot.  On 

Observation Day 1, the peak occupancy occurred at 1 p.m. at 56%.  The lowest occupancy occurred 

at 7 a.m. at 14%.  On Observation Day 2, the peak occupancy occurred at 1 p.m. at 42%.  The 

lowest occupancy occurred at 7 a.m. at 19%. 

Page 302

Item 25.



At the Southern half of Downtown, Blocks 4, 7, 11 and 23, the total amount of parking spaces are 

364.  On Observation Day 1, the peak occupancy occurred on Block 11 “Palm View Elementary 

School”, around 9 a.m. to 11 a.m. at 61%.   The lowest occupancy also occurred on Block 11 

“Palm View Elementary School”, around 7 a.m. at 7%.   On Observation Day 2, the peak 

occupancy occurred on Block 7, around 11 a.m. at 64%.  The lowest occupancy also occurred on 

Block 11 “Palm View Elementary School”, around 7 a.m. at 7%. 

 

The parking survey demonstrates that parking is abundant throughout the Downtown District.  The 

peak occupancy occurs at 11AM at 42% for the entire Downtown District.  The parking occupancy 

is observed highest on the 6th Street segment (between Orchard Street and Vine Street) at 89%.  

The March survey showed that an average of 34% parking spaces were occupied during the day, 

while the April survey showed 33%. Neither the Mexican Consulate nor Coachella Festival 

Weekend 2 made an impact on the total parking occupancy.  Parking is considered full when 

occupancy is above 80% and would be a reason to identify assertive parking management 

strategies.   

 

Higher parking occupancy on 6th Street between Vine and Orchard Street may require closer 

observation to implement solutions for future occupancy issues.  The 15-minute time-restricted 

parking for two parallel parking spaces in front of the Coachella Library and Sixth Street Coffee 

has been successful in ensuring faster parking turnover to allow visitors on short visits to frequent 

6th Street businesses.  Survey data shows an increase of occupancy from the September 2022 

survey with an increase of 12%, from 77% to 89% during weekdays.  The latter increase surpasses 

the 80% occupancy threshold and additional parking management strategies should be considered. 

 

The Members of City Council could consider recommending options to manage parking on the 

6th Street segment from 8 a.m.-5 p.m. Monday-Friday (15-minute, 20-minute, 1-hour or 2-hour 

limitations).  No other businesses since the time restricted parking signs were installed have 

reported any need for additional parking restrictions.  Another option that does not restrict parking 

would be to utilize wayfinding signs that directs employees or visitors for longer stays to plentiful 

parking along Vine and Orchard Streets where parking occupancies remain low to moderate.   

 

Staff Recommendation:  

 

Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the parking survey report.  Since this is 

the first downtown parking survey presented to City Council, Staff recommends the Council 

discuss the survey results and provide feedback. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Parking Map Block Excerpt 

2. Pueblo Viejo On-Street Parking Excerpt 

3. Pueblo Viejo Off-Street Parking Excerpt 

4. Pueblo Viejo Parking Occupancy Report, March 2023 

5. Pueblo Viejo Parking Occupancy Report, April 2023 

6. Coachella Parking Limit Signs  

7. Full Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan Parking Analysis 

https://www.coachella.org/home/showpublisheddocument/7801/637068252957170000  

 
 

Page 303

Item 25.

https://www.coachella.org/home/showpublisheddocument/7801/637068252957170000


 

CITY OF COACHELLA                                                                                                                                                                             Parking Study |  209  
Pueblo Viejo Implementation Strategy Plan – FINAL REPORT – October 2019 

PARKING STUDY 

 

 

Page 304

Item 25.

gperez
Text Box
Attachment 1



Attachment 2

Page 305

Item 25.



Attachment 3

Page 306

Item 25.



Parking Occupancy Data ‐ Tuesday, March 28, 2023

Block # Parking Type 7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM

1 Off‐Street 0 5 6 5 6 2

On‐Street 0 5 7 11 7 3

Off Supply 14

Space Available 14 9 8 9 8 12

% Occupied 0% 36% 43% 36% 43% 14%

On Supply 17

Space Available 17 12 10 6 10 14

% Occupied 0% 29% 41% 65% 41% 18%

Total Supply 31

Space Available 31 21 18 15 18 26

% Occupied 0% 32% 42% 52% 42% 16%

2 Off‐Street 5 17 14 16 17 15

On‐Street 4 10 19 17 16 20

Off Supply 37

Space Available 32 20 23 21 20 22

% Occupied 14% 46% 38% 43% 46% 41%

On Supply 26

Space Available 22 16 7 9 10 6

% Occupied 15% 38% 73% 65% 62% 77%

Total Supply 63

Space Available 54 36 30 30 30 28

% Occupied 14% 43% 52% 48% 52% 56%

3 Off‐Street 3 5 10 6 5 2

On‐Street 7 10 10 8 13 12

Off Supply 37

Space Available 34 32 27 31 32 35

% Occupied 8% 14% 27% 16% 14% 5%

On Supply 33

Space Available 26 23 23 25 20 21

% Occupied 21% 30% 30% 24% 39% 36%

Total Supply 70

Space Available 60 55 50 56 52 56

% Occupied 14% 21% 29% 20% 26% 20%

4 Off‐Street 13 17 17 17 21 25

On‐Street 8 8 9 9 10 7

Off Supply 40

Space Available 27 23 23 23 19 15

% Occupied 33% 43% 43% 43% 53% 63%

On Supply 28

Space Available 20 20 19 19 18 21

% Occupied 29% 29% 32% 32% 36% 25%

Total Supply 68

Attachment 4

Page 307

Item 25.



Space Available 47 43 42 42 37 36

% Occupied 31% 37% 38% 38% 46% 47%

5 Off‐Street 5 8 8 7 9 4

On‐Street 12 37 60 62 58 41

Off Supply 17

Space Available 12 9 9 10 8 13

% Occupied 29% 47% 47% 41% 53% 24%

On Supply 107

Space Available 95 70 47 45 49 66

% Occupied 11% 35% 56% 58% 54% 38%

Total Supply 124

Space Available 107 79 56 55 57 79

% Occupied 14% 36% 55% 56% 54% 36%

6 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 10 18 33 33 33 17

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 50

Space Available 40 32 17 17 17 33 `

% Occupied 20% 36% 66% 66% 66% 34%

Total Supply 50

Space Available 40 32 17 17 17 33

% Occupied 20% 36% 66% 66% 66% 34%

7 Off‐Street 0 5 10 7 4 4

On‐Street 7 24 23 0 14 13

Off Supply 21

Space Available 21 16 11 14 17 17

% Occupied 0% 24% 48% 33% 19% 19%

On Supply 43

Space Available 36 19 20 43 29 30

% Occupied 16% 56% 53% 0% 33% 30%

Total Supply 64

Space Available 57 35 31 57 46 47

% Occupied 11% 45% 52% 11% 28% 27%

8 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 8 10 4 11 8 10

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 35

Space Available 27 25 31 24 27 25

% Occupied 77% 71% 89% 69% 77% 71%

Total Supply 35

Space Available 27 25 31 24 27 25

Page 308

Item 25.



% Occupied 23% 29% 11% 31% 23% 29%

9 Off‐Street 1 14 17 13 12 8

On‐Street 6 6 11 10 9 6

Off Supply 50

Space Available 49 36 33 37 38 42

% Occupied 2% 28% 34% 26% 24% 16%

On Supply 36

Space Available 30 30 25 26 27 30

% Occupied 17% 17% 31% 28% 25% 17%

Total Supply 86

Space Available 79 66 58 63 65 72

% Occupied 8% 23% 33% 27% 24% 16%

10 Off‐Street 8 8 10 10 9 5

On‐Street 3 12 11 14 10 3

Off Supply 16

Space Available 8 8 6 6 7 11

% Occupied 50% 50% 63% 63% 56% 31%

On Supply 33

Space Available 30 21 22 19 23 30

% Occupied 9% 36% 33% 42% 30% 9%

Total Supply 49

Space Available 38 29 28 25 30 41

% Occupied 22% 41% 43% 49% 39% 16%

11 Off‐Street 9 77 79 56 28 28

On‐Street 6 47 45 41 34 29

Off Supply 116

Space Available 107 39 37 60 88 88

% Occupied 8% 66% 68% 48% 24% 24%

On Supply 87

Space Available 81 40 42 46 53 58

% Occupied 7% 54% 52% 47% 39% 33%

Total Supply 203

Space Available 188 79 79 106 141 146

% Occupied 7% 61% 61% 48% 31% 28%

12 Off‐Street 7 5 4 4 4 5

On‐Street 12 11 16 13 10 5

Off Supply 17

Space Available 10 12 13 13 13 12

% Occupied 41% 29% 24% 24% 24% 29%

On Supply 31

Space Available 19 20 15 18 21 26

% Occupied 39% 35% 52% 42% 32% 16%

Total Supply 48

Space Available 29 32 28 31 34 38

% Occupied 40% 33% 42% 35% 29% 21%

Page 309

Item 25.



13 Off‐Street 2 9 16 12 13 14

On‐Street 13 13 19 14 12 12

Off Supply 29

Space Available 27 20 13 17 16 15

% Occupied 7% 31% 55% 41% 45% 48%

On Supply 52

Space Available 39 39 33 38 40 40

% Occupied 25% 25% 37% 27% 23% 23%

Total Supply 81

Space Available 66 59 46 55 56 55

% Occupied 19% 27% 43% 32% 31% 32%

14 Off‐Street 6 18 22 13 18 7

On‐Street 2 2 2 2 0 2

Off Supply 42

Space Available 36 24 20 29 24 35

% Occupied 14% 43% 52% 31% 43% 17%

On Supply 2

Space Available 0 0 0 0 2 0

% Occupied 100% 100% 100% 100% 0% 100%

Total Supply 44

Space Available 36 24 20 29 26 35

% Occupied 18% 45% 55% 34% 41% 20%

15 Off‐Street 78 73 74 63 67 82

On‐Street 4 4 3 5 5 5

Off Supply 169

Space Available 91 96 95 106 102 87

% Occupied 46% 43% 44% 37% 40% 49%

On Supply 18

Space Available 14 14 15 13 13 13

% Occupied 22% 22% 17% 28% 28% 28%

Total Supply 187

Space Available 105 110 110 119 115 100

% Occupied 44% 41% 41% 36% 39% 47%

16 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 4 5 6 4 4 5

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 25

Space Available 21 20 19 21 21 20

% Occupied 16% 20% 24% 16% 16% 20%

Total Supply 25

Space Available 21 20 19 21 21 20

% Occupied 16% 20% 24% 16% 16% 20%

17 Off‐Street 2 2 9 9 7 7

Page 310

Item 25.



On‐Street 0 4 4 2 5 5

Off Supply 32

Space Available 30 30 23 23 25 25

% Occupied 6% 6% 28% 28% 22% 22%

On Supply 51

Space Available 51 47 47 49 46 46

% Occupied 0% 8% 8% 4% 10% 10%

Total Supply 83

Space Available 81 77 70 72 71 71

% Occupied 2% 7% 16% 13% 14% 14%

18 Off‐Street 12 12 12 12 12 12

On‐Street 3 6 5 7 7 4

Off Supply 20

Space Available 8 8 8 8 8 8

% Occupied 60% 60% 60% 60% 60% 60%

On Supply 24

Space Available 21 18 19 17 17 20

% Occupied 13% 25% 21% 29% 29% 17%

Total Supply 44

Space Available 29 26 27 25 25 28

% Occupied 34% 41% 39% 43% 43% 36%

19 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 12 8 10 11 10 12

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 30

Space Available 18 22 20 19 20 18

% Occupied 40% 27% 33% 37% 33% 40%

Total Supply 30

Space Available 18 22 20 19 20 18

% Occupied 40% 27% 33% 37% 33% 40%

20 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 6 8 7 7 11 11

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 24

Space Available 18 16 17 17 13 13

% Occupied 25% 33% 29% 29% 46% 46%

Total Supply 24

Space Available 18 16 17 17 13 13

% Occupied 25% 33% 29% 29% 46% 46%

21 Off‐Street 1 1 4 4 3 4

On‐Street 4 7 4 5 6 5

Page 311

Item 25.



Off Supply 13

Space Available 12 12 9 9 10 9

% Occupied 8% 8% 31% 31% 23% 31%

On Supply 21

Space Available 17 14 17 16 15 16

% Occupied 19% 33% 19% 24% 29% 24%

Total Supply 34

Space Available 29 26 26 25 25 25

% Occupied 15% 24% 24% 26% 26% 26%

22 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 5 18 9 16 12 17

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 31

Space Available 26 13 22 15 19 14

% Occupied 16% 58% 29% 52% 39% 55%

Total Supply 31

Space Available 26 13 22 15 19 14

% Occupied 16% 58% 29% 52% 39% 55%

23 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 7 6 6 9 11 13

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 29

Space Available 22 23 23 20 18 16

% Occupied 24% 21% 21% 31% 38% 45%

Total Supply 29

Space Available 22 23 23 20 18 16

% Occupied 24% 21% 21% 31% 38% 45%

24 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 14 13 11 11 13 16

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 34

Space Available 20 21 23 23 21 18

% Occupied 41% 38% 32% 32% 38% 47%

Total Supply 34

Space Available 20 21 23 23 21 18

% Occupied 41% 38% 32% 32% 38% 47%

Page 312

Item 25.



Parking Type 7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM

On‐Street 29 37 51 41 39 32

Total Supply 106

Space Available 77 69 55 65 67 74

% Occupied 27% 35% 48% 39% 37% 30%

Parking Type 7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM

Off‐Street 152 276 312 254 235 224

On‐Street 157 292 334 322 318 273

Off Supply 670

Space Available 518 394 358 416 435 446

% Occupied 23% 41% 47% 38% 35% 33%

On Supply 867

Space Available 710 575 533 545 549 594

% Occupied 18% 34% 39% 37% 37% 31%

Total Supply 1537

Space Available 1228 969 891 961 984 1040

% Occupied 20% 37% 42% 37% 36% 32%

Parking Type 7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM

On‐Street 9 11 14 16 17 9

Total Supply 19

Space Available 10 8 5 3 2 10

% Occupied 47% 58% 74% 84% 89% 47%

               Sixth Street On‐Street Parking (Cesar Chavez to Grapefruit)

 Total Supply

               Sixth Street On‐Street Parking (Orchard to Vine St)

Page 313

Item 25.



Parking Occupancy Data ‐ Friday, April 21, 2023

Block # Parking Type 7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM

1 Off‐Street 0 6 5 5 5 1

On‐Street 0 7 9 14 8 4

Off Supply 14

Space Available 14 8 9 9 9 13

% Occupied 0% 43% 36% 36% 36% 7%

On Supply 17

Space Available 17 10 8 3 9 13

% Occupied 0% 41% 53% 82% 47% 24%

Total Supply 31

Space Available 31 18 17 12 18 26

% Occupied 0% 42% 45% 61% 42% 16%

2 Off‐Street 11 15 14 13 13 13

On‐Street 4 19 18 10 19 17

Off Supply 37

Space Available 26 22 23 24 24 24

% Occupied 30% 41% 38% 35% 35% 35%

On Supply 26

Space Available 22 7 8 16 7 9

% Occupied 15% 73% 69% 38% 73% 65%

Total Supply 63

Space Available 48 29 31 40 31 33

% Occupied 24% 54% 51% 63% 51% 48%

3 Off‐Street 2 2 5 6 8 3

On‐Street 8 12 16 15 13 12

Off Supply 37

Space Available 35 35 32 31 29 34

% Occupied 5% 5% 14% 16% 22% 8%

On Supply 33

Space Available 25 21 17 18 20 21

% Occupied 24% 36% 48% 45% 39% 36%

Total Supply 70

Space Available 60 56 49 49 49 55

% Occupied 14% 20% 30% 30% 30% 21%

4 Off‐Street 20 22 22 18 19 23

On‐Street 6 6 16 6 4 4

Off Supply 40

Space Available 20 18 18 22 21 17

% Occupied 50% 55% 55% 45% 48% 58%

On Supply 28

Space Available 22 22 12 22 24 24

% Occupied 21% 21% 57% 21% 14% 14%

Total Supply 68

Attachment 5

Page 314

Item 25.



Space Available 42 40 30 44 45 41

% Occupied 38% 41% 56% 35% 34% 40%

5 Off‐Street 3 1 4 5 2 4

On‐Street 20 35 47 47 17 26

Off Supply 17

Space Available 14 16 13 12 15 13

% Occupied 18% 6% 24% 29% 12% 24%

On Supply 107

Space Available 87 72 60 60 90 81

% Occupied 19% 33% 44% 44% 16% 24%

Total Supply 124

Space Available 101 88 73 72 105 94

% Occupied 19% 29% 41% 42% 15% 24%

6 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 9 41 37 20 13 4

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 50

Space Available 41 9 13 30 37 46

% Occupied 18% 82% 74% 40% 26% 8%

Total Supply 50

Space Available 41 9 13 30 37 46

% Occupied 18% 82% 74% 40% 26% 8%

7 Off‐Street 0 6 12 6 2 0

On‐Street 10 32 29 16 13 8

Off Supply 21

Space Available 21 15 9 15 19 21

% Occupied 0% 29% 57% 29% 10% 0%

On Supply 43

Space Available 33 11 14 27 30 35

% Occupied 23% 74% 67% 37% 30% 19%

Total Supply 64

Space Available 54 26 23 42 49 56

% Occupied 16% 59% 64% 34% 23% 13%

8 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 13 11 7 8 14 10

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 35

Space Available 22 24 28 27 21 25

% Occupied 63% 69% 80% 77% 60% 71%

Total Supply 35

Space Available 22 24 28 27 21 25

Page 315

Item 25.



% Occupied 37% 31% 20% 23% 40% 29%

9 Off‐Street 12 19 20 23 21 12

On‐Street 5 10 10 13 11 6

Off Supply 50

Space Available 38 31 30 27 29 38

% Occupied 24% 38% 40% 46% 42% 24%

On Supply 36

Space Available 31 26 26 23 25 30

% Occupied 14% 28% 28% 36% 31% 17%

Total Supply 86

Space Available 69 57 56 50 54 68

% Occupied 20% 34% 35% 42% 37% 21%

10 Off‐Street 7 7 5 10 10 3

On‐Street 5 13 12 9 8 6

Off Supply 16

Space Available 9 9 11 6 6 13

% Occupied 44% 44% 31% 63% 63% 19%

On Supply 33

Space Available 28 20 21 24 25 27

% Occupied 15% 39% 36% 27% 24% 18%

Total Supply 49

Space Available 37 29 32 30 31 40

% Occupied 24% 41% 35% 39% 37% 18%

11 Off‐Street 7 71 65 49 27 12

On‐Street 8 45 45 38 33 11

Off Supply 116

Space Available 109 45 51 67 89 104

% Occupied 6% 61% 56% 42% 23% 10%

On Supply 87

Space Available 79 42 42 49 54 76

% Occupied 9% 52% 52% 44% 38% 13%

Total Supply 203

Space Available 188 87 93 116 143 180

% Occupied 7% 57% 54% 43% 30% 11%

12 Off‐Street 5 5 5 4 4 4

On‐Street 8 13 10 11 6 9

Off Supply 17

Space Available 12 12 12 13 13 13

% Occupied 29% 29% 29% 24% 24% 24%

On Supply 31

Space Available 23 18 21 20 25 22

% Occupied 26% 42% 32% 35% 19% 29%

Total Supply 48

Space Available 35 30 33 33 38 35

% Occupied 27% 38% 31% 31% 21% 27%

Page 316

Item 25.



13 Off‐Street 2 10 14 20 10 14

On‐Street 11 16 15 18 14 14

Off Supply 29

Space Available 27 19 15 9 19 15

% Occupied 7% 34% 48% 69% 34% 48%

On Supply 52

Space Available 41 36 37 34 38 38

% Occupied 21% 31% 29% 35% 27% 27%

Total Supply 81

Space Available 68 55 52 43 57 53

% Occupied 16% 32% 36% 47% 30% 35%

14 Off‐Street 4 15 21 12 14 3

On‐Street 2 2 2 1 0 0

Off Supply 42

Space Available 38 27 21 30 28 39

% Occupied 10% 36% 50% 29% 33% 7%

On Supply 2

Space Available 0 0 0 1 2 2

% Occupied 100% 100% 100% 50% 0% 0%

Total Supply 44

Space Available 38 27 21 31 30 41

% Occupied 14% 39% 52% 30% 32% 7%

15 Off‐Street 80 71 66 62 63 72

On‐Street 5 3 7 5 4 3

Off Supply 169

Space Available 89 98 103 107 106 97

% Occupied 47% 42% 39% 37% 37% 43%

On Supply 18

Space Available 13 15 11 13 14 15

% Occupied 28% 17% 39% 28% 22% 17%

Total Supply 187

Space Available 102 113 114 120 120 112

% Occupied 45% 40% 39% 36% 36% 40%

16 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 2 6 6 4 7 8

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 25

Space Available 23 19 19 21 18 17

% Occupied 8% 24% 24% 16% 28% 32%

Total Supply 25

Space Available 23 19 19 21 18 17

% Occupied 8% 24% 24% 16% 28% 32%

17 Off‐Street 2 8 11 8 10 8

Page 317

Item 25.



On‐Street 3 4 5 2 2 3

Off Supply 32

Space Available 30 24 21 24 22 24

% Occupied 6% 25% 34% 25% 31% 25%

On Supply 51

Space Available 48 47 46 49 49 48

% Occupied 6% 8% 10% 4% 4% 6%

Total Supply 83

Space Available 78 71 67 73 71 72

% Occupied 6% 14% 19% 12% 14% 13%

18 Off‐Street 12 12 13 17 13 12

On‐Street 3 15 4 4 4 3

Off Supply 20

Space Available 8 8 7 3 7 8

% Occupied 60% 60% 65% 85% 65% 60%

On Supply 24

Space Available 21 9 20 20 20 21

% Occupied 13% 63% 17% 17% 17% 13%

Total Supply 44

Space Available 29 17 27 23 27 29

% Occupied 34% 61% 39% 48% 39% 34%

19 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 11 10 11 11 13 12

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 30

Space Available 19 20 19 19 17 18

% Occupied 37% 33% 37% 37% 43% 40%

Total Supply 30

Space Available 19 20 19 19 17 18

% Occupied 37% 33% 37% 37% 43% 40%

20 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 11 9 13 11 11 15

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 24

Space Available 13 15 11 13 13 9

% Occupied 46% 38% 54% 46% 46% 63%

Total Supply 24

Space Available 13 15 11 13 13 9

% Occupied 46% 38% 54% 46% 46% 63%

21 Off‐Street 0 0 3 4 7 4

On‐Street 3 11 3 7 3 6

Page 318

Item 25.



Off Supply 13

Space Available 13 13 10 9 6 9

% Occupied 0% 0% 23% 31% 54% 31%

On Supply 21

Space Available 18 10 18 14 18 15

% Occupied 14% 52% 14% 33% 14% 29%

Total Supply 34

Space Available 31 23 28 23 24 24

% Occupied 9% 32% 18% 32% 29% 29%

22 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 10 19 13 15 11 13

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 31

Space Available 21 12 18 16 20 18

% Occupied 32% 61% 42% 48% 35% 42%

Total Supply 31

Space Available 21 12 18 16 20 18

% Occupied 32% 61% 42% 48% 35% 42%

23 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 11 10 10 10 11 11

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 29

Space Available 18 19 19 19 18 18

% Occupied 38% 34% 34% 34% 38% 38%

Total Supply 29

Space Available 18 19 19 19 18 18

% Occupied 38% 34% 34% 34% 38% 38%

24 Off‐Street 0 0 0 0 0 0

On‐Street 14 11 13 14 15 13

Off Supply 0

Space Available 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Occupied 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

On Supply 34

Space Available 20 23 21 20 19 21

% Occupied 41% 32% 38% 41% 44% 38%

Total Supply 34

Space Available 20 23 21 20 19 21

% Occupied 41% 32% 38% 41% 44% 38%

Page 319

Item 25.



Parking Type 7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM

On‐Street 28 49 49 47 39 22

Total Supply 106

Space Available 78 57 57 59 67 84

% Occupied 26% 46% 46% 44% 37% 21%

Parking Type 7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM

Off‐Street 167 270 285 262 228 188

On‐Street 182 360 358 309 254 218

Off Supply 670

Space Available 503 400 385 408 442 482

% Occupied 25% 40% 43% 39% 34% 28%

On Supply 867

Space Available 685 507 509 558 613 649

% Occupied 21% 42% 41% 36% 29% 25%

Total Supply 1537

Space Available 1188 907 894 966 1055 1131

% Occupied 23% 41% 42% 37% 31% 26%

Parking Type 7:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:00 AM 1:00 PM 3:00 PM 5:00 PM

On‐Street 10 16 12 11 12 3

Total Supply 19

Space Available 9 3 7 8 7 16

% Occupied 53% 84% 63% 58% 63% 16%

               Sixth Street On‐Street Parking (Cesar Chavez to Grapefruit)

 Total Supply

               Sixth Street On‐Street Parking (Orchard to Vine St)

Page 320

Item 25.



Parking Limit Signs 

Attachment 6

Page 321

Item 25.


	Top
	Item 5.	Proclamation Deputy Nevins
	Deputy Nevins Retirement

	Item 6.	Fibromyalgia Awareness Month
	Fibromyalgia Awareness Month

	Item 7.	Lupus Awareness Month
	Lupus Awareness

	Item 9.	Meeting Minutes of April 26, 2023, of the City of Coachella, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Fire Protection District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella Redevelopment Agency
	2023-04-26  Meeting Mintues City Council Closed Session and Regular Meeting

	Item 10.	Authorize award of maintenance agreement for the Landscape Maintenance Service for Bagdouma Park Project.
	Agenda - Bagdouma Park Main RFP Award Vintage 05 10 23
	Agreement - Vintage Landscape Bagdouma Park 05 10 23

	Item 11.	Authorize award of maintenance agreement for the Landscape Maintenance Service for: City Medians and Downtown 6th Street Project.
	Agenda - City Medians & Downtown 6th St Main RFP Award Vintage 05 10 23
	Agreement - Vintage Landscape City Medians & Downtown 6th Street 05 10 23

	Item 12.	Authorize award of construction agreement to Desert Concepts for the Tierra Del Sol Decorative Entrance Lighting Improvement Project.
	Agenda - Tierra del Sol Decorative Entrance Award Desert Concepts 05 10 23
	Agreement - Project 021323 Desert Concepts (Tierra Del Sol) 5 10 23

	Item 13.	Adopt resolution setting a June 14, 2023 public hearing date for Municipal Solid Waste Rates for fiscal year 2023/2024.
	Agenda -  Solid Waste Set Public Hearing for June 14, 2023; 5 10 23
	Resolution - Solid Waste Rates Public Hearing 5 10 23
	Exhibit A - 2023 2024 Burrtec Rates

	Item 14.	ST-98 Parcel Map
	Michael Baker Parcel Map Staff Report
	City of Coachella Ave 50 Parcel Map - scope and fee
	Michael Baker International (5)

	Item 15.	Resolution 2023-26 SB1 Project List
	Staff Report_Reso 2023-26
	FY2324 SB 1 Project List Resolution 2023-26

	Item 16.	Ordinance No. 1202 on Behalf of CFD No. 2005-01 Authorizing the Levy  of a Special Tax within Annexation Area No. 32 Annexed to Said District (2nd Reading)
	(1) CC Staff Rpt 5-10-23 Annex 32
	(2) Attach 1 - ORDINANCE 1202 AUTHORIZATION OF LEVY FIRST READING
	(3) Exhibit A - RATE AND METHOD
	(4) Exhibit B - CFD 32 MAP EXHIBIT PM 37833

	Item 17.	Authorize Transfer of Funds in the Amount Of $124,626.00 from Measure A Project S-24, Avenue 48 And Harrison Street Sewer Improvements
	Authorize Transfer of Funds in the Amount of $124,626.00 from Measure A to Project S-24, Avenue 48 And Harris
	S-24 Ave 48 and Harrison Street Recorded NOC 03232023
	CCO#1-AC Index, Markers, Striping, Quant, Adjustment-Packet-executed
	Map

	Item 18.	Establish a 2 year MOU with CVAG's CV Housing First Program providing $100,000 per Fiscal Year
	Staff Report CVAG CV Housing First FY22-23. MOU potential 2yr
	Draft CVAG Multiyear MOU

	Item 19.	Voucher Listing- EFT's/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2022-23 Expenditures as of May 10, 2023, $3,466,894.56.
	230510 Warrant Register

	Item 20.	Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Letter of Agreement with CannaBiz Consulting Group for Cannabis Social Equity Consulting Services in a Not-to-Exceed Amount of $50,000
	(1) Staff Report - Letter of Agreement with CannaBiz Consulting Group
	(2) Attachment 1 - Letter of Agreement
	(3) Attachment 2 - CannaBiz Consulting Group Proposal
	(4) Attachment 3 - Former Agreement with CannaBiz

	Item 21.	Approve cooperative agreement for El Grito Event between: the City of Coachella, Telemundo and Mexican Consulate in San Bernardino and approve operation of a beer garden at Rancho Las Flore Park for the 2023 El Grito Event.
	Agenda - El Grito Coop Agreement 5 10 23
	2023 El Grito Agreement Draft II

	Item 22.	P-26 Splash Pad Award
	P-26 Award Staff Report
	California Waters PSA
	P-26 CONSULTANTS LIST

	Item 23.	Recommend approval of Memorandum of Understanding between for Library Operations at the Coachella Library between the City of Coachella and County of Riverside.
	Agenda - Library MOU 5 10 23
	3RD VERSION Coachella Library Annex Proposal.docx
	MOU - County and Coachella_2023-2028 Library 5 10 23

	Item 24.	City of Coachella Annual Progress Report (APR) to the California Dept. of Housing Community Development
	(1) Staff Report APR
	(3) Attach 2 - 2022 Coachella Housing Element Annual Progress Report
	(2) Attach 1 - Reso No 2023-25
	(4) Attach 3 - 2023 General Plan Implementation - Dept Updates

	Item 25.	Pueblo Viejo Downtown Parking Survey Update
	(1) Staff Rpt - Parking Study - 05.10.23
	(2) Attach 1 - Parking Map Block Excerpt
	(3) Attach 2 - Pueblo Viejo On-Street Parking
	(4) Attach 3 - Pueblo Viejo Off-Street Parking
	(5) Attach 4 - Pueblo Viejo Parking Occupancy, March 2023
	(6) Attach 5 - Pueblo Viejo Parking Occupancy, April 2023
	(7) Attach 6 - Parking Limit Signs

	Bottom

